
City of Port Colborne 

POR. T COLBORNE 

Regular Meeting of Committee of the Whole 27-19 
Tuesday, November 12, 2019 - 6:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 66 Charlotte Street 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order: Deputy Mayor Frank Danch 

2. National Anthem: Joel Longfellow 

3. Introduction of Addendum and Delegation Items: 

4. Confirmation of Agenda: 

5. Disclosures of Interest: 

6. Adoption of Minutes: 
(a) Regular meeting of Committee of the Whole 26-19, held on October 28, 2019 

7. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

8. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion: 

9. Presentations: 
Nil. 

10. Delegations (10 Minutes Maximum): 
Nil. 

11. Mayor's Report: 

12. Regional Councillor's Report: 

13. Councillors' Items: 
(a) Councillors' Issues/Enquiries 
(b) Staff Responses to Previous Councillors' Enquiries 

14. Consideration of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

15. Notice of Motion: 

16. Adjournment: 

1



Committee of the Whole Agenda November 12, 2019 

Upcoming Committee of the Whole and Council Meetings 

Monday, November 25, 2019 Committee of the Whole/Council - 6:30 P.M. 

Monday, December 9, 2019 Committee of the Whole/Council - 6:30 P.M. 

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 
the "Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda. 

2



Notes 

wcs 

RB 

AD 

wcs 

RB 

AD 

wcs 

RB 

AD 

Committee of the Whole Agenda November 12, 2019 

Committee Items: 

Item Description I Recommendation 

MB EB 1. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 

GB FD 
Report 2019-161, Subject: Cannabis Production - Interim Control 
B~-law 

DK HW That Council pass an Interim Control By-law, pursuant to Section 38 of 
the Planning Act, for a period of one year, prohibiting retail cannabis 
production on all properties in the City; and 

That the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary 
By-law to give effect to Council's decision; and that the Notice of 
Decision required by the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended, be 
processed by staff. 

MB EB 2. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 

GB FD 
ReQort 2019-1681 Subject: Land Sale on Lorraine Road 

DK HW 
That By-law 6706/70/19 Being A By-Law To Authorize Entering Into An 
Agreement Of Purchase And Sale be amended to remove Helen 
Lliodromitis. 

That the City enters into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale with 
Robert and Tanya Kriter for $230,000 plus HST. 

That the Mayor, Clerk and City Solicitor be authorized to sign and 
execute any and all documents respecting the sale of these lands. 

MB EB 3. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 

GB FD 
Report 2019-173, Subject: Ministry of Environment, Conservation 
and Parks ResQonse Regarding Safe Soil Levels of the CBRA 

DK HW That Planning and Development Department report 2019-173, Ministry 
of the Environment, Conservation and Parks Response Regarding 
Safe Soil Levels of the CBRA be received for information; and 

That the Director of Planning and Development discuss concerns 
about land use change burdens associated with requiring a RSC with 
Vale. 

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 
the "Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda. 

Page 

9 

13 

25 

3



wcs 

RB 

AD 

wcs 

RB 

AD 

wcs 

RB 

AD 

wcs 

RB 

AD 

wcs 

RB 

AD 

Committee of the Whole Agenda November 12, 2019 

MB EB 4. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 
Report 2019-17 4, Subject: Condominium Exemption Request- 57 

GB FD Minto Street 

DK HW That Council approves the request for exemption from draft plan of 
condominium for the development at 57 Minto Street. 

MB EB 5. Engineering and Operations, Engineering Division, Report 2019-

GB FD 
172, Subject: Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain - Appointment of 
Engineer 

DK HW That the Council of the City of Port Col borne receives Report 2019-172 with 
respect to the Eagle Marsh Drain Engineer Appointment as information; and 

That Brandon Widner, P. Eng. of Spriet Associates Engineers & Architects 
be appointed under Section 8 of the Drainage Act, R.S.O. 1990 for the 
preparation of a new engineer's report under Section 78 of the Drainage Act, 
R.S.O. 1990, related to the Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain. 

MB EB 6. Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-

GB FD 
1631 Subject: Audit Results for the ~ear ended December 31 1 2018 

DK HW 
That Council accept and approve the Audit Results report for the year 
ended December 31, 2018. 

MB EB 7. Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-
164, Subject: Approval of the 2018 Consolidated Financial 

GB FD Statements 

DK HW That Council approve the Consolidated Financial Statements for the 
year ended December 31 , 2018. 

MB EB 8. Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-

GB FD 
165, Subject: Development Charge Reserve Funds - 2018 Year-
end U~date 

DK HW That Council receives the attached Development Charge Statement for 
information. 

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 
the "Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda. 

29 

53 

57 

97 

143 

4



wcs 

RB 

AD 

Committee of the Whole Agenda November 12, 2019 

MB EB 9. Community and Economic Development Department, Parks and 
Recreation Division, Report 2019-158, Subject: Annual Lighted 

GB FD Santa Claus Parade - Road Closures 

DK HW 1. That the road closures necessary for the Annual Lighted Santa 
Claus Parade on Saturday, December 7, 2019, as outlined in 
Community and Economic Development, Report 2019-158, be 
approved; 

2. That the following roads be closed to general vehicular traffic and 
parking from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Saturday, December 7, 
2019, for the purpose of parade staging: 

• Fielden Avenue, from the southern limit of Killaly Street to the 
southern limit of Elgin Street; and 

• Elgin Street, from the western limit of Elm Street to the 
eastern limit of Steele Street; and 

• Fielden Avenue, at the western limit of Delhi Street. 

3. That the following roads be closed for vehicular parking from 4:00 
p.m. to 9:00 p.m. on Saturday, December 7, 2019, for the purpose 
of parade staging and to provide for a safe viewing area of the 
parade: 

• Clarence Street, from the western limit of Steele Street to the 
eastern limit of West Street; 

• West Street, from the northern limit of Clarence Street to the 
southern limit of Charlotte Street; and 

• Charlotte Street, from the western limit of Elm Street to the 
eastern limit of West Street. 

4. That the following road intersections be temporarily closed (by 
barricade) beginning at 6:30 p.m. until 9:00 p.m. on Saturday, 
December 7, 2019, to restrict through traffic onto the parade route: 

• North and west intersections of Steele Street and Elgin 
Street; 

• East intersection of Steele Street at Carter Street; 

• East intersection of Steele Street at Park Street; 

• East intersection of Steele Street at Tugboat Lane; 

• West and south intersections of Steel Street and Clarence 
Street; 

• North and south intersections of Fielden Avenue at Clarence 
Street; 

• North and south intersections of Elm Street at Clarence 
Street; 

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 
the "Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda. 

147 

5



Committee of the Whole Agenda November 12, 2019 

• North and south intersections of Catharine Street at Clarence 
Street; 

• North and south intersections of King Street at Clarence 
Street; 

• North and east intersections of West Street at Clarence 
Street; 

• South intersection of West Street at Charlotte Street; 
• North and south intersections of King Street at Charlotte 

Street; and 
• East and north intersections of Charlotte Street and 

Catharine Street. 

5. That emergency service vehicles, including ambulance, police and 
fire, as well as public works, public utility vehicles, and authorized 
permit vehicles be exempt from the above noted closures; 

6. That Public Works staff deliver traffic barricades before the event 
at the predetermined locations, restrict access to the appropriate 
parking stalls and deliver waste receptacles along the Parade 
route; 

7. That Public Works staff will block off all parking stalls along the 
parade route with pylons beginning at the time of the traffic and 
parking restrictions; 

8. That By-law Enforcement staff ticket and remove vehicles as 
necessary along the parade route during the time of the traffic and 
parking restrictions closures. 

Miscellaneous Correspondence 

WCS MB EB 

RB GB FD 

AD DK HW 

10. Memorandum from Janice Peyton, Executive Assistant, DEO Re: 153 
Transit Advisory Committee - Community Bus Saturday Service 
Pilot Program 

That the Memorandum from Janice Peyton, Executive Assistant, DEO 
on behalf of the Transit Advisory Committee Re: Community Bus 
Saturday Service Pilot Program, be received for information; and 

That the Council of the City of Port Col borne be notified that the Port 
Colborne Transit Advisory Committee is in agreement with increasing 
the Port Colborne Community bus services through a pilot project 
coordinated with Welland Transit, to run on Saturdays for a six-hour 
block of time. The pilot project will be in place from May 2, 2020 to 
December 31 , 2020. 

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 
the "Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda. 

6



Committee of the Whole Agenda November 12, 2019 

wcs MB EB 11 . Region of Niagara Re: Actions & Resources to Join the Coalition 

RB GB FD 
of Inclusive Munici~alities Re~ort CAO 14-2019 

AD DK HW 
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re: 
Actions & Resources to Join the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities 
Report CAO 14-2019, be received for information. 

wcs MB EB 12. Region of Niagara Re: Proposed Cuts to Legal Aid Ontario 

RB GB FD 
Budget 

AD DK HW 
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re: 
Proposed Cuts to Legal Aid Ontario Budget, be received for 
information. 

-
Outside Resolutions - Requests for Endorsement 

wcs MB EB 13. Town of Fort Erie Re: Port Colborne Quarry and the Aquifer 

RB GB FD 
through Fort Erie 

That the resolution received from the Town of Fort Erie Re: Port 
AD DK HW Colborne Quarry and the Aquifer through Fort Erie, be received for 

information. 

wcs MB EB 14. City of Niagara Falls Re: School Bus Camera Legislation 

RB GB FD That the resolution received from the City of Niagara Falls Re: School 

AD DK HW 
Bus Camera Legislation, be received for information. 

wcs MB EB 15. Town of Kingsville Re: Local Health Care Services 

RB GB FD That the resolution received from the Town of Kingsville Re: Local 

AD DK HW 
Health Care Services, be received for information. 

Responses to City of Port Colborne Resolutions 

Nil. 
-

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 
the "Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda. 

155 

169 

173 

175 

177 

7



· · ~~ 

This page intentionally left blank. 

8



POR. T COLBOR.NE 

Report Number: 2019-161 

Planning and Development Department 
Planning Division 

Date: November 12, 2019 

SUBJECT: Cannabis Production - Interim Control By-law 

1) PURPOSE: 

The purpose of the report is to have Council extend the Interim Control By-law for one 
more year for cannabis production. 

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 

On November 13, 2018, Council through Planning and Development Report 2018-142 
approved an Interim Control By-law, pursuant to Section 38 of the Planning Act, for a 
period of up to one year, prohibiting retail cannabis production on all properties in the 
City. 

On November 26, 2018, By-law 6629/84/18, being a by-law to adopt an Interim Control 
by-law for all lands within the City of Port Colborne came into force. 

On November 25, 2019, a public meeting proposing new cannabis regulations under the 
Planning Act will be on the Council agenda. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

Staff having had time to study and review the legalization of cannabis production 
and have drafted new planning policies and regulations. 

The City's Official Plan and Zoning By-law are proposed to be amended for commercial 
cannabis production. The public meeting is scheduled for November 22, 2019. 

As the Interim Control By-law expires on November 26, 2019, staff are recommending 
to extend the Interim Control By-law until the new planning policies and regulations are 
approved. The Planning Act allows for another one-year extension. 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

a) Do nothing. 

Council could decide to not extend the interim control by-law and not regulate 
commercial cannabis production. 

Other Options 

NIA 

9



5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 

Cannabis sale and production has been an interest of Council to regulate. 

6) ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A- Draft Interim Control By-law Extension. 

7) RECOMMENDATION 

That Council pass an Interim Control By-law, pursuant to Section 38 of the Planning 
Act, for a period of one year, prohibiting retail cannabis production on all properties in 
the City; and 

That the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary By-law to give 
effect to Council's decision; and that the Notice of Decision required by the Planning 
Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended, be processed by staff. 

Prepared on November 1, 2019 by: 

LFC>IUi''" quilina, MCIP 1 RPP, CPT 
Director of Planning and Development 

Reviewed and Respectfully Submitted: 

~""".- . 

.... .JV~' - ... 
,, ~/ . 

pi . 

Peter Senese 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Planning & Development Department Report No.: 2019-161 Page 2 of 3 

10



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law no. 

Being a by-law to extend an Interim Control by-law for all 
lands within the City of Port Colborne 

Appendix A 

Whereas Section 38 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P.13, as amended, 
authorizes Council to adopt an Interim Control By-law, provided Council has by 
resolution directed that a review or study be undertaken of land use planning policies; 
and 

Whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne passed 
By-law 6629/84/18 on November 26, 2018 directing that a review be undertaken in 
respect of the Official Plan policy, Zoning By-law standards, and implementation 
procedures as they relate to cannabis production facilities within the City of Port 
Colborne and to report back to Council with recommendations with respect to an 
Interim Control By-law; and 

Whereas the Council of the Corporation of the City of Port Col borne considers 
it necessary to extend the Interim Control By-law 6629/84/18 for 1 year with respect to 
the lands described in Section 1 of this By-law, and only as it applies to the use of land, 
premises, or partial use of premises, for either of the uses described in Section 2 a) of 
this By-law, to allow it time to consider its land use planning policies as directed; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
enacts as follows: 

1. This Interim Control By-law applies to all lands zoned in Zoning By-law 
6575/30/18 of The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne to prohibit the use 
of land, premises, or partial use of premises within such lands, for the use as 
described in Section 2 a) of this by-law. 

2. The following use is prohibited under this by-law: 

a) a facility or land for the growing of cannabis. 

3. In this by-law, the following definitions apply: 

a) "Cannabis": means a cannabis plant, including the phytocannabinoids 
produce by or found in such a plant regardless of whether that part has 
been processed or not and any substance or mixture of substances that 
contains or has on it and part of such a plant and any substance that is 
identical to a phytocannabinoid produced by or found in such a plant 
regardless of how the substance was obtained. Marihuana shall have 
the same definition; 

11



Appendix A 

b) "Cannabis Production Facility": means the use of land, buildings or 
structures for the cultivation, processing, packaging and shipping of 
cannabis. 

4. This by-law shall be in effect for a period of one year from the date of passage 
hereof. 

Enacted and passed this 12th day of November, 2019. 

William C Steele, Mayor 

Amber LaPointe, City Clerk 

12



POR. T COLBORNE 

Planning and Development Department 
Planning Division 

Report Number: 2019-168 Date: November 12, 2019 

SUBJECT: Land Sale on Lorraine Road 

1) PURPOSE 

The purpose of the report is to obtain Council 's approval to enter into a sale agreement 
for a City owned lot on the west side of Lorraine Road. 

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 

Located on the west side of Lorraine Road, north of the Friendship Trail, exists a parcel 
of vacant land. The lot measures 200' x 1647' for 7.5 acres in size. An aerial photo of 
the property, highlighted by the blue dot is below: 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

The sale of the property is guided by the City's policy and procedure under By-law 
6620/75/18 and has been followed. 

The parcel is to be purchased by Robert and Tanya Kriter for $230,000 plus HST and 
includes a buy back clause to build within two years. 

Title matters will need to be dealt with and the buyers are aware that the City intends to 
resolve them. 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

a) Do nothing. 

13



If nothing is done, the City would retain ownership. 

b) Other Options 

NIA. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 

N/A. 

6) ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A - Offer to Purchase from Robert and Tanya Kriter 
Appendix B - By-law for Sale 

7) RECOMMNDATION 

That By-law 6706/70/19 Being A By-Law To Authorize Entering Into An Agreement Of 
Purchase And Sale be amended to remove Helen Lliodromitis; 

That the City enters into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale with Robert and Tanya 
Kriter for $230,000 plus HST. 

That the Mayor, Clerk and City Solicitor be authorized to sign and execute any 
and all documents respecting the sale of these lands. 

8) SIGNATURES 

Prepared on October 30, 2019 by: Reviewed and respectfully submitted by: 

. .... ..-, ~-
...-/~- . ... . 
~~ . . ' V' . . 

i.FUlU'J'"'quilina, MCIP, RPP, CPT Peter Senese 
Director of Planning and Development Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Planning and Development Department, Planning Division Report 2019-168 Page 2 of 2 

14



~~A Ontario Real Estate 
~Association 

Form 500 
for use in lhe Province of Onlorio 

Agreement of Purchase and Sale 
Commercial 

This Agreement of Purchase ond Sole doted 1his J.<? ......................... day of .A..~fil!~~ .................................................................. , 20)2 ............ ; .. . 

. ROBERT KRITER AND TANYA K.RITER BUYER . ................................................................................................................................................. ...................... , agrees lo purchase from 
(Full legal names of oll Buyers) · 

. CITY OF PORT COLBORNE . SELLER . ...................................................................................................................................................................................... , the following 
(Full legal nomes of oll Sellers) 

REAL PROPERTY: 

Ad.dress W!.~.~Qg.Mm~.R~~~ ........... .................................................................... , .......... , ...................... , ............................................. .. 

irontirig on the . W.!?.~t .............................. .-..... ....... , ..... 1 ....................................... side of .~.QJ~J~.f..JN~.gP. ........... , .............. , ....................... . 
in the .G~.T.Y .. 9f. ................................. .r.~~.G~J.9.Rm.~ ................................................................................................................................ . 

and having o frontage of .f.9.q.~ .................................................... : .. more or less by a depth of }§.~?..~ ... , .................................... more or le.ss 

and legally described as ~MI.~.f.~~.=?.~.~:JQ.~Q.~ ................................................... ; .... ; ... :.: ........... .-.... _. .................................................. .. 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. · · · · · · · · · it~9~i · d~;~ripii~~· ~F ·1~~;r i~a~cii~9 · ~·~;~,;;~-~i; ·~~' <l~;~;i·b~ci· ~1;~~i;~;~r · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. · · · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · (the "property") 

PURCHASE PRICE: Dollars (CDN$) }~Q .. 9.QQ .. 9.9. ................... , ............................ , .. . 

.T.~9.H.~~~~~.Th~.i:h'.J~9.~~.~1:1q,: .................. , .. : .. , ................. .......................................... · .... , ........ ,,.,. ........................ ,. ... _. ....... , .......... Dollars 

DEPOSIT: Buyer subll)its .Y.P.9.1:1.~~~~P..~~.11~~ ....................................................................... ; .. ·; ....... ..... · ............................ : ............................... . 
(Herewith/Upon Acceplonce/os olherwise described in this,~9ree!'leQI) 

.IhF.~.~ .. I.~9.~!~~~~ ......................................................................................... Dollars (CDN$) .~,,9.9.9:9.9 .... : ................... : ............................... . 

by negotiable cheque payable lo ... RQY.Af:..1~Pb:Q~.JIB.GJ~E.~TY. ............................................................................. "Deposit Holder• 
to be held in frost pending compl!!lian qr ()lher te,rmlnqtion of ihis Agreement and la _be credited toward t~e Purchase Prife on completion. For the purposes 
<?f this Agreement, ".Upon Acceptance" .shall riie~n ihat the Buyer is required to deliver the deposit lo the Depcisil Holder wilhin 24 hours 9f the acceptance 
of this Agreement. The parties to this Agreement hereby acknowledge thot, unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement, the Deposit Holder shall place 
the deposi1 in trust in the Deposit Hold~r's non~niere~fbeoring Real Estate Trust Account and no interest. shall be earned, received qr pqid on the deposit. 

Buyer agrees to pay the balance as more partkularly set out in Schedule A attached. 

$CHEDULE(S) A .,. ........................ ................................... , .................. ............................. attached hereto form(s) part of this Agreement. 

1. IRREVOCABILITY: This offer shall be irrevocable by .~.~Y.~L ........................................................................ until §;9.9. .......... P. :~L .... on 
(Seller/Buyer) !o, m./p.m .. ) 

1he .7.~ .................... day of .Q~~.9.~~f... ....................... , ................................................ ., 20 .. (~ ............... , aher which time, if not accepted, this 
offer shall be null and void and the deposit shall be returned lo the Buyer in full without interesi. · 

2. COMPLETION DATE: This Agreement shall be completed by no later than 6:00 p.m. on the .~~ ..................... day of .f..<?!?.~.~.r:Y. .................. , . 

.......................................................... , 20.?.Q .......................... Upon completion, vacant possession of the property shall be given to the Buyer 
unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement. 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S): ~ 
m The lrodomark. REAlTOR®AREALTORS®, MLS®, Muhiple Usling Service1® and associated lagas are ownod ar conlralled by l.Jl The Canadian Real Eilolo nocialion (CREAi and Identify lhe real aslale profe .. ionols who are members of CREA and lhe 
1.u,10111· qvofity of service1 they provide Used under ricense. 
II:) 2019, Ontario Real Esto le Anociotion !"OREA 1. All rlghls !"""'ed. Thi• form WOJ d~veloped by OREA for lhe use and reprodudion 
br ils members and licensees only. Any other ·use or repraoudron Is prohlblled excepl w11h prior written consenl of OREA. Do nol aller 
when prioling or reproduciog lho slondord pre-set por1100. OREA boors no liability for your use of lhis form. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS(S): ~ 

Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 1 of 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

15



3. NOTICES: The Seller hereby appoints the lisling Brokerage as agent fo r the Seller for the purpose of giving and receiving notices pursuant to this 
Agreement. Where a Brokerage (Buyer's Brokerage) hos entered into a representation agreement with the Buyer, the Buyer hereby appoints the 
Buyer's Brokerage as agent for the purpose of giving and receiving notices pursuant to this Agreement. Where a Brokerage represents both 
the Selle r and the Buyer (multiple r epresentation), the Brokerage shall not be appointed or authorize d to b e agent for 
either the Buye r o r the Selle r for the purpose of giving and receiving notices. Any notice relating hereto or provided for herein shall 
be in writing. 1(1 addition to any provision contained herein and in any Schedule hereto, this offer, any counter-offer, nciiice of acceptance thereof 
or any notice to be given or received pursuant lo this Agreement or o~y ~chedule hereto (any of them, "Document") shall be deemed given a nd 
received when delivered personally or hand delivered lo the Address for Service provided in the Acknowledgement below, or where a facsimile 
number or email address is provided herein, when tronsmilted electronically lo that facsimile number or email address, respectively, in which case, 
the signature(s) of the porly (parties) shall be deemed to be original. 

FAX No.: ..... ..................................................... ..................... . 
(For delivery of Documents to Seller) 

FAX No.: ............. .. ............................................ ............................... . 
(For delivery of Documents lo Buyer) 

Email Address: ............................ ....... ........... ... ......... .. .... ...... .... . 
(For delivery of Documents lo Seller) 

Email Address: ...... .... ................... ................ ........... , ................. , ....... . 
· · • · (For delivery of Dotumenls to 'Buyer) 

4. CHATTELS INCLUDED: ... ... .... ................... .... .... ............ ...... .-.... .... ................ ..... : ... ;.; ... : ......... : ................... c . ..... ...... , .•• •• , . .. ... . ... .. ..... . ..... .. .. 

NONE 

Unless otherwise stated in this Agreement or any Schedule h_ereto, Seller agrees to convey all fixtures and challels included in the Purchase Price free 
from all lien~. encumbrances or claims affecting the said fixtures arid chattels. 

S. FIXTURES EXCLUDED: ....... ......... ... ..... ..... ................. .. ............. . ............................................ ............................. .. ... ..................... .... ..... . 

NONE 

6. RENTAL ITEMS (Including Lease, Lease to Own): The following equipment is rented and not included in the Purchase Price. The Buyer agrees 
to assume the rental controct(s), if assumable: · 

NONE 

The Buyer agrees to co-opera le and execute such documentation as may be required lo facilitate such assumption. 

7. HST: If the sale of the property (Real Property a_s described above) is subject to Harmonized Sales Tax (HST), then such 
tax shall be in addition to the Purchase Price. The Seller will nal collect HST if the Buyer provides lo the Seller a warra nty that the Buyer is 
registered under the Excise Tax Act ("ETA"), together with a copy cif the Buyer's ETA registration, a warranty that the Buyer shall self-assess and remit 
the HST payable and file the prescrib_ed form and shall indemnify the Seller in respect of any HST payable. The foregoi~g warranties shall not merge 
but shall survive the completion of the transaction. If the sole of the properly is not subject lo HST, Seller agrees fo certify on or before closing, that the 
lransactiori is not subject lo HST. Any HST on chattels, If applicable, is not included in the Purchase Price. 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S): ~ 
ITT The trademarks REAITOR®, REALTORS®. MLS®, Mvbiple Usting Services® and ouocloted logos ore owned or con~olled by 
LJ::! The Conodiori Real htote Allocfotion (CREAi and Identify tho reol ufole profe,..ionals who a re members of CREA and the · 
.uuo• quality of service.s they provide. Used under Gcense. 
© 2019, Ontario Real Eslote A>sociollan !'OREA 1· All right• reserved. Thi• form was. developed by OREA fer the use ond reproduction 
by Us membe" and licensees only. Any olher uso or reproiluction js prohibiied excepl wilh prior w11Hcn consent of OREA, Do not oiler 
when printing or reproducing the stonaord pre-set portion. OREA bears no liability for your uso of this form. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS(S): ~ 

Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 2 of 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

16



8. TITLE SEARCH: Buyer shall be allowed until 6:00 p.m. on the } .. c:l.~.Y.~ .... ..... day of .. P.!:tQ!:.~Q .. ~~Q~.i.nK .................................... , 20 ................ , 
(Requisition Dote) to exomlne the title to the property ot his own expense and until the earlier of: {i) thirty days from the later of the Requisition Dote or 
the dote on which the conditions in this Agreement ore fulfilled or otherwise waived or; {ii) five days prior to completion, to satisfy himself that there 

d. k d d f· · t· ff 1· th h - (residential buildin1t lol 1 b ore no autstan 1ng wor qr ers or e 1c1ency no ices a ec ing e property, t at tis present use .. ................................ 9. . .•... . . . . •••. .....• . . . . . ..• may e 
lawfully continued and that the principal building may be insured against risk of fire. Seller hereby consents to the municipality or other governmental 
agencies releasing to Buyer details of o il outstanding work orders and deficiency notices affecting the property, and Seller agrees to execute ond 
deliver such further authorizations in this regard os Buyer may reosonobly require. 

9. FUTURE USE: Seller and Buyer ogree that there is po representation or warranty of any kind that the futu re intended use of the pfoper,ly by Buyer is 
or will be lawful except as may be specifically provided for in this Agreement. 

10. TITLE: Provided that the title to the properly is good and free from all registered restrictions, charges, liens, and encumbrances except as otherwise 
spedficolly provided in this Agreement and save and except for (a) any registered restrictions or ~qvenon ts that run wit~ the land pr.ovidtl]g that such 
are campUed with; !bl any registered municipal pgreements and registered agreements with puo.ii~ly regulated u-tilmes providing such ·have been 
complied wilh, or security hos heen posted to ensure compliance and completion, as evidenced by a letter lrom the relevant municipality or regulated 
utility; (c) any minor easements for' the su_pply of dom.e_sJic utility or relecommu_riicafion services to the property or odjqqi~f properties; and '(d) dny 
eos~m~nls fo r drpinoge, ·storm or sanitary sewers, public utjlity lines, telecommunication lines, ·cable television lines or other services vthich do not 
materially affect the use of the property. If within the specified limes referred lo in paragraph 8 any valid objection to title or to any oulslondi!]g work 
orc;ler or deficiency notice, or 1o the fact ihe, sciid present use. may nor lawfully be continued, or that th.e principal building rnoy not be insure_d ago inst 
risk of fjre is m.od,e in writ)ng.to Seller o,ncl. ~hi.ch Seller is un,rible or unwilling to remove, remedy~~ sc;itisfy_9r 9~iciLn insugince .;~ve .~ii?_except 0gotnsl 
risk of fire (Title lnsurcince) in favour of the Buyer and oriy mortgagee, (with oil related costs at the expense of the Sel.ler)! and which .~uyer will not 
waive, 1his Agreement notwithstanding any intermediate acts or negoli'otions }n respect of such objections, shall be at on end and all monies paid 
shall be returned without interest or d~duction and Seller, li~ting Brokerag~ arid Co-operating Brokerage shall not be ]iable for any c:qsts or damages. 
Save as to any valid objection so mode by such day arid except For any objection going to the root of the title, Buyer shall be conclusively deemed to 
hove accepted Seller's title to the property. 

11 . CLOSING ARRANG~EMENTS: Where each of the Seller and Buyer retciln o lawyer lo complete the Agreement of Pur.chose a nd Sole of.the property, 
a rid where the tronscictioh will be completed by electronic registration pursuant to Port Ill of the land Regi~lrotion R.efor_m Act, R,S,O. 199.Q, ·chapter 
L4 and the Electronic Registration Act, .. S.O. 1991, Chapter 44, and any amendments thereto, the Seller and Buyer acknowledge and agree that 
the exchange of closing Funds, non-regiJtrable document~ and other items (the "Requisite DeliVl'!ries") and the releQs·e theteof to the Seller artd Buyer 
will (a) not occur at the some time as the registrotioQ of th~ transfer/deed (and any other ?ocyme_nts ·in.t!! 11ded tq !ie.regisl\jred in _cqnn"l~lion wilh the 
completion of this tra·nsacjion) and (6) be subject to conditions whereby ihe laWyer{s) receiving any of th.e Requisite D~[iv!'.ries will be required .to hol_d 
some'in 'irust and not release same except in accordance with the terms of o document registration agreement between the said iowyers. The Seller 
and Buyer irrevocably instruct t~e said lawyers lo be bouna by the doc~men! regisiratiqn agr~emeni whjch is recorom.enqed From ti.m~ to time by the 
low Society of Ontario. Unless other-wise ·~greed to by the lawyers, such exchange of Requisite De.liveries sholl occur by the delivery of the Requisite 
Deliveiies of each parry to the office of the lawyer for the either party or such other location o_~reeoble to both lawyers. 

12. DOCUMENTS AND DISCHARGE: Buyer shall not call for the production of any title deed, abstract, survey or other evidence of title to the property 
except such as are in the possession or ,cont.rol of ~ell~r. Jf. requE!sled by B.uyer, Seller will deliver any sketch or s11rvey 9f the properly within Seller's 
control to Buyer as Sf?On os possibie ~od prior to the Requi~ition Dole. If a_ dischqrge of any ~_horge/M0rtgoge held by a c9rporot}9n ir\c;:orporoted 
pursuant to the Trust And Loon Companies Act (Conado), Chartered Bank, Trust Company, Credit Union, Caisse Populoire or Insurance Company 
and whi,ch ls not t9 be assumea by Buyer on ,completion, is riot available in registrable form on completion, Buyer agrees to accept Seller's lawyer's 
pEftson.ol undertaking to obtain! ·out oft~~ d~sing .lu:n9s, a discharge in registrable f9rm and io r.egisler som~, Q! &use ~ame ta Ii~ registered, on 
title"Within a reasonable period of time ofier completion, ·provided that on ot before completion Seller shall provide 't9 Buyer o mprtgcige·stotement 
prepared by ihe moJfgagee setting out t.he ~balance requirea lo obtain the discharge, and, where a real-time electronic cleared funds tronsler system is 
not being used, o dire~tion executed by Seller directirig payment to the mortgagee of the amount required to obtain the discharge out of the balance 
due on completion. 

13. INSP~CTION: Buyer acknowledges having hqd the opportunity to inspect the properly and understands that upon acceptance of this offer.there shall 
b~ a binding agreement of purchase and sale 'between Buyer and Seller. 

14. INSURANCE: All buildings on the property and all other things being purchased shall be and remain until completion ot the risk of Seller. Pending 
completion, Seller shall bold all ins11rance policies, if any, and the proceeds thereof in trust for the parties as their interests may appear and in the 
event of substantial damage, Buyer mpy either terminate this Agreement and have all monies poi? returned wi!hout Interest or qequction or else 
toke the proceeds of any insurance and complete the purchase. No insurance shall be transferred on completion. If Seller is toking back o Charge/ 
Mortgage, or Buyer is assuming a Charge/Mortgage, Buyer shall supply Seller with reasonable evidence of adequate insura nce to protect Seller's or 
other mortgagee's interest on completion. 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S}: C) 
m The trademarks REALTOR® REAJJOR~, MlSl!!l, Mulliple listing Ser;lces® and associated logos are owned or conlrolled by 

The Canadian Reol Estel• A.;sociallon (CREAi and ldenlify tho real eslala professionals who ore members of CREA and the 
....,H quality of mvicoi lhey provide. Used under lcense. 
O 2019, Ontario Real Estala Anociation l"OREA 1· An rig_hb reserved. This form w01 developed by OREA lot tho use and reproduction 
by lb members and liconsoes only. Ally othot use ot reprodudion is prohibilod except with prior written consent of OREA. Do not alter 
wnen prlnllng or reproducing lhe slandard pro-set pot~on. OREA bears no liability for your use of this form. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS(S}: C0 

Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 3 of 6 

WEBForms® Oec/2018 

17



15. PLANNING ACT: This Agreemenl shall be effective lo create on interesl in lhe property only if Seller complies wilh l~e subdivision conlrol provisions 
of lhe Planning Acl by complelion and Seller covenonls lo proceed diligenlly ol his expense to obloin any necessary consent by complelion. 

16. DOCUMENT PREPARATION: The Transfer/Deed shall, save For the Land Transfer Tax Affidovil, be prepared in regislroble Form at lhe expense of 
Seller, and any Charge/Mortgage to be given bock by the Buyer to Seller al lhe expense of the Buyer. If requested by Buyer, Seller covenonls thol lhe 
Transfer/Deed to be delivered on completion shall contain ihe stolemenls conlemploled by Section 50(22) of the Planning Act, R.S.0.1990. 

17. RESIDENCY: {a) Subject to (b) below, the Seller represents and worronls thol the Seller is nol a nd on complelion will not be ci non-resident under the 
non-residency provisions of the Income Tax Act which representation and warronly shall survive and not merge upon the com·plelion of this lronsaction 
a nd the Seller shall deliver lo the Buyer a stolulory declaration that Seller is not then o non-resident of Conodo; 
(b) provided that if the Seller is o non-resident under the noMesidency provisions of the Income Tax Act, the Byyer shall be credited lowords lhe 
Purchase Price wilh the amount, if any, necessary for Buyer to pay to the Minister of Notio_nol Revenue to satisfy Buyer's hability In respect of lox 
payable by Seller und~r the no~·resid~n_cy provisions of lhe Income Tax Act by reason of this sqle. Buyer shall noi claim s_uch credit If Sell.er delivers 
on completion the prescribed certificate. -

18. ADJUS-iMENTS: Any renls, mortgage interest, realty taxes including local improvement roles and unmetered public or private ulility charges ond 
unmelered cost of fuel , os applicable, shcill be apportioned and allowed to ihe day of completion, 'the day of completion :itself to be opportione~ to 
Buyer. 

19. TIME 'LIMITS: Time. shall In all respects be of the essence hereof provided that the lime for 'doing or completing of any rnotter provided For herein may 
be e~lended or abridged by on agreement in writing signed by Seller and Buyer or by their respective lawyers who may be specifically oulhorized 
in that rega-rd. -

20. PROPERTY ASSESSMENT: The Buyer and Seller hereby acknowledge lhot lhe Province of Onloria has implemented current value assessment 
and properties may be re-assessed _on on a nnual basis. The Buyer and Seller a gree thol no claim will be made ogoinsl the Buyer or Seller, or ony 
Brokerage, Broker or Salesperson, forpny changes in property "tax as o result ol o re--ossessment of the property, save and except any properly loxes 
that accrued prior to the complelion of this tronsoclion. 

21. TENDE'!i: Any lender of documents or money hereunder may be mode upon Seller or Buyer o,r their respective lawyers on the day sel for completion. 
Money shall be tendered with funds 9rown on a lawyer's trusl occounl in the form of a bank drcih, certified chegue or wire transfer using the Lorge 
Vofue Transfer System. 

22. FAMILY LAW ACT: Seller warrants ihol spousal consent is not nece.ssory lo this transaction under the provisions of the Family Low Acl, R.S.O. 1990 
unless the spouse of the Seller hos executed lhe consent hereinoher provided. 

23. UFFI: S~ller represents and warrants to Buyer that during the time Seller has owned the properly, Seller hos not caused any building on the property 
tci be 'insuloied with insulation containing ureoformolde~yde, and that to the best of Seller's knowle~ge no building on the properly contains or hos 
ever .coniciin~d insulaiion ihot contoips ureoformoldehyde. This warranty shall survive ond notp1erge on the compl~tion of i~is transaction, ond if Jhe 
buiiding is port oJ a multiple unit building, this warranty shall only ppply to that port of the bu_ll.ding which is the subject ol this tronsoction. 

24. LEGAL, ACCOUNTING AND ENVIRONMENTAL ADVICE: The parties acknowledge thot any information provided by the brokerage is 'nol 
legal, tax or environmental advice, and that ii hos been recommended thol lhe parties obtain independent professional o9vice prior to signing this 
doc;ument. 

25. CONSUMER REPORTS: The Buyer is hereby notified that a consumer report containing credit and/or personal information 
may be referred to ·in connection with this transaction. 

26. AGREEMENT IN WRITING: If there is conflict or discrepancy between any provision added to this Agreement (including any Schedule attached 
hereto) and any provision in lhe standard pre-sel portion hereof, the a dded provision shall supersede the slondard pre:set provision to the extent of 
such coriAict or discrepancy. This Agreement including any Schedule ottoched hereto, shall constitute the entire Agreement between Buyer a nd Seller. 
There is no representation, worronly, collateral agreement or condition, which a ffects this Agreement other than as expressed herein. For lhe purpos!!S 
of this Agreement, Seller means vendor and Buyer meons purchaser. This Agreement shall be read with all changes of gender or number reguired by 
the context. 

27. TIME AND DATE: Any reference to o time and dote in this A.greement shall mean the time and dole where the property is localed. 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S): ~ 
m lhe ~odemorlu REAlJOR<!D REAlJORS®, MIS®, Muhiple Usling Service'® and ouocioted logos a rt owned or controlled by 
1.1::!1 The Canadian Real Eslote A;sociotion (CREAi ond identify tho reol estate profeuionols who are members of CREA ond the 
11uu11 quality of service.s they provide Used under Gcense. 
© 2019, Ontario Re?I E•tole Auociolion !'OREA'). All rights reserved. This form was developed by OREA lor tho use and reproduction 
by ifs member> ond licensees only. Any other use or repro<lucllon Is prohibited excepl with prior wnHen coniont of OREA. Do not alter 
w!ien prinllrig or reproducing the stondord pre-set portron. OREA bears no liability for your use of this form. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS{S): ~ 

Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 4 of 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

18



2 8. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: The heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the undersigned are bound by the terms herein. 
SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED in the presence of: IN WITNESS whereof I have hereunto set my hand and seal: 

iwi1~~~·;1· · ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · • (Seal) 
jt>;,'t~l ............................... .. 

iwi1~~~·;1·· ··· · · ········· ·· · · · · · · ···· ··· · ······ .. ·· ..... · ......... · · ·· ·· ·· ··· • (Seal) io~·,~1· '· ······· ··· ···· : ............. . 

I, lhe Undersigned Seller, qgre~ to the above offer. I hereby irrev!=Jcobly instruct my lawyer to poy directly to the brokerage(s) with whom I hove agreed 
to pay ~ommission, the unpaid balance of the commission together with applicoble Harmonized Sales Tax (and any other taxes as may hereafter be 
applicable), from the proceeds of the sole prior lo any payment lo the undersigned on completion, as advised by the brokerage(s) to my lawyer. 
SIGNED, SEALED _AND DELIVERED in the presence of: IN WITNESS whereof I have hereunto set my hand and seal: 

iwi·,~~~~f ....... :., ........................................... ; ............. . . ~ ............ , .... ..................................... , ............... . 
(Seller/ Authorized Signing Officer) • (Seal) 

x 
io~·,~,..-······· · ········ · ···· · ······ · ··· 

•• ,(Seal) 
............................................................................... 
(Witness) · · it>;;,~1 · · · ···· ·· · ········· .. ··········· 

SPOUSAL CON~ENT: The undersigned spouse of the Seller hereby consents lo the disposition evidenced herein pursuant lo ihe proyisions of the family 
Low Act, R.S.0.1990, cind hereby agrees to execute all necessary or incidental documents to give full force a·nd effect to the sole evidenced herein. 

' • ' ' '"''"'"."'•"'••• .. •••"••"" ""' ••••••"'••••••••""'••••••••••"""••••••••• •• .. • •••"""'• " •". I {W(t~~~·si" .................... ·· · · · · · · · · (Sp.ous7/ · (Seo~ io~·t~) ............................. .. 

CONFIR1'\ATIO_N OF ACCEPTANCE: Nof'!.Vithstonding anything coii)ciined h~rein tq the conlra·ry, I confirm !~.is Agreement wiih o)I changes boJh typed 

and written was finally accepted by a ll parties al .......... : ................... lhis .............. day of ........... ._ ......... _,_.,. ........ ........ ........................... , 20 ..... , .... . 
- (o.m.(p.m.J 

.?S .....•........ : ......................................................................... : ..... . 
(Signature of Seller or Buyer) · 

INFORMATION O~ BROKERAGE(S) 

Listing Brokerage .RQY.A..l-.. ~~P.A..G.~ .. NR~.M.~IT.............. . ................... ..... .......... .. ..... ~9.Q.~).~J.H!.@Q .............................. . 
· (Tel.No:) 

:!?.~~.~~~~~~~ ........ ................... , ... : ...................... "······················· ·· ·'·· ···········'··;.; ........... : ......... : ......... ·.; ...... ....... . \, .. .. ............ :. 
· - · · · · · (Sole!perion/Broker/Broker of Record Nome) .. · · · 

Co-op/Buyer Brokerage················:'·"····································'···•·!'·····················"············ ·· .-······ ................. ............. ~ ..... . ....... . . .. . (Tel.No.) · · .· · · · · · ··· : 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · is~i~;i>~;~~·~JB~~k~; ia,:.;i;~; · ;;i ii~~"c;;;rN;;,;;~i · · ·, · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

\ acknowledge rec~ipt of my signed copy of this a:ccepted Agr~ement of 
Purchase and Sole and I authorize the Brokerage to forward a copy to my lawyer. 

is~i1~;1······ · ······················ · ···· ·:· ········· :· ········· · ······· fo;;i~i········ · ············ 

is~i1~;1 .. ........................................... , ........ ,........... io;;i~i· · ····· · ···· · ········ 

Address for Service ....... ..................................... ....................... _ ........ . 

··········· ············································· (T~1:·N~:;··· ········ · · · ·········· ········· 

Seller's Lawyer ................... ... .. ..... .. .. ... .............................................. . 

Address .. . , ...... ... ......... ....... ..... ....... .-............ .......... ............. .. : ........ : .. : 

Email ············ ················:· ························--············ :····-················-·-·.·· 

I acknowledge recejpt of my sig~ed copy of this qc~pled Agreement of 
Purchase and Sole and I authorize the Brokerage lo f9rword a copy lo my lawyer. 

ii1~;.~;r······· ···· ····-······ .... ,, .. , ................................. 'io~i~r .. ·········· ········· 

is.~).~;1 · · · ···· · · · · · · · · · · .. · ·· · · · · · · ·· · · · · ·· · '·· · · ·· · · · · · ··· · · · · · · · ._..' ·io;;i~f , · ··· · · · ·· ·· · ··· · ·· ·· = 

Addr11.ss for Service ... ; .. , . .-., .... .......... .... , ......... . :: .. , .. --;; ............. ........... , .. . 

························································ ff~r·N~.1·································· 

~uyer's Lawyer ........... ........................................... ............................ . 

Add res~ ..................... . .......... . .... ................... '······ · ....... ...... ..•... ......•..... 

Email ........................ _. ................................. ................... ............... ... . 

{t~CN~:)··········'····················· ··········· (i'.;;.:.·i\i.;-:j· ································ {t~i:·N~_y·· ··············· ····················· ·· · ·· (F·.;;.:_·N'.;-f································ 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY COMMISSION TRUST AGREEMENT 

To: Co-operolin9 Brokero9e shown on the Foregojn9 Agreement of Purchase and Sole: 
In c9nsiderolion For th_e Co-operating Brokerage procvrlng the foregoing Agreement of Purchase and Sole, I hereby declare that all moneys received qr receivable by me in 
c;onneclion with the Transaction as contemplated in the MLS" Rules and Regulations of my Real Estate Boord shell be receivable ond held in trust. This ~weement shell constitute 
a Commission Trust Agreement os defined in the MLS" Rules and shall be subject lo and governed by the MLS" Rules pertaining to Commission Trust. 

DATED as bf the dote and time of the occeplonce ol the foregoing Agreement of Purchase a nd Sole. Acknowle·d9ed by: 

iA~·,h~ri~~·.ri~·i;;~·ci·;_i.·~· ii~ii~9·5;~k~~~~;· · ·· ·· · · ······ · ··.-··············· ··· ···· ········· ·······- ·-···· --

m The trodemorb REALTOR® RfALTOR5e, Ml.SC!!>, Multiple li11ing Service.0 and auacialed lagai ore owned or controlled by 
L£!I The Canadian Real fslole Auociattan ~EAi and identify the real e1lole p<oleuionoli who are rnembets of CREA and the 
...,,,.... qvolity of services they provide. Used under Gcense. · 
C> 2019, Onlorio Real Eslolc Anociolion l"ORfA 1. All rights reserved. This form VfOS developed by OREA for the use and reproduction 
by iii members ond licensees only. Any other use or reproouclian is prohlbiled except wilh prror written consent of OREA. Oa not alter 
wlton prlnling or reproducing Iha standard pro-sot portion. OREA bean no liability for your use of this form. Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 5 of 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

19



~~A Ontario Real Estate 
~Association 

Schedule A 

Form 500 
Agreement of Purchase and Sale - Commercial 

for use in the Province of Ontario 

This Schedule is attached la and farms part of the Agreement of Purchase and Sale between: 

. ROBERT.KRITERANDTANYAKRlTER BUYER . .......................................................................................................................................................... .. , ...................................... and 

SELLER: _gff.Y..Q.f..f'.Q~:J' .. g.Q~~-Q.~ ........................................................................................................ ......................................... . 

fo r the purchase and sale of .Y!/'§ .. ~.9.™lli~ .. ~.9.~.~ ................................. ........................................ J'.~~ .G~~!?.9.~!?-.<? ..... , .......... ............. .... . 

-~~K?..Y.~ .. , .... .. ............... , ......... . ,. .... ,. ........... doted the )§ ........ , .. ...... ,. day of .A~.tg~~?J ....... ................................ , ...... , ...... .. ., 20.~~ .... .. , ... .. . , . , 
Buyer agrees ta pay the balance as fallows: 

purchas~rs. agr~e to pay the ~alance of the purchase price, by cash or certified cheque, on closing, SLJbj ect to 
adjustments. 

ln the event the purchaser fails to commence the construction of a residential dwelling within twenty-four (24) 
months from the closing of this transaction, the se11er shall be at liberty to demand the repurchase of the properly at 
seventy-five percent (75%) of the purchase price and the pnrchaser shall sell to the seller the property contained 
herein for '·$ 187,500.00 free and dear and clear of all encumbrances. This term shall survive the completion of this 
transaction. 

This farm must be initialed by all parties lo the Agreement of Purchase and Sale. 

INITIALS OF BUY~R(S): ~ 
ITT The tmdemorb REAUOR\!l REALTORS®, fl,\lSC!!J, Muhiplc listing SeMces<!I and anocioted logos m-e owned or controned by 
l..[! The Canadian Roal Estate Anociation (CREAi and identify the roof esloto profouionols who ore membets of CREA and the 
,....,,.. quolity of sorvkos they provide. Used under Gcense. 
Cl 2019, Ontario _Real Estate Anociolion 1•0REA'J. All rights reserved. This form was dove loped by OREA fo r the use and repioduclion 
by its members and licensees only. Any other uso or reproducllon Is prohibited except with prior written consent of OREA. Do not alter 
wnon prtnllng or reproducing the standard pre-set portton. OREA boors no liability tor your use of this fa<m. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS(S): ~ 

Form 500 Revised 20 19 Page 6 af 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

20



~~A Ontario Real Estate 
~Association 

Form 320 
for use in the Province of Ontorio 

Confirmation of Co-operation 
and Representation 

BUYER: . RQ.J?.J;;Kf..Kfil.T.f;;R.ANP. . .TANY.A .. ~IBTIJ~B-........................................... ....................... ................. .. ... ..... ................... .. ..... ... . 

SELLER: .G~IT .. 9.f.f.9.RI.G9.~"!?.Q~g··· ·················································· .. ········ .. ············· .. ············· .. ·········· .. ······································· 
For the lransoclion on the properly known as: )Y/~ .. ~.Q~~ .. ~9.~~ ....................................... ?9.~.991~~~~ .................. ).}~~.YL .... . 
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS: For the purposes ol lhis ConfirmQllon of Co-operation ond Represenlolion: 
"Seller" includes a vendor, o landlord, 1.essor, or a prospedive, seller, vendor, landlord or lessor .ond "Buyer" includes o purchaser, o tenant, lessee or 
o prospeclive, buyer, purchaser, lena~I or lessee and "sale" includes a lease, and "Agreemenl of Purchase and Sole" includes on Agreement lo Lease. 
Co,111mission shall be de~med to include-pther remuneralion. 

·The 'following information is confirmed by ihe undersigned salesperson/broker repr!lsenlatives of the BJakerage(s).11 a Co·operaling Brokerage is involved 
in the transadio~, the brokerages agree to co:opefate, in consideration of, and on the terms and conditions as sei out below. 

DEClARATiON OF INSURANCE: The undersigned salesperson/broker· representative(s) of the Brokerage(s) hereby declare that he/she is insured as 
required by the Real Estate and Business Br.akers Act, 2002, (REBM). 

1. LISTING BROKERAGE 

a) 0 The _Listing Brokerage represenls lhe interests of the Seller in lhis transoclion. fl is further understood and agreed thQt: 

l) 0 The Lisling Brokerage js not representing or providing Cuslomer Service to lhe Buyer. 
(If t!ie Buyer is working wilh a Co-operaling Brak~rqge, Section 3 is lo b!'l compleled by Co-operating Brokerage) 

2) 0 The listing Brokera~e 'is providing Cuslomer Service lo the Buyer. 

b) 0 MULTIPLE REPRE~ENTATION: The Psting Brokerage hos ent_ered inlo a Buyer Repr~sentalion Agreement with the B1,1Yer and 
represenls lhe inleri:st~ pl the ~~lier_ and the Buyer, wilh lheir .. consent, for this lrans?clion .. The Listing Brokerag~ must be impartial and 
equally prolecl the inlere~ls ,of tbe Seller and the Buyer in this transaction. The listing Brokerage hos o duty ol fyll disclosure to both 
the Seller and lhe Buyer, including a requirement to disclose all factual information about the properly known to the Lisling Brokerage. 
H.owever, the Lisl(ng Bfokerage shall not disd?se: 

• Thal lhe Seller moy .or w\11 accept less lhan the li~ted price, unless otherwise instructed In writing by the S_eller; 
• \bot the Buyer moy or will pay' l)lpre than the oflerectprjce, urless otherwise Instructed in wriling by the 'Buyer; 
• The motivation elf or personal iriforn\otion bbaul the Seller .or Buyer, unless otherwise instrueted in ·writing by the parly 19 which ihe 

information applies, or unless f9ilure lo di~cfose \You!d COflSl.itute frciudulent1 ,unlawful or Unethical practice; 
• The price the Buyer should offer or the wlce. the Seller shgtild ,accepl; 
• And; l~e Li sling Brokerage ~hall not disclose to the Buyer the terms' of a ny other offer. 

However, ii Is understood that,_Fadual market information qbo"ut i:omparable properties qnd inlormalion known to the lislin,g Brokerage 
concerning potential us~s for the property will be disdsi.sJ'!9 to b!?lh Seller and B!!yer ta assist them to come to thejr own c;onduslons. 

Additional commenls and/or disclosures by listing Brokerage: (e.g. The Listing Brokerage represenls more than one Buyer offering on this property.) 

2. PROPERTY SOLD BY BUYER BROKERAGE - PROPERTY NOT LISTED 

0 The Brokerage ............ -.. _..-._. .......... represent the Buyer ond lhe property ls not Ii sled wilh any real esfole brokerage. The· Brokerage will be paid 
(doei/daes not) · . 

D 
or: D 

by lhe Seller in accordance wi th a Seller Customer Service Agreement 

by lhe Buyer direclly 

Addilianol comments and/or disclosures by Buyer Brokerage: (e.g. The Buyer Brokerage represents more lhon one Buyer offering on this property.) 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S)/SELLER(S)/BROKERAGE REPRESENTATIVE(S) (Where applicable) 

C) 
BUYER CO·OPERATING/BUYER BROKE.RAGE SELLER 

m The trademorh REAUOR®, REAlTORSC!I. MLS®, Multiple Usfing Se"'ices0 and o"ocioted logos ore owned or controlld by 
LI] The Conodion Real Estele A.uociolion (CREAi and idenlify the reol e•lale profusionob who ore members ol CREA ond the 
.....,,.. quality of services they provide. Used under Gcense. 
© 2019, Ontario Reel Eslale Alsociolion f'OREA"J. All righ ts reserved. This form l'''" developed by OREA for tho use and reproduction 
by ill members ond licensees only. Any olhor uso or repraauclion Is prohibited oxcepl \'{ilh prior written coruonl of OREA. Do not alter 
when printing or reproducing the standard pre-iel porli0n. OREA beers no liability far your use of this form. 

C) 
LISTING BROKERAGE 

Form 320 Revised 2019 Page 1of2 

WEBFarms® Oec/2018 

21



3. Co-operating Brokerage completes Section 3 and Listing Brokerage completes Section 1. 

CO-OPERATING BROKERAGE· REPRESENTATION: 

a) D The Co-operating Brokerage represents lhe inleresls of lhe Buyer in !his lronsoclion. 

b) D The Co-operaling Brokerage is providing Customer Service lo lhe Buyer In this lransoction. 

c) D The Co-opera ling Brokerage is nol representing the Buyer ond has not enlered inlo an agreement to provide customer service(s) lo the Buyer. 

CO-OPERATING BROKERAGE· COMMISSION: 

a) D The Listing Brokerage will pay lhe Ce><>peroling Brokerage the commission as indicated in lhe MLS® inlormcition for the property 

..... ...... ... ... ... . ... ..... ..... ..... .. ................... .... ... .... ····.···· .. ..... to be paid from the amount paid by the Seller ta the Listing Brokerage. 
(Commission As tndicoted In MLS' Information) 

b) D The Co-operating Brokerage will be paid as follows: 

Additional comments and/ or disclosures by Co-operaiing Brokerage: {e.g., The Co-operating Brokerage represents more than ·one Buyer offering on !his 
properly.) 

Commission Y'i,ll be payable as described above, plus applicable laxes. 

COMMISSION TRUST AGREEMENT: If the above Ce><>peroting Brokerage is receiving payment of commission from the Listing Brokerage, then the 
ogreemenl between Listing Brokerage cind Co-operating Brokerage further Includes o Commission Trusl Agreement, lhe consideiolion for which is lhe 
C0-0perating Brokerage procuring on offer for a !rode of lhe properly, acceploble to the Seller. This Commission Trust Agreeme-nt shall be subjecl to and 
governed by lhe MLS® rules a nd regulal~ons pertaining to commission frus!s o f the listing Brokerage's local real eslale board, if the local board's MLS® 
rules and r~gulolions so.provide. Otherwise, lhe provisions of lhe OREA recommended MLS® rules and regulations shall apply to this 'commission Trusl 
Agreement. for the purpose qf l hi~ Commission Trusl Agreement, the Commission Trust Amount shcill be lhe a~ount noted In SE!clion 3 above. The Usling 
Brokerage hereby declares that all monies received In connection with lhe trade shall constitute a Commission Trusl and shall be held, in lrusl, for the 
Co-operating Brokerage'under lhe lerms of the applicable MLS" rules ·and regl,Jlolions. 

SIGNED BY THE BROKER/SALESPERSON REPRESENTATIVE(SJ OF THE BROKERAGE(S) (Where applicable) 

ROYALLEPAGENRCREALTY 
.iN~~~~ru-;,;;,g ·a;~k"~;~-9~; ·· · · · · ·· · · · ·· · · ·· ···· · ·· · · ·· ·· ··· ·· · ····· · ·· · · ···· · · · ··· · · · · · · · ··· · ·· 

...... ... .... ......... ..... ... ............ .... ...... _!._•··· ···•1'••······ ··············""' '" '•·· ···-··· -~-~~ -~.J?.E . ~~: ......... ............................. J~~g,9,g~~.9.ITt.t? ............... . 

Tel: .... , .... ...... , ....... , ... . , .... ......... Fox:···: ··············,·················· ··········· Tel: .. (?.9.?.)..?.?.4::~9.9.9. ....... ... :. Fox: .(9-.Q.?J .?.?.~~} ~ 1.~ ..... : ............. . 

CONSENT F()R MULTIPLE REPRESENTATION (To be con;rpleted only if the Brokerage represents more than one client for the transaction) 

The Buyer/Seller consent with their initials to their Brokerage 
represenlil)g more than one client far this transaction. 

I have received, read, and understand the above information. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

BUYER'S INITIALS SEUER'S INITIALS 

is·19~~i~;~~r ·s;;y;;f · · · · · · · · · ·· · ··· · ··· ·· · · · · · ·· · · · io~1~i ··· ·· · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · ·· · · · · · jsi9~~i~;~· ~rs~1i~·,r · · · · · · · · · · ··· · · ·· · · ·· · · ·· · (o~i~i" · .. · · · ···· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· ·· ·· · 

is·i9~~i~;~·~1 ·s~r~f · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · io~·,~r · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · i5.i9~~i~;~ ~I ·s~1i~·ri · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · j&;i~i · · · · · · · ····· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · 

ITT The trodemarlu REAlTORe REAUORS®. MlS®, Muhiple lb hng Se.vie•>® and associated logos on owned or conlrolled by 
L.ll The Canadian Real fslote JUsociotioo (CREAi ond identify the real estate prafe.uiona~ who ore members af CREA and the 
..... ~,.. quality cf services they provide. Us,ed under lcense. · 
tg> 2019, Ontario Real f•lale Association t•OREA 1· AU rie.hts remved. This form was developed by OREA !or the use and reproduction 
by its members and licensees only. Any other use or repcoduclion Is prohibited except with prror written canienf of OREA. Do not airer 
wnon printing or reproducing the standard pre-set porllon. OREA beers no llability tor your use ol lhls form, Form 320 Revised 2019 Page 2 of 2 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

22



~~A Ontario Real Estate 
~Association 

Schedule A 

Form 500 
Agreement of Purchase and Sale - Commercial 

loi use In tho Province of Onlorlo 

This Schedule Is attached to and forms port of the Agreement of Purchose and Sola between: 

BUYER: .~Q.?..~~'.f..~~.1§1~.ANP..'.f.A~Y.A.KRffgR ................... ......................................... .. .......... ......................................... , and 

SELLER: .G.~IY..Q.f. .I'.Q~T.G.Qk~.QRN~ ..................... .............................................................................................. ; ............................. . 

for lhe purchase and sale of .W.(~ .. !:-.Q~lliJ:: .. .R--.<?.~9 ................................. ........................................ J~n.9.9.!~.<?.m.C? ............. , ................ : .. . 

.,J::.:~.K~Y} ........................... · ....... ,; .......... -...... ·doted the ..1.§ .................. day ol .A~g~~t ................ : ........ ... : .. : .. :·· ··· ..... , ... ; ..... ; 20.J.~ .... .......... . 
Buyer agrees io pay the balance as follows: 

purchasers agree to pay the balance of the purchase price _, by cash or certified cheque, on closing, subject to 
adjustments. -

In the event the purchaser fails to commence the construction of a residential dwelling within twen~-four (24) 
months from the closing of this transaction, the seller shall be at liberty to demand the repurchase of the property at 
seveni:y-ftve percent (75%) of the purchase price and the purchaser shall sell to 'the seller the property contained 
herein for $187 ;500.00 free and clear and clear of all encumbrances. This term shall survive the completion of this 
transaction. 

This form must be initialed by all parties to the Agreement of Purcha3e and Sale. 

INmALS OF ~UYElll! ~~ 
m Tho lrodoma1lu REALTOR01 REA!l~RS®. Ml~. MulUplo U•~•g Smlco.i.® Giid ossocialad logo• 0<e cwned ar can11oUod by 

Tht Conodion Raol Eslole IWC<JO>an (CREAi Ol\d ldonlily ilio iUol o.tolo ptalouionols who are morn~n al CREA and Iha 
quo61y of m•ku lhoy pt .. ndo. Us.<! undet ka•so. 

II) 2019, Onlorla Roal E>lalo Amx:lallan l'OREA1. All rlght>nucNod. Thi> form WOJ de•alapad bv OREA for tho uso and reptodudian 
by its mombois alld t.consoo• only. Any alh0t ••• o< roptoduc6on Is prahibilad 0>copl w(Jh ptloi wfinen toruent ol Oi!EA. Do nol ollo• 
wh•n prlnNng or ttproduclng Iha >landotd pt•"'' por~on. OREA bears no Uabilly for yovr uso ol lhis la1m, 

INITIALS OF SELLERS(S): ~ 

Form 500 Revi5ad 2019 Pog• 8 of 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

23



Appendix B 

The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law No. _ _ ____ _ 

Being a By-law to Authorize Entering Into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale 
with Robert and Tanya Kriter Respecting Part 2 on Plan 59R-10301 

Whereas at its meeting of November 12, 2019, Council approved the 
recommendations of Department of Planning & Development, Report No. 2019-
168, Subject: Land Sale on Lorraine Road; and 

Whereas Council is desirous of entering into an Agreement of Purchase and 
Sale with Robert and Tanya Kriter for the sale of Part 2 on Plan 59R-10301, for the 
purchase price of $230,000 (plus HST); 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne Enacts as 
follows: 

1. That The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne enter into an Agreement 
of Purchase and Sale with Robert and Tanya Kriter for the sale of Part 2 on 
Plan 59R-10301 for the purchase price of $230,000 (plus HST), which 
agreement is attached hereto as Schedule "A''. 

2. That the Mayor and the Clerk be and each of them is hereby authorized and 
directed to sign said agreement, together with any documents necessary to 
complete the conditions of said agreement, and the Clerk is hereby 
authorized to affix the Corporate Seal thereto. 

3. That the City Solicitor be and is hereby directed to prepare and register all 
such documents in the proper Land Registry Office as may be required to 
give full force and effect to this By-law. 

Enacted and passed this 12th day of November, 2019. 

William C. Steele 
MAYOR 

Amber LaPointe 
CITY CLERK 

24



PORT COLBORNE 

Planning and Development Department 
Planning Division 

Report Number: 2019-173 Date: November 12, 2019 

SUBJECT: Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks Response 
Regarding Safe Soil Levels of the CBRA. 

1) PURPOSE: 

The purpose of the report is to provide Council with information on the response 
received from the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) on the 
safe soil levels of the CBRA CoCs and levels for use in Ontario Regulation 153/04. 

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 

On August 13, 2019, through Planning and Development report 2019-123, the following 
was approved by Council: 

"That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to send a Jetter to the 
Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks requesting clarification with 
respect to the safe soil levels of the Port Co/borne Community Based Risk Assessment 
Chemicals of Concern and levels for use in Ontario Regulation 153104." 

On August 23, 2019, the requested letter was sent to the MECP and on October 9, 
2019, a response was received. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

Attached as Appendix A, is the response from the MECP. As it relates to safe soil 
levels of the CBRA CoCs, the MECP states: 

"The proposed Community Based Action Plan identifies a range of risk 
management measures that would be implemented at nickel concentration 
levels between 1, 800 and 8, 000 ppm which will address ministry's concerns 
and help to further reduce the potential for exposure to nickel and other metals 
in soils." 

In response to the safe levels for use in Ontario Regulation 153104, the MECP states: 

"Ontario Regulation 153104 lays out the requirements for a obtaining a Record of 
Site Condition (RSC). Any land use change to a more sensitive land use in the 
province of Ontario requires that a RSC be filed with the ministry: If nickel 
concentrations in soil are found at concentrations above 0. Reg. 153'04 
standards then an overall site remediation can be completed using the soil 
standards found in 0. Reg 153'04 or a risk assessment may be conducted. The 
ministry supports a Qualified Professional relying on ministry accepted 
components of the CBRA to evaluate potential risks from nickel and other metals 

25



in soil on the specific property that requires an RSC." 

It is positive to note that the MECP acknowledges the burdens placed on property 
owners undergoing a change of use on land affected by the CBRA. As Vale's 
Community Based Action Plan has not been finalized, they are recommending 
the City discuss concerns about land use change burdens associated with requiring a 
RSC with Vale. 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
a) Do nothing. 
N/A 
b) Other Options 
N/A 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 
NIA 

6) ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A - Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks response letter. 

7) RECOMMNDATION 

That Planning and Development Department report 2019-173, Ministry of the 
Environment, Conservation and Parks Response Regarding Safe Soil Levels of the 
CBRA be received for information; and 

That the Director of Planning and Development discuss concerns about land use 
change burdens associated with requiring a RSC with Vale. 

8) SIGNATURES 

Prepared on October 31, 2019 by: 

I 

quilina, MCIP 1 RPP, CPT 
Director of Planning and Development 

Reviewed and Respectfully Submitted: 

, . .-, ~-
. .. -' .. ,.. ~~- · 

~, . ·. . - -

Peter Senese 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Department of Planning & Development Report No.: 2019-173 Page 2 of 2 

26



Ministry of the Environment, 
Conservation and Parks 
Drinking Water and Environmental 
Compliance Division 
West Central Region 
Niagara District Office 

9th Floor, Suite 15 
301 St. Patil street 
St. Catharlnes, ON L2R.7R4 
Tel.: 905 704-3SOO 

1-800~263-1035 
Fax~ 905 10+101s·~ 

0Giqber 3, 2019 

Ministere de I' Environnement Cle la_ 
Protection de la nature et des Pares 
Division de la conform it~ en matiere 
d'emfpota,ble e~ d'environnement 
Direction regionale du Centre-Quest 
~ureau (ju district de Niagara 

9° etage, bureau 15 
301, rue St.Paul 
St. Catharines, ON L.:2R 7R4 
Tel. : 905 704-3900 

1-800-263-1035 
Tele~.: 905 ?04.401s 

qty 9f Port. Golborn,e 
Attention: Pan Aquilina - Djr~dpr of Planning and DevelppJnent. 
66 Charlotte street · 
Port Oolborne, ON L3K ~3C8 
(sent .v'ia e~maii: da·nagul1ina@portcolborne.ca) 

Dear Mr. Aquilina, 

.RE; Vale Community B~s~~ _Actio_n Plan 

Appena 1x A to Ke port 
2019-173 

Ontario 41 

Thank you for your letter dcited Augiist 23, 2019 requesting clarification with resp'ect to the safe soil 
!~vel? !n, tr.e ~Pprt .Cglb,o_me;. Cqmgi~nity .Ba_s13g ~i~~.As~essme:int 'Ch~rr.JiQ~l of.9oncern '?Ind the levels 
for .use in Ont~rio .. Re~Ulatk»n 153/04 (0. Reg. 153/G~). . . 

the C.Qrnmt.tnity-Based. Risk Assessrnenl '(CJ}RA) was a voi4ntary ~Rpfoach unqeitakeri by V(;!le 
which concluded that metals in the soil from historical refinery.activities :do ·not resu lt in unacceptable 
ii~~s t9 [l~a!th. T,he Mini9try .Qf the I.:nvironme_rit, Conservation and Park§ {"the ministry") and Vale cj i_d 
not agree on fLindanientaJ c.Ohcepts used for the scientific analysis irtthe CBRA and Vale has chosen 
not to .rfilyise th~ ·9sRA r~ports to address the ministry's tommenls. Vale has made the 'ministry's 
c.<Y1J111J~n.ts available on their wepsite. 

Th~ Ni~gara R~giqn Public ,Health Departm?nt has not det~cfec:! 'any .$P?Q1fic ~qverse effects to 
peo·ple assoc1atea with e~posure to soils 'in Port Colborne and ·so it was ~_weed that the best path 
forwar9 IJYas ·to ~ork ~in measyr~s ~o red~ce e:ixpc;>swe fo tre Contaminants of Concern in the 
cor:nJnu11!ty to add.ress the mlnislry's comments. V;:iie h~~ proppsed the Cqn:imunity Based Action 
Plan which uses valuable information from the CBRA process. The proposed Community Based 
Ac~ion P.1.an identifi~s '~ -ra11g~ tjf fi_s_~ mC!nagement m.e~~ure~ th.a~ )fVQblld P? impl~(ll~nted .at nickel 
concentration levels between taoo and 8,000 ppm which wlll ~odr~ss rninisfry'~ concerns .ahd help to 
furtrer reduce the potential for exposure to nickel and other metals in soils. The plan "also proposes 
additional studies to determine futur~ risk man<;lgement tneasur~s for the natural ~nvi,ronment and 
crops. 

The ministry' agrees in concept with the proposed Community-Basea Action Plan and has asked Vale 
_to proceed with municipality C?nd stakeholder 9on~ultation including the development community to 
_obtain feec;lback for consideration, along with ministry comments, ·as th~y finalize their Community 
Based Action Plan. 

Ontario Regulation 153/04 lays out the requirements for a obtaining a Reco.td of Site Condition (RSC). 
Any land use change to a more sensitive land use in the province of Ontario requires that a RSC be 

27



filed with the ministr)i: If nickel concentrations in soil are found at concentrations above 0. Reg. 
153/04 standards, then an overall site remediation can be completed using the soil standards found in 
0. Reg 153/04 or a risk a_ssessment may be conducted. The ministry supports a Qualified 
Professional relying on ministry accepted components of the CBRA to evaluate potential risks from 
nickel and other metals in soil on the specific property that reguire~ an RSC. 

As work is still underway to finalize C?f the Community Based Action Plc:m, I recommend the City 
discuss their conc!3rns about land use change burdens associated with requiring an RSC with Vale. 

If you have any further ques~ions pertaining to Ontario Regulation 153/04 please conta.ct Greg 
Washuta, Niagara District Engineer at the Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks at (905) 
687- 4649 or Greg.Washuta@ontarhca. 

Regards, 

Kim~idge 
District Manager, Niagara Di_strict Office 

cc. Eric Azz9pqrdi - V9.I~ 
Greg Washut;~ - MEGP 
Linda Gabriefe - MEOP 

28



I 

-~-
POR. T COLBOR.NE 

Planning & Development Department 
Planning Division 

Report Number: 2019-174 Date: November 12, 2019 

SUBJECT: Condominium Exemption Request - 57 Minto Street 

1) PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with a recommendation regarding a 
request for an exemption from draft plan of condominium approval for the property at 57 
Minto Street in the City of Port Colborne. 

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 

The City has received a written request from IBI Group on behalf of the owner, Niagara 
Peninsula Housing Corporation for an exemption from the requirement for approval of a 
draft plan of condominium for the buildings at 57 Minto Street (Appendix A). 

The Niagara Peninsula Housing Corporation received Site Plan Approval in 2016 to 
permit the construction of two residential apartment buildings. Both buildings are three 
storeys and offer 12 units each for a total of 24 units. The applicant has decided to 
propose a development under condominium tenure. Typically, a condominium 
development is required to go through the draft plan of condominium process. In this 
case however, Planning Act policies support an exemption for requests of this nature 
subject to the municipality granting an exemption. 

Section 9 of the Condominium Act refers to how plan of subdivisions in the Planning Act 
also apply to condominiums. 

Two types of exemptions are offered for condominiums in Ontario (Appendix 8). 

a. Under the Planning Act, O.Reg. 544/06, Section 7 - Certain applications for 
Condominium Description can be exempt from public notice/meeting 
requirements and can go straight to Council for approval. In this case, an 
application under the Planning Act for Draft Plan of Condominium is still required. 

b. Under the Condominium Act, Section 9 (6) & (7) - An exemption from the 
Planning Act application requirement is available for condominium developments 
subject to the following conditions: 

i) The approval authority retains the right to determine that the condominium 
shall be subject to Planning Act sections 51 & 51.1. 

ii) The municipality authorizes a "Certificate of Exemption" (Appendix C). 

iii) The approval authority may grant an exemption if it believes the situation 
is appropriate. 

The request made by 181 Group is a request for exemption "b" above, under Section 9 of 
the Condominium Act. 

29



3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

Staff has reviewed relevant sections of the Planning Act and City of Port Colborne 
Official Plan. 

Section 51 of the Planning Act states the following: 

Subsection 24: "In considering a draft plan of subdivision [condominium], regard shall 
be had, among other matters, to the health, safety, convenience, accessibility for 
persons with disabilities and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of the 
municipality ... " 

and , 

Subsection 25: "The approval authority may impose such conditions to the approval of a 
plan of subdivision [condominium] as in the opinion of the approval authority are 
reasonable, having regard to the nature of the development proposed for the 
subdivision ... " 

The City of Port Colborne Official Plan provides a number of requirements for Site Plan 
Control under section 11.3.2. A number of these requirements correspond with the 
conditions the Planning Act allows municipalities to impose. 

This property entered into a Site Plan Agreement with the City of Port Colborne in 
December 2016 (Appendix D). Issues and conditions listed above have been addressed 
through the Site Plan Approval process. As of the date of preparing this report, the City 
is withholding the entirety of the security deposit ($152,369.00) on the site which will 
ensure the conditions and requirements will be met. Planning staff are of the opinion 
that requiring the applicant to submit an application for draft plan of condominium would 
be unnecessary. 

It is also noted the Region of Niagara has offered no objection to this exemption request 
(Appendix E). 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

a) Do Nothing 

Council could choose to take no action at this time. This is not recommended as it will 
negatively impact the development of this site. 

b) Other Options 

Council could refuse the request for exemption and require the applicant to go through 
the draft plan of condominium process. This is not recommended as conditions that 
would be required under the draft plan of condominium process have been addressed 
though the Site Plan Control process. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 

Planning and Development Department Report No: 2019-174 Page 2 of 3 

30



N/A 

6) ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A 
Appendix B 
Appendix C 
Appendix D 
Appendix E 

Request letter 
Exemption from Draft Approval excerpt 
Certificate of Exemption 
Site Plan Agreement 
Niagara Region Comments 

7) RECOMMENDATION 

That Council approves the request for exemption from draft plan of condominium for the 
development at 57 Minto Street. 

8) SIGNATURES 

Prepared on October 31st, 2019 by: 

David Schulz, BURPI 
Planner 

Reviewed and respectfully submitted by: 

Peter Senese 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Reviewed by: 

LJ'OlU~,,..quilina, MCIP, RPP, CPT 
Director of Planning and Development 

Planning and Development Department Report No: 2019-174 Page 3 of 3 

31



I 8 I 
181 GROUP 
200 East Wing- 360 James Street North 
Hamilton ON L8L 1 H5 Canada 
tel 905 546 1010 
ibigroup.com 

July 3, 2019 

Dan Aquilina, MCIP, RPP, CPT 
Director of Planning & Development 
City of Port Col borne 
66 Charlotte Street 
Port Colborne, ON L3K 3C8 

Dear Mr. Aquilina, 

57 MINTO STREET - D12-01 -1 9 
DRAFT PLAN OF STANDARD CONDOMINIUM- EXEMPTION 

APPENDIX A 
REPORT 2019-174 

File: 120542 

On behalf of our client, please accept this letter and the enclosed request to be exempt from Draft 
Plan of Standard Condominium Conversion for the Minto Street Apartments. 

The intention is to convert the two apartment buildings into a condominium under the Draft Plan 
of Standard Condominium process. Although the Planning Act does not directly outline the criteria 
under which a Plan of Condominium is exempt from the need of approval, the conditions outlined 
for Plan of Subdivisions (of which applies to Plan of Condominiums) provide support as to why an 
exemption is appropriate in this case. 

The apartment buildings have been subject to a Draft Plan of Subdivision (file no. D12-01-19) and 
Site Plan Approval. All planning considerations and concerns relevant to the development have 
already been previously reviewed and approved by the City. 

As per the conditions outlined under Sections 51 the Planning Act, the Minto Street Apartments 
have satisfied the conditions and received approval. 

Again, given that the apartment buildings have been subject to a Draft Plan of Subdivision (file no. 
D12-01-19) and Site Plan Approval in the past, they are eligible for this exemption. 

As part of a complete application, please find enclosed the following: 

• Ten (10) copies of the signed Condominium Conversion application; 

• Twenty-five (25) copies of the Draft Plan of Standard Condominium Plan, Prepared by 
J.D Barnes Limited, dated June 13, 2019 ; and 

• One (1) reduced, 8.5" x 11" copy of the Draft Plan of Standard Condominium Plan, 
Prepared by J.D Barnes Limited, dated June 13, 2019 

• One (1) cheque in the amount of $1,500.00 (cheque no. 000677) made payable to the 
City of Port Col borne to process this request. 

• One (1) cheque in the amount of $2,540.00 (cheque no. 000720) made payable to the 
Regional of Niagara to process this request. 

• An excerpt of the "Exemption From Draft Approval" from the Ontario Province Guidelines, 
Understanding the Subdivision & Condominium Application Process 

• One (1) USB containing the submission files listed above. 

IBI Group Professional Services (Canada) Inc. is a member of the IBI Group of companies 32



IBI GROUP 2 

We trust the enclosed forms a complete application. We look forward to working with City staff in 
moving forward. If you have any questions or concerns, do not hesitate to contact the undersigned 
at 905-546-1010, extension 63105 or carmela.agro@ibiqroup.com. 

Regards, 

181 Gro p 

It 
iens, MCIP, RPP 

ate Director 

cc. Mr, Brian Kainth, via email; 

Mr. Michael Poon, via email; and 

Mr. Gideon Bell, Scarfone Hawkins, via email. 

Carmela Agro, CPT 
Planning Technician 

33



APPENDIX B 
REPORT 2019-174 

EXEMPTION FROM DRAFT APPROVAL 
(CONDOMINIUMS ONLY) 

The Condominium Act which all relevant planning 
1998 contains provisions considerations have been 
permitting an appllcatlon reviewed and found 
for a plan of condominium acceptable in the context of 
to proceed directly to final other planning applications 
approval, thereby bypassing for the development. In 
the requirements for notice these circumstances, 
and draft approval, which an exemption may be 
are normally part of the appropriate. 
approval process under the 
Planning Act. The approva.1 Furthermore, an approval 
authority can exempt a plan authority may also wish to 
of condominium application consider whether: 
on an appllcatlon-by-
appllcatlon basis, or by ..,. The appllcatlon Is 
passing a by-law that supported by municipal 
Identifies the class( es) of council and a by-law or 
condominiums that wlll be resolution from council 
exempted from approval. has been passed to this 

effect; 
Criteria for Exemption 

..,. No conditions of draft 
The Planning Act does not approval are required; 
expressly Identify criteria 
under which an application ..,. A planning report that 
for a plan of condominium has reviewed the above 
may be exempt from the criteria recommends 
need ror approval. However, exemption of the 
plans of condominium appllcatlon; 
are subject to the same 
legislated criteria as plans of ..,. The required number of 
subdivision. In the case of final plans have been 
plans of condominium, there submitted; and 
may be circumstances in 

fundamentals APPROVAL PROCESS lists and templates 

c 
::J 
a. 
CD 

~ 
::J a. 
5 

ID _.. 
::r 
(!) 

Cl> c 
8: 
~ 
"' 0 
::J 

Sl-0 
() 
0 
:J c.. 
0 
3 
:f 
E 
3 
)> 
"'O 
11 

~ 
0 
::J 
\J a 
@ 
~ 

5 34



V> 
V> 
Q) 
u 
2 
c.. 
c: 
0 
1J g 
0. 
0. 
<( 

E 
::J 
c 
E 
0 
-0 c: 
0 
0 
c'!S 
c: 
0 ·;;; 
> 
'5 .a 
::J 
Cf) 

Q) 
.!:. 
+-
0) 
c: 
=a 
c 

~ 
Q) 

"O c 
::::> 

~ All outstanding fees 
have been paid. 

Flnal Plan Registration 

If exemption Is granted, it 
is recommended that the 
approval authority courier 
the final plans directly to the 
local Land Registry Office 
to ensure that there are no 
third-party alterations to the 
approved final plan. If the 
approval authority chooses 
not to courier the plans, the 
applicant must deposit them 

(including any copies that 
the approval authority wishes 
to have). 

Once the owner has fulfilled 
all other requirements of the 
Land Registry Office, the land 
registrar will add to the plan 
the plan number and the 
date when it was registered. 
The approval authority may 
request to receive up to two 
copies of the registered final 
plan from the Land Registry 
Office for its records. 

CHECKLIST FOR REVIEWING AN APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION 
FROM DRAFT APPROVAL (CONDOMINIUMS ONLY) 

Verify that the application for exemption Is complete. This Includes 
the required number of copies of final plans and payment of any 
outstanding fees. If It Is not deemed complete, a letter should be 
sent to the applicant , clearly stating that the approval authority wlll 
not b e In a position to exempt the plan of condominium unless all 
the Information Is received. All copies of the appllcatlon should be 
returned to the applicant. 

Complete a planning report that analyzes and summarizes all 
appropriate planning concerns to determine whether an exemption 
Is appropriate. 

If satisfied that the exemption Is appropriate. Issue a certificate of 
exemption to this effect. [Condominium Act, 7998, s.9(3)(b)] 

Forward the number of copies of the final plan required under 
Ontario Regulatlon 43/96 under the Registry Act to the local Land 
Registry Office for registration (0. Reg. 43/96, ss. 7-25). 

Receive 1 or 2 duplicates of the plan from the land registrar with the 
certificate of registration on It. showing the number of the plan and 
the date when It was registered [Planning Act, s. 51 (60)]. 

r=J:2l 
Appendix 32 

6 fundamentals APPROVAL PROCESS Iii.is and templates 35



Certificate of Exemption 

APPENDIX C 
REPORT 2019-174 

The property legally known as Part of Lots 12, 13, 14 & 15 on Plan 777 in the City of 
Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of Niagara, municipally known as 57 Minto Street 
be exempt under Section 9 of the Condominium Act and Section 51 of the Planning Act. 

Signed this __ day of ______ , 2019. 

William C. Steele, Mayor 

Amber LaPointe, City Clerk 

Dan Aquilina, Director of Planning and 
Development 

36



. ~· ··-·---- ----~----·-······ ·····- . -· ---·-~--· ... 
APPENDIX D 
REPORT 2019-174 

THIS AGREEMENT made this .2./ day of I:>Ec&:mt!.EJI!.. , 2016 

BETWEEN: 

NIAGARA PENINSULA HOUSING CORPORATION 
Hereinafter called the OWNER of the FIRST PART; 

and 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 
Hereinafter called the CITY of the SECOND PART; 

WHEREAS the Owner owns the lands described on Schedule "A" attached hereto and 
hereinafter referred to as "the said lands"; 

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of Section 41 ofThe Planning Act, the Owner 
and the City acknowledge that the lands described on Schedule "A" are a Site Plan Control 
Area and further, no person shall undertake any development unless the Council of the 
City has approved of plans, drawings, agreements and other matters referred to in the 
said Section of the Planning Act; 

AND WHEREAS the Owner has requested that a Site Plan Agreement be entered into to 
build two three-storey, 12-unit apartment buildings on "the said lands" in compliance with 
By-law 1150/97/81, as amended by By-law 2505-121 -90 (R4-128 zone). · 

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual covenant and agreements hereinafter 
set out, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. In this Agreement: 

(a) "Plans and drawings" means: 

Schedule "A" -

Schedule "B" -

Schedule "C" -

Schedule "D" -

Schedule "E" -

Schedule "F" -

Legal Description of "the said lands". 

"SITE PLAN" prepared by "CHAMBERS & 
ASSOCIATES SURVEYING LTD." under drawing 
"16020 SP3" dated "OCTOBER 31, 2016" and revised 
to "NOVEMBER 4, 2016". 

"SITE SERVICING & GRADING PLAN" prepared by 
"NIAGARA ENGINEERING CONSUL TING 
ENGINEERS" under drawing "MINTO-GSP" dated 
"NOVEMBER 24, 2013" and revised to "NOVEMBER 
3, 2016". 

"LANDSCAPE PLAN" prepared by "JAMIE 
DOUGLAS, LA" under drawing "L-1" dated 
"OCTOBER 3, 2016". 

"ELEVATIONS & 30 VIEWS" prepared by "QUICK 
DRAW DRAFTING SERVICE" under drawing "A 103" 
dated "MARCH 10, 2016". 

Cost Estimate 

attached hereto and forming part of this agreement and such additional 
plans and drawings as may subsequently be _approved by the City of Port 
Colborne, including plans or drawings which revise or replace any one or 
more of the plans or drawings attached hereto. 

Sita Plan Agreement File No. 0 11-11-14 

37



.. .......... ·-········ ··----··-----·-·-----·-" ~ .. -- ____ ... .... ····-

(b) "Schedules" means and includes any one or more of the schedules attached 
to this agreement and includes plans and drawings as defined in Paragraph 
1(a) above. 

(c) "Director of Engineering and Operations• means the Director of Engineering 
and Operations for the City of Port Colbome. 

(d) "Fire Chief' means the Fire Chief for the City of Port Colbome. 
(e) "City Planner" means the Director of Planning and Development for the 

City of Port Colborn~. 

2. The Owner shall not construct or erect any building or structure, subdivide or use 
the lands described in Schedule "A" in any manner other than as set out in the 
Agreement and on the plans and drawings and schedules referenced in Paragraph 
1 above. In addition, prior to the commencement of any development or prior to 
the erection of any building, structure or installation of servicing, the Owner shall 
obtain all necessary permits and approvals from any relevant authority and shall 
comply with all relevant legislative requirements. 

3. Original copies of Schedules "A', "B', "C", "D", "E" and "P' may be viewed at the 
Offices of City Hall, City of Port Colborne, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne, 
Ontario during normal business hours. 

4. The Owner agrees all work required by this agreement is to be completed within 
two years from the date that the agreement is signed by the City. 

5. The Owner agrees to obtain all necessary permits as may be required and to 
construct or reconstruct, at its own expense, an overall drainage system, sanitary 
sewer lines, watermains, water metres, service connections, water, storm and 
sanitary laterals including all rein statements and driveway entrances subject to 
specifications and to the satisfaction of the City, pursuant to the Ontario Building 
Code and the Plumbing Code, where applicable, and in accordance with Schedule 
ucu 

6. The Owner agrees that all site lighting shall be directed in a manner such that the 
angle of illumination does not extend onto the adjacent lands or public streets. 

7. All utilities including hydro-electric lines and telephone lines shall be installed ~o the 
satisfaction of the relevant public utility. 

8. The Owner agrees to provide, install and maintain landscaping as indicated on 
Schedule ·o•. 

9. The Owner agrees that garbage and refuse collection shall be carried on by a 
private contractor at Its own expense and that refuse will be stored in the proposed 
refuse container enclosure. 

10. The Owner agrees to provide parking areas and parking aisles in accordance with 
Schedule "C". The Owner agrees that parking areas and parking aisles shall be 
asphalt paved and marked in accordance with Schedule "C". The Owner agrees 
that driveway accesses, traffic directional signs, parking areas and parking aisles 
shall be delineated in accordance with Schedule "C". All construction shall be in 
accordance with the City of Port Colborne Standard Construction Specifications. 

11. The Owner agrees to submit a Sign Permit application to the Building Division, if 
required. 

12. The Owner shall keep the walkway, driveway and parking lots free and clear of 
snow on the City's property except in locations designated by the Director of 
Engineering and Operations from time to time. 

13. The Owner shall provide, maintain and use, as the case may be, the facilities and 
matters in the schedules and shall comply with such terms and conditions as to the 
provision, maintenance and use of the facilities and matters as are set out in the 
schedules. 

S~e Plan Agreement File No. 011-11-14 2 

38



- - - - - •- " • •• ,,... • ou- o , ,. _ ,, 

14. The Owner shall compfy with such prohibitions of facilities and matters and the 
maintenance and use thereof as set out in the schedules. 

15. Wrthout in any way limiting the application of Paragraphs (13) and (14): 

(a) the Owner shall construct all buildings, structures, and facilities shown on 
the plans and drawings, strictly in conformance with and in all the locations 
shown thereon; and 

(b) the Owner shall construct all buildings in conformance with the building 
elevations and cross-sections shown on such elevation drawings and plans 
as are approved by the City. 

· 16. It is understood and agreed that, if the development of the proposed building on 
the said lands has not commenced within nine months of the date of approval by 
the City of the said pla.ns and drawings, the approved plans and drawings shall 
become null and void unless an extension is granted by the Council of the City, 
new plans and drawings incorporating such changes must be submitted to the City 
and must be approved by the Council of the City and a new agreement between 
the Owner and the City entered into prior to any building being constructed. 

17. The Owner further agrees that an facilities and matters required to be provided 
pursuant to this agreement, shall be provided, installed or constructed by or on 
behalf of the Owner and at the Owner's expense within one hundred and twenty 
(120) days after the date of substantial completion of the proposed bui!ding(s) as 
determined by the City and shall be maintained at all times in good condition and 
in compliance with this agreement. 

18. . The Owner shall be responsibfe for ttie cost of all work and necessary 
reinstatements on or adiacent to "the said lands", on road allowances, with 
exceptions as noted in this agreement, and which is required under the terms of 
this agreement and/or indicated on the approved plans and drawings, Including 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the cost of all works required for 
drainage of the surface water and roof water, installation of and connections to 
water, wastewater and storm sewer services, construction of driveway approaches, 
including curb cuts, replacement of curbs and sidewalks, relocation of pipes, poles, 
drains, catchbasins and other works, all of which shall be done and performed, and 
all material for the said work shall be supplied to the specifications and directions 
and to the satisfaction of the City. Where any required work is to be performed 
within the limit of any City road allowance on which "the said lands• abut or which 
is adjacent to the said lands, the works may be performed by the City, at the 
expense of the Owner, and the Owner agrees to deposit with the City, before a 
building permit is issued, the whole of the cost, as estimated by the City, of 
performing work. If the actual cost of the work, as determined by the City, exceeds 
the amount of the deposit. the Owner shall pay the City for any deficiency and, if 
the actual cost, as so determined, is less than the amount of the deposit, the City 
shall repay the Owner any surplus. The Owner shall be responsible for making all 
necessary arrangements for any payment of the cost of taking up, removing or 
changing the location of any works or services of any utility company or commission 
by this agreement and/or Indicated on the approved plans and drawings. 

19. If required by the City and.forthwith after demand by the City, the Owner, at its own 
expense and free of all costs to the City or to the Owner of any utility or service 
passing to or through the lands (including any Registry or Land Titles Office fees), 
shall provide either the City or the Owner of any utility or service passing to or 
through the lands as may be applicable, with any easements (free of any 
encumbrance) that may be required by the City or the Owner of any such utility or 
service, that in its, or their, sole discretion is needed for any requirement or purpose 
that may be occasioned by development of the lands by the Owner and if directed 
by the City or Owner of any such utilities or service, shall register these easements 
at the appropriate land Titles or Registry Office. 

20. The Owner acknowledges that the facilities and matters required by the said By-

Site Pla/\Agrl!l!lllen! File No. 011·11-14 3 

39



. ·- ·-- ··-- . ---- . . ··----···-· --· "--··--- --~·-··---- . .... -··-·-- - . 

law and this agreement shall be provided and maintained by the Owner at its sole 
risk and expense and to the satisfaction of the City; and the Owner releases the 
City from all claims and demands in respect of any loss, damage or injury (including 
death) to persons or property arising out of or connected with the provision and 
maintenance of the said facilities and matters of any one or more of them. 

21. The Owner hereby warrants that it is the registered Owner of "the said lands" 
described in Schedule "A" attached hereto. 

22. The Owner agrees that upon the execution of this agreement that the lands are 
charged with the performance of this agreement. 

23 . The Owner agrees that during any construction work relating to the lands or matters 
referred to in the terms of this agreement, all necessary precautions to avoid dust, 
noise and other nuisances and to provide for the safety of the public will be taken 
by the Owner, its agents, servants and assigns. 

24. The Owner to whom the request has been made by the City shall, within the time 
limits specified by the City to the total satisfaction of the City and at the sole risk 
and expense of the Owner, remedy such non-compliance or potential non
compliance with the conditions of development or redevelopment in this agreement 
as may, in the sole opinion of the City, exist or come into existence from time to 
time. 

25. The Owner hereby covenants and agrees for himself and his executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns and successors in title and owner or 
owners from time to time of "the said lands" to this agreement and every part or 
parts thereof that, if he or they tail to perform or complete in accordance with this 
agreement any of the work or construction or maintenance or both, including 
provision and maintenance of landscaping, which is to be performed by the Owner 
under the terms of this agreement, the City may, upon a resolution of City Council 
to that effect and after giving not less than fifteen (15) days notice in writing to the 
Owner, enter on "the said lands", as often as may be necessary with its workmen 
and contractors and perform or complete the performance of any such work, 
including any necessary replacement, and the Owner hereby authorizes the said 
entry and performance of work and further covenants and agrees for herself and 
her executors, administrators, successors and assigns and successors in title and 
owner or owners from ttme to time of the said lands, all costs incurred by the City 
in performing such work within sixty (60) days after an invoice therefore has been 
mailed by the City to the Owner or the then registered owner of "the said lands"; 
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that nothing in ihis agreement shall impose upon the City 
any duty or obligation to inspect or examine "the said lands~ for non-compliance 
with the conditions of development or redevelopment or to specify or report that 
such non-compliance or potential non-compliance to the Owner or to provide an 
opinion or view respecting any condition of -Oevelopment or redevelopment or to 
request or require compliance with the said conditions. 

26. If the said costs Incurred by the City referred to in Paragraph 25 are not paid within 
the said period of sixty (60) days, the Owner hereby authorizes the City to add the 
amount of such costs to the collector's roll for •the said lands" and to recover such 
costs in like manner as for local taxes or, at the option of the City provided that, 
upon any such entry by the City, any replacel)lent of landscaping shall be limited 
to like kind and there shall be no replacement oftener than annually. 

27. In the event of any dispute respecting the interpretation of any City standards, the 
owner agrees that the matter is to be decided by the Council of the City and its 
decision is fmal and binding. 

28. The Owner shall indemnify and keep harmless the City from and against all actions, 
causes of action, interest, claims, demands. costs, charges, damages, expenses, 
and the loss, which the City may at any time bear, incur, be liable for, sustain or be 
put unto for any reason of or on account of or by reason of or in consequence of 
the City entering Into this agreement 

SHePlanAgru>ment File No. 011-11 -14 4 

40



····------· -·-- ----·-. ... - ·-------. - -· - . ... .. .. 

29. Prior to the issuance by the City of any building pennit or plumbing permit relating 
to the lands of the Owner, and during the period of any construction and 
developmen~ the Owner must provide to the City proof, in a form satisfactory to 
the City, of insurance coverage in an amount and relating such risks as may be 
determined by the City In its sole discretion, and the City if it so demands, shall be 
added as a named insured to any Insurance policy or to any such insurance 
coverage referred to in this clause of this agreement shall be provided at the 
expense of the Owner. The Owner further agrees that if required by law, or by the 
City, it will submit to the City a clearance letter from the Workplace Safety and 
Insurance Board stating that it or its agents are in good standing with the Board. 

30. The Owner shall not call Into question directly or indirectly any proceeding 
whatsoever in law or In equity or before any administrative tribunal, the right of the 
City to enter into this agreement and to enforce each and every term, covenant and 
condition herein contained and this agreement or this clause may be pleaded as 
an estoppel against the Owner in any such proceeding. 

31. This agreement shall ensure the benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties 
hereto and their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns and 
successors in title. 

32. The Owner agrees that it shall, upon the sale or transfer of the lands or any part or 
parts thereof, require the purchaser or transferee thereof, as a condition- of such 
sale or transfer, to execute an agreement satisfactory in form to the solicitor of the 
City, agreeing to assume this agreement and be bound by and to fulfill the terms, 
conditions and covenants that are herein set forth and containing a like covenant 
to this effecl The said assumption agreement shall be executed by the City, the 
Owner and any purchaser or transferee and any mortgage and at the discretion of 
the City, may be registered against the title to the lands at the expense of the 
Owner. 

33. If the lands are mortgaged or assigned and the mortgagee or assign signs this 
agreement, then In the event that the mortgagee exercises any rights to sale, 
possession and foreclosure or takes any other steps to enforce its security in the 
lands, then the mortgagee or assign shall be bounded by and subject to all the 
terms, conditions, rights and obligations enjoyed by or borne by the owner and this 
agreement shall be read as if the term "Mortgagee" or "Assign• were substituted for 
the word •owner" wherever it appears in the agreement 

34. Notwithstanding anything hereinbefore contained it is agreed that the execution by 
the Mortgagee is merely for purposes of consent and shall not impose upon the 
Mortgagee any of the obligations contained herein which are conferred upon the 
owner, its successors and assigns and that the Mortgagee shall only assume such 
obligations in the event It beoomes the registered owner of the lands described in 
Schedule "A", otherwise, the Mortgagee shall not be bound or be liable for any of 
the duties, liabilities or obligations contained herein. 

35. The Owner acknowledges notice that the City proposes to register this agreement 
against "the said lands". 

36. The Owner agrees that all municipal taxes and arrears, or any outstanding 
balances, if any, shall be paid in full prior to the execution of this agreement by the 
City and such payment shall be made from time to time as each such event may 
occur so that payment so municipal taxes are at all times up to date. 

37. Wherever the singular or masculine is used in this agreement, they shall be 
construed as if the plural or the feminine or neuter has been used where the context 
or the party or parties hereto so require, and the rest of the sentence shall be 
constructed as if the grammatical and terminological changes thereby rendered 
necessary had been made and all covenants herein contained shall be construed 
to be several as well as joinl 

Sile Plan Agreement File No. 011-11-14 5 

41



-----····· ---··- ·-·------ ----

38. The Owner shall, prior to the occupation of the site, undertake and have completed 
all site wor1<,s shall be to the satisfaction of the City Planner. 

39. As security for carrying out the provisions of this agreement, the Owner shall 
deposit with the City, prior to the execution of this agreement, a cash deposit, letter 
of credit or certified cheque in the amount of $152,369.00, satisfactory to the 
Treasurer, upon which the City may draw funds without the consent of the Owner, 
to cover the costs of the Installation of site services, drainage system, parking lot 
and markings, landscaping and fencing as set out in Paragraphs 5, 8 and 10 and 
as approved by the City. 

40. The Owner' shall submit to the Director of Engineering and Operations, a "Lot 
Grading Conformance Certificate", in the City's standard form, prepared by an 
Ontario Land Surveyor or Consulting Engineer, certifying that grading has been 
completed in accordance with the approved grading plan as illustrated in Schedule 
Jl:C,'. 

41. A Municipal Consent permit will be required for that portion of the work to be carried 
out on the City road allowance, prior to construction. The City will require a 
Licensed City Water Operator on site during all connections to City Infrastructure. 
A City Construction inspector must also be present to oversee the instatration of 
the meter pit and services to ensure installation meets City standards. 

42. The Owner shall submit to the Director of Engineering and Operations, a 
confirmation by either an as-built drawing stamped by a Professional Engineer 
Licensed in Ontario or a letter including a sketch of the services stamped by a 
Professional Engineer Licensed In Ontario certifying that the services have been 
installed in accordance with the approved site servicing and grading plan as 
illustrated in Schedule "C". 

43. All matters in difference between the parties herein in connection with this 
Agreement shall be referred to arbitration. 

44. No person shall be appointed to arbitrator who is in any way interested financially 
or otherwise in the conduct of the works or development of the subdivision or 
subdivisions contemplated by this Agreement, or fn the business or the affairs of 
the Owner or the Cfty. 

45. The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties. 

46. in the event of a dispute, each party will select an arbitrator of their choosing who 
will, in tum, select a Chairperson. Each party will be responsible for the costs of 
their appointee, plus fifty (50) percent of the expense of the Chairperson. 

47. The provision of the Arbitrations Act, R.S.0. 1990, as amended, or any successor 
thereto, shall apply to the arbitration. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals and 
the City has affixed its corporate seal duly attested to by its Mayor and Clerk. 

SIGNED, SEALED & DELIVERED 
IN THE PRESENCE OF: 

NIAGARA PENINSULA HOUSING CORPORATION 
Per:~-W~ 

- ~ 
~ 

Site Plan Agreement Ale No. 011-11-14 6 

42



I HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO BIND THE 
CORPORATION 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY 
OF PORT COLBORNE, Per. 

JOHN/MALONEY, M~· 

Site Plan Agreemenl F~e No. 011-11-14 

43



·· ·· --·- · ·- • •• • _ .. _______ ._,_ ... __ -..! • • • • ___ . _ .:___ ____ - · 

SCHEDULE "A" - LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Part of Lots 12, 13, 14 and 15, Plan 777 in the City of Port Colbome, Regional Municipality 
of Niagara; designated as Parts 1 and 2 on Plan 59R12030; 

Municipally known as 57 Minto Street, Port Colbome. 

SitePlanAgreementFieNo. 011·11-14 8 

44



jg·: ·: -=-
I ~:.r ., ___ _ 

. 
""'-""' 

Ill 

CAAIW:E AEfUSE 
ew~.~ 

~1-,-,_.,.-,-.,,-11-.. 1~~----~ 
;:J Clt-J.UM •I Wt•- =-~ ... W, '- ' •":::,., ,., 

fa :==== ::::~ ~= :c _.._""_ ,, .,., .. _ <lel)' l 

C.> 

"' LOT STATISTICS 
~- : .. ~=: -:: ..... _.._ . h•- ·Jft 
l~Ml.I> • litU,,,l • M\ 

PMtaNG REOU!RE~ENTS 
•• U 'Vi.I~ l~t .. "'IPt~~ • \ ... ·~••l/"'!11 
rool,-IA!.1J1\tlll•lftUol• l.a l,Hll ""'11•10.,.1111.• u......_, •• ,.,,..,., 

•1 fflt~rJ.9nlil ttton" ll'IMIG ... ,,, ..... .....,, .. _ "'°""""'" .. . .... _.....,..,_ ..... _. .. ., .. . 
rMKrrt3 LAYOUT DlrrAIL 

1~11~1l 
r- .:::::1 
-#=;:.;~ 

nus PUN JU;yJ8JtD n, 
_,a_ l ~ocr,.,....,. 

-»- 1---lltO llll(a)ONJ. ...,_ 
--.>t'PWl!liljCl!ll'~ 

1\l fG~-------

CVN."1.bllX' M N:lJ\ I 

p.a1tCatr ffl l'Yt C ...... MU- ---

;..er 

1.or 

LOT 

ID 
~ 

In 
~ 

,,viii Lor 

br"" 'Ol"t 

-! 

Iii 

LOT 27 ~ 
t 

1 I v I~ .. ---------------- , KEY PLAN I 
' ~-~ I 

SI TEP LAN I lOT ~6 

LOT 2!1 

t 

LOT .W 

!JJT SI 

tj - • ... .., .. r- .. _,,..;- -=--·- --:!;~~ -... ---- --- --i 

L--·-~-- -~'!"_._L _ __ _,_ __ _ J 

Wi~mro ~VFJ!E!E'ii' 
,ir;, 

DOW'DtO TOPOGIW'1UCAL Oll'OU£ml)H 

PART OF l.OTS 12, 13, 14 AND 15 
PIAN n1 
.. na: . 
CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 
• toCQ.l'fAl. M\lHJt'DlWTr 01' JUA"R.l 
su.l.C: I • too 

~c.~ 
~ ...... ~ 
DESIGNAlT:O J.S PARIS 1 ANO 2 ON 
PLAN 5GR- t 2030. 

SITE AR~ = 2,3J1m' 

u:nasc Jfon: 
rr: .. ar,i mi~~.:·~ NIO Ult 

"""' i=.~~~-~'Jt~'°'*'-·-----
-n#.S IS HOT AN OPIOJNAl. COl"Y 
UffLZI• n.t• ossco WITH .s.c'A'-• 

DAV'l'llm • 
1"1" "' 11.r ,t."""4d~litOPl'll.HOIHUDD 
ut:Urrut 'llll[~Hll(.UU>nT>tttn\CkJIOC 

8(11CHMAAK 
=-..:.:..-=:..-:.~------

w;-............ .-,..., 
B • -~ 
0 

'Wt __ ...... 

., . ........ . 
~ ,_.., 
l.f' ...., . ... . .. 'M.-- -"~ ~ 

-.-

I~~: ~ -

~¥\,,. 
..,..~ .. 11.ow. 

CHAMBE.RS .-. ASSQc;unU 
1:11unv11.ve"o a.Tn. 

·=~ '"'1."!:i;.'\,.\;;""' ....... ---=--
-~ 

45



I I I 

o;.
;--1

 
I 

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

C
 

- .~
 

I 1: 1
 ~! 

•!
 i·~

I t I 
, •

 Ij
 

.. 
" 

lj
 ;

 ~ 
i J

 
I~

 
I 

I 
!!

 

46



-·
 ·

··-
·-

·· 
. 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-

••
•
•
:
•
•

O
M

•'
-
-
0

0
0

00
 

.:.
:..

..:
._

 _
__

 .. ,_ .. 
.. 

·:_
· __

_ 
-
-
-
·
~
:

:
_
_
 __

_ ·-

·I-
-
-
-
:
-
~
~
~
~
~
~
 

I 
~
 

I 

~
 

f'
 ~ 

i;
 

~
i
:
~

!!
 

~ 
i 

l 
;~

 
l 

1 
~ ~

 . 
f~
ii

 
~
 

·, 
' ;;;

 
r;

 
"' 

1i
~i

 
I 

! 
; 

Q
. 

't
J
 

• 
9 

fl 
i 
f 

"
· 

! 
·o

 

,... 
~
f
t
~
 

.. 
i
h
~
 

..
 ;

c 
i 

·I•
 r 

. J
! ~

~ 
u
~
~
 

• 
' 

'I
I 

! 
, 

11 
"' 

l 
;;

· 
·i

 

'.
 
~
 

i 
"' 

! 
~
 

l:i:
··
-·

· 
. -

! 
I

: 

~ 
J··

 -
. •

I 

47



' 1 • 

Ill 

~ 
::> 
Q 
Ill 
:c 
u 
"' 

® ~~~IJJLEVATION 

QUICK DRAW 
DRAFTING SERVICE 

(\'hWt!.DrtL\M.$ lfClH) 

-.-.nc: .. 
..,..,,,llilrOOlllla_ 

M•-INW',.,1.iU,t»\n .,..,. ...... " .. ., 
-~~-:::=--

PAa.IMINAm'ORAWltlGS 

ww-
NIMi.A.RA PENMNSUlA 

ttOUSIHOCOflP 

,_,,_ 
MiNTOS'TTlarr. 

POf'tf c:a.ROfVE, ONt 

llLVATOfS & 30 W.WS 

nt01tll Jl: l1;"1'M 

A103 

48



SCHEDULE F 

[ JA0;~.J?:.P?U_~~~s) 
Landsc;ape An;hitecture I Site Planning 
118-156 Fitch Street Welland ON L3C ph 289 407 5R7 289 407 3511 ejamiehvd@gmall.com 

October 11, 2016 

PLW Planning & Environmental Consulting 
48 Jarvis St., Fort Erie, ON L2A 2S4 

Attention: Mr. P. Leigh White, MCIP, RPP, AICP, RCIC p 905 658 5314 

Re: Site Plan Application -
57 Minto Street Apartments 
Port Colbome, ON 

LANDSCAPE PLAN - Cost Estimate 

The following Cost Estimate is based on the Landscape Plan Dwg. L-1 (Latest Revision) 

No. Item Description Qty $I Unit Total 
1 Tree Preservation Fence, Prune, Mulch & Fer1. 3 Lump Sum $ 2,200 
-2~~s-4..83m-!41.-,t----FF1eE>RRGe-alo11g-P&Fimeter ~-7.S-llfl-l'fh--------$-95/m----+--16;&25- l.. OM rl«-\-e.. 
-S--Fanctng-17tm-Ht Sicre-fence-at-mafn-entrance-"frlirr.-m $ 55lm $ 669 
4 Light Standards Base, Pole, Fixture & wiring 3 $ 3,500 $ 1 D,500 
5 Shrub Bed Retaining Wall 300 cm Ht. Un It Sections 19 lin m $160 $ 3,040 
6 Waste Enclosure Wood /·Steel Bollards 1 Lump Sum $ 5,000 
"( Landscape Boulders Within Entry Shrub Beds 2 $ 250 $ SOD 
a Trees Deciduous Trees 5 $ 360 $ 1,800 
9 Shrubs I Groundcover Shrubs, Grasses, Ground C. 57 $ 35 $ 1,995 

10 Handicap Sign End of Handicap Parking 1 Lump Sum $ $400 
11 Sod Including grading & topsoil 495 m2 $ 42 $ 20.790 

TOTAL Landscape Cost Estimate ... ... ............ ... ... ................ .. ... .. . 

if you have any questions, Leigh, please call me or email me at your convenience. 

Thank you. 

_JC!m,£e Douglas {conymr•rJ:fff""=-J 

Jamie Douglas, LA OALA CSLA 

$ 68,519 

~46 JJ5.00 

' 

49



3 STOREY RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS 
57 MINTO STREET, PORT COLBORNE 
SITE SERVICING 
COST ESTIMATE 

100 mm DIA WATER 
100 mm DIA. WATER VALVES 
WATER CHAMBER 
TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE 200x200x100 
TAPPING SLEEVE&. VALVE 200x200x100 
CONCRETE CURB 
CONCRETE SIDEWALK 
SWALE WITH SUBDRAIN 
200mmSTORM 
CA TCHBASINS 
150 mm DIA SANITARY 
SANITARY CLEANOUT 
PERMEABLE PAVEMENT 
ASPHALT ENTRANCE 

SUB-TOTAL 
13.0% HST 
TOTAL 

Niagara Engineering 

Quantity 

90 
3 
1 
1 
1 

200 
90 

100 
50 
2 
70 
3 

1,020 
70 

22-Nov-16 

Unit 

m 
ea 
LS 
LS 

sq.m 
m 

sq.m 
m 
m 
ea 
m 
ea 

sq.m 
sq.m . 

Unit Price 

$75 
$525 

$4,500 
$2,000 

$19 
$65 
S75 
$15 
$70 

$1, 100 
$80 

$300 
$55 
$25 

Amount 

$6,750 
$1,575 
$4,500 
$2,000 

$~9 
$13,000 

$6,750 
$1,500 
$3,500 
$2.200 
$5,600 

$900 
$56,100 
$1,750 

$106,144 
$13,7es 

$11 9,943 

50



Niagara4'/lf Region 

Planning and Development Services 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 
905-980-6000 Toll-free:1-800-263-7215 

Via Email Only 

September 30, 2019 

File No. : D.11.07.CD-19-013 

Dan Aquilina, MCIP, RPP, CPT 
Director of Planning & Development 
City of Port Colborne 
66 Charlotte Street 
Port Colborne, ON L3K 3C8 

Dear Mr. Aquilina: 

Re: Revised Regional and Provincial Comments 

APPENDIX E 
REPORT 2019-174 

Exemption From Draft Plan of Standard Condominium Approval 
Owner: Niagara Peninsula Housing Corp. (Michael Poon) 
Agent: 181 Group (Carmela Agro) 
57 Minto Street 
City of Port Colborne 

Regional Planning and Development Services staff has reviewed the provided 
Condominium application circulated for 57 Minto Street in the City of Port Colborne. The 
appl ication was received by e-mail on July 25, 2019, with fees received on the same 
day. The application proposes an exemption from draft plan of condominium approval, 
to permit two 3-storey apartment buildings containing a combined 24 units under 
condominium tenure. A pre-consultation meeting was not held to discuss this proposal. 
The following revised comments are provided from a Provincial and Regional 
perspective to assist the City in considering this application, and are provided in follow
up to addition information received from the agent, dated September 27, 2019. 

Provincial and Regional Policies 

The subject property is within a settlement area under the 2014 Provincial Policy 
Statement (PPS) and designated as Delineated Built-up Area in A Place to Grow: 
Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe (Growth Plan). The PPS and Growth 
Plan contain policies that direct growth to settlement areas, support intensification, and 
require the provision of an appropriate range of housing types and densities, including 
the provision of affordable housing and all forms of housing required to meet the social, 
health and well-being requirements of future and current residents. As delineated in the 
Regional Official Plan (ROP), the subject property is within the Port Colborne Urban 

Page 1of2 

51



D.1 1.07.CD-19-013 
August 21, 2019 

(Built-up) Area. The subject buildings are currently under construction, and permitting 
the condominium tenure of the units will not result in a loss of rental units for the City of 
Port Colborne. Accordingly, the exemption request does not propose a rental 
conversion. 

Waste Collection 

Niagara Region provides curbside waste collection and recycling col lection for 
developments that meet the requirements of Niagara Region's Waste Collection Policy. 
The subject property is eligible to receive Regional curbside waste and recycling 
collection provided that the owner bring the waste and recycling to the curbside on the 
designated pick up day, and that the following limits are not exceeded: 

• No limit blue/grey containers; 
• No limit green containers; and, 
• 12 garbage containers. 

Regional staff note that if the subject property is unable to the meet the above noted 
curbside waste co llection limits, waste collection for the site would be the responsibility 
of the owner through a private contractor and not Niagara Region. The site would 
remain eligible for Regional curbside collection of recycling and organics. 

Conclusion 

Regional Planning and Development Services staff has no objection to the exemption 
request to permit two 3-storey buildings containing 24 dwelling units to be under 
condominium tenure, based on Provincial and Regional policies. Council should refer to 
the detailed comments from the City's Planning Department with respect to their own 
Official Plan policies with regards to this request. 

If you have any questions or wish to discuss these comments, please contact the 
undersigned at extension 3352, or Pat Busnello, MCIP, RPP, Manager of Development 
Planning, at extension 3379. 

Please send notice of the City's decision on this file for our records. 

Best regards, 

Aimee Alderman 
Development Planner 

cc: Mr. R. Alguire, Development Approvals Technician, Niagara Region 

Page 2 of 2 

52



PORT COLBORNE 

Report Number: 2019-172 

Engineering & Operations Department 
Engineering Division 

Date: November 12, 2019 

SUBJECT: Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain - Appointment of Engineer 

1. PURPOSE 

This report prepared by Alana Vander Veen, Drainage Superintendent has been authorized by 
Chris Lee, Director of Engineering & Operations. The purpose of this report is to provide Council 
with information related to the appointment of an Engineer and the preparation of a new 
Engineer's Report, under Section 78 of the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990, for the repair and 
improvement of the Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain, and requisite actions. 

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 

Earliest records indicate that in 1884, Henry Lawe prepared a plan showing the land ownership 
and an assessment Schedule for the then Eagle Marsh Drain. In the following year, these 
works were then tender for construction of the drain. Unfortunately, there is not a profile that 
accompanies these dates. 

Our records do indicate there is a copy of the 1915 report completed by L.A. Kinnear. At this 
time, the plan shows that the original Eagle Marsh Drain began at the current outlet and 
followed along the lakeshore with in the first concession towards the west where it terminated in 
Wainfleet between lots 5 and 6, which is now known as Quarry Road, nearly 250 m north of the 
lakeshore. Another branch of this drain, which we now refer to as the main branch, extends 
north to Highway 3, along or near unopened road allowance of Reeb Road in Wainfleet and 
proceeds to meander to the middle of the second lot in concession 1 between Reeb Road and 
Bessey Road. The main branch of the drain was approximately 3,627m long and averaged 
slopes of 0.07%. The branch to the west was approximately 1,385m long with a steady 
percentage slope of 0.01 %. Both of these channels are classified as a very slow system. 

The drain has under gone maintenance over the years; however, the largest change that 
occurred in 197 4 was the installation of the existing control structure. At time of installation, the 
structure was installed under provincial funding. Since then the maintenance, upgrading and 
automation of the pump and structure has been subsidized through the general levy. 

In 1985, J Bryon Wiebe Ltd, wrote a report entitled the Eagle Marsh Drain Extension which was 
sanctioned by the Township of Wainfleet. This report redefined the extension of the Eagle 
Marsh Drain from Highway #3 meandering through to the west limit of Highway #58 between 
Merritt Parkway and Coronation Drive. The report also redefined the watershed limit within the 
confines of Port Colborne and Wainfleet and provided revised assessment schedules to 
accommodate the development changes within the watershed. 

As this drain outlet is at the shore of Lake Erie, the high water levels and quick rising storms 
effect staffs ability to operate the outlet efficiently. In 1997, a report to council was prepared by 
staff to establish a standard operating procedure that would satisfy the requirements of the 
developments in the low end of the watershed. The report explained the means of using the 
International Great Lakes Datum as a guide to establish the water level in which to close the 
gate. The report also established an elevation to begin pumping to protect these low-lying lands 
from flooding . 

In 2004 Spriet Associates was hired to complete investigative works for another extension of the 

53



drain to service potential development lands north and north west of Coronation Drive. Survey 
works were completed and drawings were started however the development failed and the 
works were not completed. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

The Eagles Marsh Drain is a relatively large watershed and aside from the requirement of 
standard maintenance, there are very few concerns with the overall functiona lity of the drain. A 
few major concerns with the previous report are as follows: 

• A sufficient outlet is not evident as the report defines the outlet at Lakeshore 
Road West and does not extend to the lakes edge, therefore not allowing an 
access point to remove sand after the uprush of a storm. 

• Determination of the adequacy of the existing pump size 
• Determination of an elevation in which all lands below a defined point are 

effected for the necessity of the drain to be pumped 
• Upgrades with respect to health and safety concerns of the existing pump house 
• Guide lines and standard operating procedures for the gate and pump 
• Revised assessment schedules for all reaches of the drain which will include any 

development that has taken place since the previous reports 
• Sufficiency of outlet for the subdivision to the north know as Merritt Parkway and 

Coronation Drive and potential development lands to the north and northwest of 
these lands. 

As stated in Report 2019-156, Waterford Sand and Gravel Quarry in Wainfleet is an active 
quarry and over the duration and expansion of the quarry, the excavation has changed the limit 
of the watershed again necessitating the requirement for a new report. Currently all the runoff 
within the quarry is pumped from the south limit of quarry and flows to the Eagle Marsh Drain. 
Due to the existing pumping scheme of the Eagle Marsh Drain, the impact of the quarry being 
pumped to the north, the Biederman Drain, will be studied to see if this is a viable option. 
Financially this makes sense, as this will eliminate the necessity to pump the water twice. 

To be effective in drain maintenance, a full up to date report is required. The current report 
does not offer details such as working sides of the drain nor the access routes to maintain th is 
drain. The benefits to establishing a work side of a drain minimizes the conflict between staff 
and property owner making for a better working relationship. 

On September 12, 2019, a letter was sent to the appropriate authorities of the intent to move 
forward with this appointment as a requirement of Section 6 of the Act. 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

a) Do nothing. 

Do nothing is an option. The levy can continue to support the existence of the Eagle Marsh 
Drain and all the costs associated with the maintenance and pumping of this watershed. 

b) Other Options 

Proceed forward with the appointment of an Engineer to redefine the watershed limits of this 
drain, to complete up to date assessment schedules acknowledging both Port Colborne and 
Wainfleet, and to incorporate the many changes that are currently outstanding and non
grantable under the OMAFRA funding. An up to date report provides for an effective drain 
maintenance and roadside ditching program, which in turn will reduce overall costs, providing 
ratepayers with a reasonable level of service. 

Engineering and Operations, Engineering Division Report No. 2019-172 
Page 2 of 3 

54



Although this is a joint effort between the Township of Wainfleet and the City of Port Colborne, 
the City of Port Colborne wi ll be financing the Engineering Fees. All fees associated with the 
project will be unfinanced by the watershed until completion of the report and construction. Like 
all Municipal Drains, there wi ll be an assessment to the City of Port Colborne for the 
proportionate share of roads and any City-owned properties. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 

Municipal Drain Maintenance Strategic Planning is currently under review. This project complies 
with all City legislative requirements. 

6) ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A - Plan of Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain and Watershed. 

7) RECOMMENDATION 

That the Council of the City of Port Colborne receives Report 2019-172 with respect to the 
Eagle Marsh Drain Engineer Appointment as information; and 

That Brandon Widner, P. Eng. of Spriet Associates Engineers & Architects be appointed under 
Section 8 of the Drainage Act, R.S.O. 1990 for the preparation of a new engineer's report under 
Section 78 of the Drainage Act, R.S.O. 1990, related to the Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain. 

8) SIGNATURES 

Prepared on November 1, 2019 

Alana Vander Veen 
Drainage Superintendent 

Reviewed and respectfully submitted by: 

Peter Senese 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Reviewed by: 

Steve Shypowskyj 
Acting Director, Engineering & Operations 

Engineering and Operations, Engineering Division Report No. 2019-172 

Page 3 of 3 

55



56



PORT COLBORNE 

Corporate Services Department 
Finance Division 

Report Number: 2019-163 Date: November 12, 2019 

SUBJECT: Audit Results for the year ended December 31, 2018 

1) PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to provide to Council for information, the Audit Results 
report for the year ended December 31, 2018. 

2) BACKGROUND: 

The 2018 financial audit for the City of Port Colborne is complete and as part of that 
process the City's auditor, Grant Thornton has prepared an Audit Results report. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS: 

The purpose of the Audit Results report is to assist Council with their review of the 
findings from the audit of the City's financial statements. 

The Audit Results report discloses the: 
• Purpose of report and scope, 
• Status of the audit, 
• Approach, 
• Risk assessment, 
• Significant risks and areas of focus, 
• Sensitive accounting estimates and disclosures, 
• Adjustments and uncorrected misstatements, 
• Internal control, and 
• Independence. 

During the course to the audit, the City's Auditors identified control deficiencies. The 
issues from the Audit Results report is provided with Management's initiative to address 
each concern. See Appendix D - Internal control letter, to the Audit Results Report for 
additional details. 

Issue #1: Segregation of duties and assignment of administrator rights 

The Director of Corporate Services and the Manager of Revenue and Taxation have 
been assigned administrator rights in the financial reporting application. This allows 
them unrestricted access to all modules of the system, and results in a lack of 
segregation of duties as they are responsible for the City's financial reporting. Although 
our audit procedures did not identify any unauthorized or unusual transactions recorded 
in the financial application by these individuals, the potential exists for unauthorized 
transactions to be recorded by the administrators and go undetected. 

57



Management response 

The Director of Corporate Services and the Manager of Revenue and Taxation 's 
network administrator rights have been removed effective October 15, 2019. The 
Information Technology Manager will assign responsibilities in the financial reporting 
application effective October 15, 2019. 

Issue #2: Review of user access rights 

There is currently no formal process in place for management to regularly review and 
approve user access rights on the network and financial reporting applications. Given 
the segregation of duties issues that have been identified in the assignment of 
administrator rights, the regular review by department supervisors or other management 
of user access rights will ensure that only appropriate and currently employed staff have 
user ID's on the network and in the applications. As well, this review will ensure that the 
users have access appropriate for their roles and responsibilities within the 
organization. 

Management response 

The Director of Corporate Services, the Manager of Revenue and Taxation, and the 
Information Technology Manager will review and approve user access on the network 
and financial reporting applications quarterly beginning October 15, 2019. 

Issue #3: Journal entry controls 

The Director of Corporate Services and the Manager of Revenue and Taxation have the 
ability to post journal entries into the financial reporting application. Duties of senior 
financial reporting personnel should not include the ability to make journal entries as it is 
important to have an appropriate level of review and authorization over journal entries. 
Staff members who have responsibility for authorization and approval of journal entries 
should not have the ability to post entries into the system. 

Management response 

The journal entry controls suggested will require three different individuals to prepare, 
approve and then post a journal entry into the financial reporting application. This 
control is excessive. Senior financial personnel at the City are working managers and at 
times are required to prepare journal entries. Currently, Corporate Services staff 
prepare journal entries. Once prepared, either the Manager of Revenue and Taxation or 
the Director of Corporate Services preform a thorough review, approve and then post 
the journal entry to the financial reporting application. 

Issue #3: Segregation of duties 

During the course of our planning procedures, it came to our attention that segregation 
of duties remains an issue in the accounting cycles of your operations. When duties are 

Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-163 Page 2 of 4 

58



not segregated in the control environment, the City is more susceptible to fraud and 
errors that may not be identified during our audit procedures. 

When one person performs most duties in an accounting cycle, such as revenue, 
collusion is not required to commit fraudulent activities, since there is less likelihood that 
such an activity will be detected. For example, a staff member responsible for billing 
and accounts receivable posting should not be handling cash receipts. The potential is 
there for a misappropriated payment to be not posted to a receivable account and the 
receivable reconciliation to the general ledger to be altered so that the fraud is not 
exposed. If the cash receipts duty is given to another staff member, such a potential 
fraudulent activity could be prevented, the two employees must work together to commit 
the fraudulent act. 

Management response 

Billing and accounts receivable posting will be segregated effective January 1, 2020. 

Now that the 2018 audit is complete, staff would like to thank the City's auditors, Grant 
Thornton, for their efforts and professional advice offered during the course to the aud it. 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

a) Approve the Auditor's Results report 

Council can chose to accept the Auditor's Results report. 

b) Not approve the Auditor's Results report 

Council may chose not to accept and approve the Auditor's Results report and 
request that Grant Thornton review the 'financial results again. Council will need 
to provide clear expectations for the additional review of the City's finances and 
internal controls. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES: 

An annual financial audit provides clarity and financial transparency for the City's 
residents and ratepayers. 

6) ATTACHMENTS: 

Appendix A: Report to the Members of Council - Audit Results dated October 28, 2019. 

7) RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council accept and approve the Audit Results report for the year ended December 
31 , 2018. 

Corporate Services Department, Finance Division , Report 2019-163 Page 3 of 4 

59



8) SIGNATURES: 

Prepared on October 15, 2019 by: Revie~~~nd respec~tfully submitted by: . 

. ~ . .. . I' -;:;;>~ .~ .. ·~ 

Brenda Garrett Peter Senese 
Director of Corporate Services Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-163 Page 4 of 4 

60



Grant Thornton 
An instinct for growth-

Corporation of the City of 
For the year ended December 31 , 2018 

Report to the Members of Council 
Audit results 

October 28, 2019 

James D. Brennan, CPA, CA 
Principal 
T 905-834-6622 
E James.Brennan@ca.gt.com 

ort Colborne 

61



Contents 

Executive summary 

Audit risks and results 

Adjustments and uncorrected misstatements 

Other reportable matters 

Audit fees 

Technical updates - highlights 

1 

2 

7 

9 

10 

11 

Appendices 

Appendix A - Overview and approach 

Appendix B - Draft independent auditor's report 

Appendix C - Draft Management representation letter 

Appendix D - Internal control letter 

Appendix E - PSAS accounting developments 

Appendix F - Auditing developments 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation oflhe City of Port Colbome J For the year ended December 31 , 2018 62



Executive summary 

Purpose of report and scope 
The purpose of this report is to engage in an open dialogue with you regarding 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the City of 
Port Colborne (the "entity") for the year ended December 31, 201 8. This 
communication will assist the Members of Council and management in 
understanding the results of audit procedures and includes comments on 
misstatements, significant accounting policies, sensitive estimates and other 
matters. 

The information in this document is intended solely for the information and use of 
the Members of Council and management. It is not intended to be distributed or 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We were engaged to provide the following deliverables: 

Deliverable Timing 

Report on the December 31. 2018 consolidated financial statements October 28, 2019 

Communication of audit results October 28, 2019 

Preparation of internal controls deficiencies letter October 15, 2019 

Status of our audit 
We have substantially completed our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the entity and the results of that audit are included in this report. 

We will finalize our report upon resolution of the following items that were 
outstanding as at October 28, 2019: 

• Receipt of signed management representation letter (a draft has been 
attached in the appendices) 

• Approval of the consolidated financial statements by Council 
• Procedures regarding subsequent events 
• Responses from legal inquiries 

We have successfully executed our audit strategy in accordance with the plan 
presented to the Members of Council and management on November 23, 2018. 

Approach 
Our audit approach requires that we establish an overall strategy that focuses on 
risk areas. We identify and assess risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. The greater the 
risk of material misstatement associated with an area of the consolidated 
financial statements, including disclosures, the greater the audit emphasis placed 
on it in terms of audit verification and analysis. Where the nature of a risk of 
material misstatement is such that it requires special audit consideration, it is 
classified as a significant risk. 

Our approach is discussed further in Appendix A of report. 

Report to the Members of Council -Audit results 

Corporation of the City or Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31 . 201 6 

63



Audit risks and results 

Risk assessment 
We have executed our audit in accordance with our approach summarized in Appendix A. 

Our risk assessment process identified certain significant risks. In addition, we identified certain other areas where we focused our attention. 

We highlight our significant findings in respect of transactions, risks, accounting practices and other areas of focus. 

Significant risks and areas of focus 
The following is a summary of areas of focus, and the related matters and findings we would like to communicate to the Members of Council and management. 

Area of foc us 

Fraud risk from revenue recognition 

Matte r 

There is a presumed risk of fraud in revenue. 

• The risk primarily relates to revenue recognized under 
water and sewer and other revenue 

Our respon s e and findi ng s 

• Recalculation of the net tax revenues based on verified 
assessment rolls and approved tax rates 

• Analytical assessment of revenues based on budgeted 
expectations 

• Subsequent receipts testing of receivables as at 
December 31, 2018 (statistical sample) 

• Assessed the adequacy of allowances for doubtful 
accounts by testing subsequent receipts, reviewing 
management estimates and examining supporting 
documentation 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Cotborne I For the year ended December 31 . 2018 2 64



Area of focus 

Fraud risk from management override I segregation of 
duties 

Taxation reveQue and rece'i.vables 

Purchases and payables 

Provisions for employee benefits 

Matter 

This is a presumed fraud risk. 

• The risk primarily relates to limited segregation of duties, 
administrative access to accounting system and the senior 
finance management's ability to post journal entries 

The taxes receivable balances may be invalid and the 
allowance for uncollectible taxes understated. 

Payables may be understated or not recorded in the correct 
period. 

Provision and related expense may be understated. 

Our response and findings 

Tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in 
the general ledger and other adjustments made in the 
preparation of the financial statements 

• Reviewed accounting estimates for biases 

• Evaluated the business rationale for significant transactions 
that are or appear to be outside the normal course of 
business 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

• Recalculation of the net tax revenues based on verified 
assessment rolls and approved tax rates 

• Subsequent receipts testing of taxes receivable as at 
December 31, 2018 (statistical sample) 

• Assessed the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts by testing subsequent receipts, reviewing 
management estimates and examining support for the 
value of underlying property 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

• Analytical assessment of expenses based on budgeted 
expectations 

• Reviewed supporting documentation and management 
estimates with respect to the completeness and accuracy 
of significant year end accruals 

• Performed a search for unrecorded liabilities 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

• Reviewed actuarial reports, method and assumptions used 

• Tested supporting calculations relating to the various 
amounts and disclosures 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

Report to the Members of Council -Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2018 3 

65



Area of focus Matter 

Commitrnents and contingencies There is uncertainty regarding contingent liabilities. 

Our response and findings 

• Verified the accuracy and reasonableness of amounts and 
disclosures, with reference to correspondence with 
lawyers, examination of supporting documentation, and 
discussions with management 

There were no significant findings as a result of these 
procedures. 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City or Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2018 4 66



Sensitive accounting estimates and disclosures 
Area of focus 

Sensit i ve accounting estimates and disclosures 

Sensitive accounting estimates and disclosures 

Matter 

The provision for vested sick leave of approximately$ 264,000 
and retirement benefits of approximately $ 6,350,000. 

The provision for the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board 
future benefits of approximately$ 1,900,000. 

Our response and findings 

• Management engaged an actuary to calculate the liabilities 
for vested sick leave and for employees who have taken 
early retirement based on the current annual benefits and 
the number of years until the employees turn 65. 

• Liabilities have been recognized in the financial statements 
for vested sick leave and employee retirement benefits. 
The objective is to recognize a liability in the reporting 
period in which employees have provided the services that 
give rise to the benefits. Management's estimate is based 
on the actuary's valuation report and is reasonable in the 
context of the consolidated financial statements taken as a 
whole. The actuary's valuation was performed in 
accordance with the standards of the Canadian Institute of 
Actuaries. 

• Management's estimate is reasonable in the context of the 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

The Municipality is a Workplace Safety and Insurance 
Board ("WSIB") Schedule II employer under the Workplace 
Safety & Insurance Act and follows a policy of self
insurance for all its employees. 

• An actuarial estimate of future liabilities has been 
completed and forms the basis for the estimated liability 
reported in these financial statements. The Municipality 
remits payments to the WSIB as required to fund disability 
payments. 

• Management's estimate is reasonable in the context of the 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

Report to the Members of Council -Audit results 

Corporation Of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2018 5 

67



Area of focus 

Sensitive accounting estimates and d jsclosures 

Factors affecting dlsclosure values 

Matter 

The provision for uncollectible taxes of approximately 
$ 224,000. 

Useful life estimates of tangible capital assets 

Our response and findings 

• Management reviews previous year's rebates to determine 
the current years. Management also reviews accounts 
which are significantly in arrears and determines if it is 
likely that they will be collected either through the land 
owner or through tax sale. 

For tax revenue amounts billed but may not be collected as 
of December 31, 2018. For uncollected accounts, 
management estimates the collectability of these 
receivables based on their age and their knowledge of the 
specific properties. As part of our audit, we review the age 
of the receivables and search for any subsequent receipts 
or relevant communications to assess whether 
management's allowance for uncollectable receivables is 
reasonable. 

• Management's estimate is reasonable in the context of the 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

The estimated useful lives assigned to tangible assets a re as 
follows: 

Land improvements 
Buildings 
Leasehold improvement 
Vehicles 
Office equipment and furniture and 
fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 

10-100 years 
20-50 years 
20-50 years 
10-20 years 

5-1 0 years 
3-30 years 
10-100 years 

Report to the Members of Council -Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colborne I For the year ended December 31. 2018 6 68



Adjustments and uncorrected 
misstatements 

Adjustments 
Misstatements identified and adjusted in the consolidated financial statements by the entity as a result of our audit procedures are as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) Statement of Financial Position 
Statement of 
Operations 
Effect 

Description Assets Liabilities Accumulated surplus Annual surplus 

To correct OCIF revenue for deferred amount 

Total adjustments 

Other adjustments 
Misstatements made the following adjustments after receipt of the trial balance and audit working papers: 

Increase (Decrease) Statement of Financial Position 

$ 61,600 

$ 61,600 

$ (61 .600) 

$ (61 ,600) 

Statement of 
Operations 
Effect 

Description Assets Liabilities Accumulated surplus Annual surplus 

160 adjusting journal entries to record andlor adjust various amounts 

andlor accounts 

Total adjustments 

$ 527,641 

$ 527,641 

$ 474,290 s (143,048) $ 196,399 

$ 474,290 $ (143,048) $ 196,399 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation Of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended Oecember 31, 201 e 7 

69



Uncorrected misstatements 
Non-trivial misstatements noted during the course of our audit but not adjusted in the consolidated financial statements were as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) Statement of Financial Position 

Description 

T o reverse the prior year accrual for statutory holidays which were not 

recorded as part of the prior year end payroll accrual. 

To record prior year impact of vacation accrual not recorded. 

Total adjustments 

Summary of disclosure matters 

Assets 

Our audit did not identify any unadjusted non-trivial misstatements of disclosure matters. 

Liabilities 

Statement of 
Operations 
Effect 

Accumulated surplus Annual surplus 

$ 29,409 $ (29,409) 

166 ,358 (166,358) 

$ 195,767 $ (195,767) 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation or the City or Port Colborne I For the year ended December 31, 2018 8 70



Other reportable matters 

Internal control 
The audit is designed to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We obtain an understanding of internal control over financial 
reporting to the extent necessary to plan the audit and to determine the nature, 
timing and extent of our work. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control. 

If we become aware of a deficiency in your internal control over financial 
reporting, the auditing standards require us to communicate to the Members of 
Council and management those deficiencies we consider significant. However, a 
financial statement audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control. 

Please refer to Appendix D for a detailed explanation of the internal control 
observations noted during our audit. 

Independence 
We have a rigorous process where we continually monitor and maintain our 
independence. The process of maintaining our independence includes, but is not 
limited to: 

• Identification of threats to our independence and putting into place safeguards 
to mitigate those threats. For example, we evaluate the independence threat 
of any non-audit services provided to the entity 

• Confirming the independence of our engagement team members 

We have identified no information regarding our independence that in our 
judgment should be brought to your attention. 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31 , 2018 9 

71



Audit ees 

Proposed fees 
Service 

Audit of the consolidated 
financial statements and 
trust financial statements 

Additional audit work 
related to the system 
conversion 

Total* 

*before applicable taxes 

Current year fees 

$ 39,600 

$ 39,600 

Prior year fees 

$ 38,800 

1,000 

$ 39,800 

Fee considerations 
Upfront and periodic discussions are central to our approach in dealing 
with fees. Our goal is to avoid surprises by having early and frank 
communication. We wish to provide you with a competitive price and fair 
value, while also allowing sufficient audit hours to conduct an effective 
audit and deliver quality seNice. 

We have established a fee for the audit for the year ended December 31 , 
2018 that is based on the level of activity and the anticipated complexity 
of the audit of the entity's consolidated financial statements. If there are 
any variances to the above plan, we will discuss them with you and 
agree on any additional fees before costs are incurred, wherever 
possible. Any unforeseen work outside the scope of this proposal will be 
billed separately after discussion with appropriate entity officials and/or 
the audit committee. 

The proposed fee is based on receiving the following from management 
at the commencement of the audit: 

• All working papers and schedules as outlined in our requirements letter 

• Trial balance together with reconciled control accounts 

• All books and records when requested 

• Use of entity staff to help us locate information and provide explanations 

Report to the Members of Council -Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2018 10 

72



Technical updates - highlights 

Accounting 
Accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board that may affect 
the entity in future years are included in Appendix E. If you have any questions 
about these changes we invite you to raise them during our next meeting. We will 
be pleased to address your concerns. 

Assurance 
Auditing standards issued by the Audit and Assurance Standards Board that may 
change the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the entity and 
our communication with the Members of Council and management are included 
in Appendix F. If you have any questions about these changes we invite you to 
raise them during our next meeting. We will be pleased to address your 
concerns. 

Report to the Members of Council -Audit results 

CorporaUon Of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31. 2018 11 

73



Appe 
m 

I - II 

verv1ew ap r ach 

Our audit is planned with the objective of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, so that we are able to express an opinion on whether the consolidated financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with 
[Applicable financial reporting framework]. The following outlines key concepts that are applicable to the audit, including the responsibilities of parties involved, our 
general audit approach and other considerations. 

Roles and responsibilities 
Role of the Council 

Role of management 

Role of Grant Thornton LLP 

Help set the tone for the organization by emphasizing honesty, ethical behaviour and fraud prevention 

• Oversee management, including ensuring that management establishes and maintains internal controls to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
reliability of financial reporting 

• Recommend the nomination and compensation of external auditors to the board 

• Directly oversee the ~ork of the external auditors including reviewing and discussing the audit plan 

• Prepare financial statements in accordance with [Applicable financial reporting framework] 

• Design, implement and maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting processes, including controls to prevent and detect fraud 

, Exercise sound judgment in selecting and applying accounting policies 

Prevent, detect and correct errors, including those caused by fraud 

• Provide representations to external auditors (move this sentence to the owner I manager box if there is no other "management" in the entity] 

Assess quantitative and qualitative impact of misstatements discovered during the audit on fair presentation of the financial statements 

Provide an audit opinion that the financial statements are in accordance with [Applicable financial reporting framework] 

• Conduct our audit in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) 

Maintain independence and objectivity 

Be a resource to management and to those charged with governance 

• Communicate matters of interest to those charged with governance 

• Establish an effective two-way communication with those charges with governance, to report matters of interest to them and obtain their comments on 
audit risk matters 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2018 
74



Audit approach 
Our understanding of the entity and its operations drives our audit approach, which is risk based and specifically tailored to the Corporation of the City of Port 
Colborne. 

The five key phases of our audit approach 

Planning 

Phase 

1. Planning 

2. Assess ing rjsk 

3. Evaluating internal control s 

4. Testing accounts and t ransac;tions 

5. Concluding and reporting 

Assessing 
risk 

Our approach 

Evaluating 
internal 
controls 

Testing 
accounts and 
transactions 

• We obtain our understanding of your operations, internal controls and information systems 

• We plan the audit timetable together 

• We use our knowledge gained from the planning phase to assess financial reporting risks 

• We customize our audit approach to focus our efforts on key areas 

• We evaluate the design of controls you have implemented over financial reporting risks 

Concluding 
and reporting 

• We identify areas where our audit could be more effective or efficient by taking an approach that includes testing the controls 

• We provide you with information about the areas where you could potentially improve your controls 

• We perform tests of balances and transactions 

• We use technology and tools, including data interrogation tools, to perform this process in a way that enhances effectiveness and efficiency 

We conclude on the sufficiency and appropriateness of our testing 

• We finalize our report and provide you with our observations and recommendations 

Our tailored audit approach results in procedures designed to respond to an identified risk. The greater the risk of material misstatement associated with the account, 
class of transactions or balance, the greater the audit emphasis placed on it in terms of audit verification and analysis. 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2018 75



Throughout the execution of our audit approach, we will maintain our professional skepticism, recognizing the possibility that a material misstatement due to fraud 
could exist notwithstanding our past experiences with the entity and our beliefs about management's honesty and integrity. 

Internal control 
Our audit will include gaining an understanding of the entity's internal control over financial reporting. Our understanding will focus on processes associated with the 
identified risk areas, as described in this report. We use this understanding to determine the nature, extent and timing of our audit procedures. 

Our understanding may also result in valuable internal control findings for your consideration. Note that the auditor's objectives with regards to internal control are 
different from those of management and those charged with governance. For example, we primarily target controls that relate to financial reporting and not those that 
relate to the entity's operations or compliance which may also be relevant to its objectives. Therefore, management and those charged with governance cannot solely 
rely on our findings to discharge their responsibilities in this area. 

Quality control 
We have a robust quality control program that forms a core part of our client service. We combine internationally developed audit methodology, data analytics 
technology that allows us to examine large amounts of data, rigorous review procedures, mandatory professional development requirements, and the use of 
specialists to deliver high quality audit services to our clients. In addition to our internal processes, we are subject to inspection and oversight by standard setting and 
regulatory bodies. We are proud of our firm's approach to quality control and would be pleased to discuss any aspect of our approach to quality control with you at 

your convenience. 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City or Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31. 201 B 
76



Appendix B - Draft independent 
auditor's report 

Independent auditor's report 

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Taxpayers of the 

The Corporation of the City of Port Colbome 

Opinion 

/~ 

t--....._ 

\ 
\ 

\._...., 

\.... 

\... 

.# 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Corpo:mtioil"';·f:ib:e; dty of Port Colborne ("the Municipality''), which comprise the consolidated 

statement of financial position as at December 31, 2Q1~8~;na:~e, co0:sb1~-::;;1 statements of operations, changes in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, 

and notes to the consolidated financial statements,1mcluding a summary of.significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the Corporation of the City of 
Port Colborne as at December 31, 2018, and its results 'of operations, its changes in its net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 

with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 

Attddor's Re.rpon.ribilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Municipality in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit resulls 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2018 77



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statem ents 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector 

accounting standards, and for such internal con trol as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Municipality's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to a going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Municipality or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. t).. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Municipality's financial reporting process. 
,,... 

Auditor's Responsib ili ties for the A udit o f the Consolidated Financ ial Statements · · -? 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated fina~cial sta&ments as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reaso;abl~· assurance is a high -level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards_ will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggr~te, they could reas<:riiably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. \ 

'\ 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auClitiog stand&Jds, we.exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
-· "" throughout the audit. We also: - ._ f. ~./ 

....... ... ~~--
~~~~,,. .... 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstate1ll::fE.,~,i;,w.~ cons<%,dated firiancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain"'~udit e~~eii,ce thitt\,.stifficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud ~Wgher than fo'?~ne re~clting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal hwtrol. ~1 

~- .i.r~ i. l:f 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevanh:o the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenes's d(tlie Municipality's internal control. 
,. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Municipality's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Municipality to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Report to the Members of Council -Audit results 

Corporation or the City of Port Colborne I For the year ended December 31, 2018 
78



• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Municipality and the 
organizations it controls to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. ~ 

Port Colborne, Canada 

October _, 2019 

.A. 

·T 
Chartered Professional Accountants 

Licensed Public Accountants 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31. 2018 79



Appendi 
represe 

October _ , 2019 

Grant Thornton LLP 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
PO Box 336 
Port Colborne, ON 
L3KSW1 

Dear Sirs: 

-
ati 

aft ma 
etter 

'¥. 

\ 
'\ 
~ 
~ 
~ 

·~_, 

-

age ent 

~-

,,,. 

j 

-· ~ 

.-# 

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the con.~_olid~ted..fin_aiaCial statements of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne as of 
December 31, 2018, and for the year then ended, for tJ;e..pllrP,_ose ~-r~i:ressirig.ah. opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position, results of og¢£atio ns; a'rrd,_ casn"ff.O.}V_§<'Of the Corporation of the City of Port Colbome in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards. ~ 

We acknowledge that we have fulfilled our responsibilit;ies for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards and for the design and impleme;ta'~ol,1 of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud and error. We have assessed the risk that the 
consolidated financial statements may be materially missta~l!P,~s a result of fraud, and have determined such risk to be low. Further, we acknowledge that your 
examination was planned and conducted in accordance with"Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) so as to enable you to express an opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements. We understand that while your work includes an examination of the accounting system, internal controls and related data to 
the extent you con~idered necessary in the circumstances, it is not designed to identify, nor can it necessarily be expected to disclose, fraud, shortages, errors and 
other irregularities, should any exist. 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. An item is considered material, regardless of its monetru.y value, if it 
is probable that its omission from or misstatement in the consolidated financial statements would influence the decision of a reasonable person relying on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Report to the Members or Council -Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31 , 2018 
80



We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of Ocrober __ , 2019, the following representations made to you during your audit. 

Financial statements 

1 The consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the entity as at December 31, 2018 and 
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, as agreed to in the 
terms of the audit engagement 

Completeness of information ~ 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

We have made available to you all financial records and related data and all minutes of the meetings of Council and committees of Council, as agreed in the 
terms of the audit engagement. Summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared have been provided to you. All 
significant Council and committee actions are included in the summaries. ,,.._ "'" 

-"' 
We have provided you with unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom ~u determinedit necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records underlying the consolidated financial statements. TI1e 
adjusting journal entries which have been proposed by you are approved·by us and will be rec2rded on the books of the entity. 

"'·;''7 

We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance ~1'.b.e req~~if.ements of regulatory or governmental authorities, including their 
financial reporting requirements. ::: '\. :~ · 

~ -

We are unaware of any violations or possible violations of.~ws or.regulations\{effects of which should be considered for disclosure in the consolidated 
~ :~ . .# 

financial statements or as the basis of recording a contingen'rJo~~ 
~-·~ .....,.... 

__.....,1'9"11i..... ...:!'\. 

We have disclosed to you all known deficiencies bi th~"'Cl'e~ or ;~'tation of internal control over financial reporting of which we are aware. 
. 'l, ~·:· 

We have identified to you all known related parties and relatJd parcy transactions, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, 
leasing arrangements guarantees, non-monetary transaction~ !ffid transactions for no consideration. 

F' 
You provided a non-attest service by assisting us with diafting the consolidated financial statements and related notes. In connection with this non-attest 
service, we confirm that we have made all managemeAt decisions and performed all management functions, have the knowledge to evaluate the accuracy and 
completeness of the consolidated financial statements, and accept responsibility for sucl1 consolidated financial statements. 

Fraud and error 

10 We have no knowledge of fraud o r suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management; employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
o thers, where the fraud could have a non-trivial effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit resu lts 

Corporation of the City or Port Colborne I For the year ended December 31, 2018 81



11 We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity's financial statements communicated by employees, former 
employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

12 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

13 We believe that the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements summarized in the accompanying schedule are immaterial, both individually 
and in the aggregate, to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

Recognition, measurement and disclosure ~ 

14 We believe that the significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those used in arriving at the fair values of financial 
instruments as measured and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, are reasonable and.appropriate in the circumstances . 

.,,,,... . - ~ .. 

15 We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets ahdJiabiliti.es, both financial and non-financial, reflected 
in the consolidated financial statements. "\.. ?' 

16 All related party transactions have been appropriately measured and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. 
"'~ 

17 

18 

19 

20 

_,,.~ 

The nature of all material measurement uncertainties has been appropria~ely-di_stj~sed in !lie consolidated financial statemen ts, including all estimates where it 
is reasonably possible that the estimate will change in the near term and tli~g'ffect·6~th_e.;ochange could be material to the consolidated financial statements. 

-=-- ' -----· ~-
All outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have been discussed"\yijh legal counsel, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in 
the consolidated financial statements. ,.:.>~~ J~ -

~.-"'~~ 
-~" ~--~ 

All liabilities and contingencies, including those as§~ted with ~hantees: whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected 
in the consolidated financial statements. / ;; ' -" .... -~ 

Af"-v-
With respect to environmental m atters: 

, .,~i":t 
.. ~, 'f..-i 

a) 

b) 

c) 

• 
at year end, there were no liabilities or contingen~ci~1s fb-at have not already been disclosed to you; 

,, ' 
liabilities or con tingencies have been recognized, rfreasured and disclosed, as appropriate, in the consolidated financial statements; and 

J 

commitments have been measured and disclosed, as appropriate, in the consolidated financial statements. 

21 The entity has satisfactory title to (or lease interest in) all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on the entity's assets nor has any been pledged as 
collateral. 

22 We have disclosed to you, and the entity has complied with, all aspects of contractual agreements diat could have a material effect on the consolidated financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt. 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City ol Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31 , 2018 
82



23 The Harmonized Sales Tax (HST) transactions recorded by the entity are in accordance with the federal and provincial regulations. The HST 
liability/ receivable amounts recorded by the entity are considered complete. 

24 Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been determined, accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Section 3250 
&:tirement Benefits and Section 3255 Post-Employment Benefits, Compensated Absences and Terminations Benefits of the Canadian Institute o f Chartered Accountants 
(CICA) Public Sector - Accounting. 

25 There have been no events subsequent to the statement of financial position date up to the date ~ereof that would require recognition or disclosure in the 
consolidated financial statements. Further, there have been no events subsequent to the date of the comparative financial statements that would require 
adjustment of those financial statements and related notes. 

Other 

/-~ .... ~ ·-.;-:: 

26 We have considered whether or not events have occurred or conditions exist whiah may ~st significant d0ubt on the Municipality's ability to continue as a 
going concern and have concluded that no such events or conditions are evident- ;,:... 

Yours very t.tuly, 
\~' 

\ 

Chief Administrative Officer 
\ 
~~~ 

Director of Corporate Services/Treasurer 

Ar 

.-0 

Report to the Members or Council -Audit results 

Corporation of the City or Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31 , 2018 83



Non-trivial misstatements noted during the course of our audit bu t not adjusted in the consolidated financial statements were as follows: 

Unadjusted misstatements Assets 

To reverse the prior year accrual for 
statutory holidays which were not 
recorded as part of the prior year end 
payroll accrual. 

To record prior year impact of vacation 
accrual not recorded. -

Total unadjusted misstatements $ NII 

Overstatement (Understatement) 

Liabilities Accumulated 
Surplus 

I 

$ 29,409 

166,358 

$ NII $ 195,767 

Annual 
Surplus 

$ ~29,409) 

(1 66,358) 

$ (195,767) 
-

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 201 B 
84



Appendix D - Internal control letter 
October 15, 2019 

City of Port Colborne 
66 Charlotte Street 
Port Colborne, ON 
L3K3C8 

Dear Members of Management: 

In connection with our audit of the City of Port Colbome financial statements as of December 31, 2018 and for the year then ended, the Canadian Auditing 
Standards require that we advise management and Council (hereinafter referred to as "those charged with governance") of the following internal control matters 
identified during our audit. 

Our resp onsibilities 
Our responsibility, as prescribed by the Canadian Auditing Standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting 
(hereinafter referred to as "internal control'') as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of identifying deficiencies in internal control or expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion on internal control effectiveness. 

Iden tified de ficiencies in internal control 
\Ve identified the following internal control matters as of the date of this letter that are of sufficient importance to merit your attention. 

Significant deficiencies 
Our consideration of internal control would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that, individually or in combination, may be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control ("control deficiency'') exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination o f 
deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's annual or interim 
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those responsible for oversight of the City's financial 
reporting (also referred to as those charged with governance). 

Report to the Members of Council - Audi! results 

Corporation of the City Of Port Colbome J For the year ended December 31, 2018 85



\Ve consider the following identified control deficiencies to be significant deficiencies. 

Information Technology 

Segregation of duties and assignment of administrator rights 

The following weaknesses have been identified in the information technology system, specifically relating to the assignment of responsibilities and network 
administrator rights: 

• The Di.rector of Corporate Services and the Manager of Revenue and Taxation have been assigned administrator rights in the financial reporting 
application. This allows them unrestricted access to all modules of the system, and results in a lack of segregation of duties as they are responsible for the 
City's financial reporting. Although our audit procedures did not identify any unauthorized or unusual transactions recorded in the financial application by 
these individuals, the potential exists for unauthorized transactions to be recorded by the administrators and go undetected. 

Management response 

The Director of Co1porate Services and the Manage1· of Revenue and Taxation '.r net1vork administrator rights have been removed effective October 15, 2019. The Infimnation Technolol!JI 
Manager will assign responsibilities in the financial reporting application effective October 15, 2019. 

Review of user access rights 

There is currently no formal process in place for management to regularly review and approve user access rights on tl1e network and financial reporting applications. 
Given tl1e segregation of duties issues tl1at have been identified in the assignment of administrator rights, the regular review by department supervisors or otl1er 
management of user access rights will ensure that only appropriate and currently employed staff have user ID's on the network and in the applications. As well, this 
review will ensure that the users have access appropriate for their roles and responsibilities within tlle organization. 

Management response 

The Director of Corporate Services, the Manager of Revenue and Taxation, and the Information Technolol!JI Manager will revie111 and approve user access on the network and financial reporting 
applications quarter& beginning October 15, 2019. 

Journal entry controls 

The Director of Corporate Services and the Manager of Revenue and Taxation have the ability to post journal entries into the financial reporting application. 
Duties of senior financial reporting personnel should not include the ability to make journal entries as it is important to have an appropriate level of review and 
authorization over journal entries. Staff members who have responsibility for autl10rization and approval of journal entries should not have the ability to post 
entries into tl1e system. 

Report to the Members of Council -Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31 , 2018 
86



Management response 

The jottrnal entry controls mggested will req11ire three different individuals to prepare, approve and then post a journal entry into the financial reporting application. This control is excessive. 
Senior financial personnel at the Ciry are working managers and at times are required to prepare journal entries. Current!J, Corporate S eroices stqff prepare journal entries. Once prepared, either 
the Manager of Revenue and Taxation or the Director of Corporate S eroices preform a thorough revic1v, approve and then post the journal entry to the financial reporting application. 

Financial Activities 

Segregation of duties 

During the course of our planning procedures it came to our attention that segregation of duties remains an issue in the accounting cycles of your operations. 
When duties are not segregated in the control environment, the City is more susceptible to fraud and errors that may not be identified during our audit procedures. 

When one person performs most duties in an accounting cycle, such as revenue, collusion is not required to commit fraudulent activities, since there is less 
likelihood that such an activity will be detected. For example, a staff member responsible for billing and accounts receivable posting should not be handling cash 
receipts. The potential is there for a misappropriated payment to be not posted to a receivable account and the receivable reconciliation to the general ledger to be 
altered so that the fraud is not exposed. If the cash receipts duty is given to another staff member, such a potential fraudulent activity could be prevented, the two 
employees must work together to commit the fraudulent act. 

Management response 

Billing and accounts receivable posting 1vi/I be segregated effective January 1, 2020. 

Management responses 

The Managem ent's written responses to the internal control matters identified herein have not been subjected to our audit procedures and accordingly, we express 
no opinion on them. 

*** 

Th.is communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, those charged with governance, and others within the City and is not intended 
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Yours sincerely, 

Grant Thornton LLP 

Report to the Members of Counci l -Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31. 2018 87



Apoen-dix E - PSAS 
ccounting develo en ts 

Public Sector Account ing Standards [updated March 31, 2019] 

Section PS 3400 Revenues 

New Section PS 3400 Revenue establishes standards on how to account for and report on revenue . It does not apply to 
revenues for w hich specific standards already exist, such as government transfers, tax revenue or restricted revenues. The 
Section distinguishes between revenue that arises from transactions that include performance obligations (i.e., exchange 
transactions) and transactions that do not have performance obligations (i.e., non-exchange transactions). The main 
features of the new Section are: 

Performance obligations are defined as enforceable promises to provide specific goods or services to a specific payor 
• Revenue from transactions with performance obligations will be recognized when (or as) the performance obligation is 

satisfied by providing the promised goods or services to the payor 
Revenue from transactions with no performance obligations will be recognized when a public sector entity has the 
authority to claim or retain the revenue and identifies a past transaction or event that gives rise to an asset 

Section PS 3280 Asset retirement obligations 

New Section PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations establishes standards on how to account for and report a liability for 
asset retirement obligations. An asset retirement obligation is a legal obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible 
capital asset. 

Asset retirement costs associated with a tangible capital asset increase the carrying amount of the related tangible capital 
asset and are expensed in a rational and systematic manner, while asset retirement costs associated with an asset no 
longer in productive use are expensed. Measurement of the liability for an asset retirement obligation should result in the 
best estimate of the amount required to retire a tangible capital asset at the financial statement date. A present value 
technique is often the best method to estimate the liability. Subsequent measurement of the liability can result in either a 
change in the carrying amount of the related tangible capital asset, or an expense, depending on the nature of the 
remeasurement or whether the asset remains in productive use. 

As a result of the issuance of Section PS 3280, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) approved the withdrawal of 
Section PS 3270 Solid waste landfill closure and post-closure liability as asset retirement obligations associated with 
landfills will be within the scope of PS 3280. PS 3280 does not address costs related to remediation of contaminated sites, 
which will continue to be addressed in Section PS 3260 Uability for contaminated sites. Some consequential amendments 
have been made to PS 3260 to conform with PS 3280 and further clarify the scope of each standard. 

Effective date 

Fiscal years beginning on or after 
April 1, 2022. 

Earlier adoption is permitted, 

Fiscal years beginning on or after 
April 1, 2021 . 

Earlier adoption is permitted. 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

CorporaUon of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2018 

88



Section PS 3450 Financial instruments, Section PS 2601 Foreign currency translation, Section PS 1201 Financial 
statement presentation, and PS 3041 Portfolio investments · 

PS 3450 Financial instruments is a new Section that establishes standards for recognizing and measuring financial assets, 
financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives. Some highlights of the requirements include: 

a public sector entity should recognize a financial asset or a financial liability on its statement of financial position when 
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument 

financial instruments within the scope of the Section are assigned to one of two measurement categories: fair value, or 
cost I amortized cost 

• almost all derivatives are measured at fair value 

fair value measurement is required for portfolio investments in equity instruments that are quoted in an active market 

• other financial assets and financial liabilities are generally measured at cost or amortized cost 

until an item is derecognized, gains and losses arising due to fair value remeasurement are reported in the statement of 
remeasurement gains and losses 

• when the public sector entity defines and implements a risk management or investment strategy to manage and 
evaluate the performance of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both on a fair value basis. the entity may 
elect to include these items in the fair value category 

additional disclosures with respect to financial instruments will be required, including the nature and eictent of risks 
arising from a public sector entity's financial instruments 

PS 2601 Foreign currency translation revises and replaces Section PS 2600 Foreign currency translation. Some highlights 
of the requirements include: 

• the deferral and amortization of foreign exchange gains and losses relating to long-term foreign currency denominated 
monetary items is discontinued 

until the period of settlement, foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of remeasurement 
gains and losses rather than the statement of operations 

PS 1201 Financial statement presentation revises and replaces Section PS 1200 Financial statement presentation. The 
main amendment to this Section is the addition of the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. 

PS 3041 Portfolio investments revises and replaces Section PS 3040 Portfolio investments. 

The issuance of these new sections also includes consequential amendments to: 

Introduction to accounting standards that apply only to government not-for-profit organizations 

• PS 1000 Financial statement concepts 

• PS 1100 Financial statement objectives 

PS 2125 First-time adoption by government organizations 

• PS 2500 Basic principles of consolidation 

• PS 251 O Additional areas of consolidation 

PS 3050 Loans receivable 

• PS 3060 Government partnerships 

• PS 3070 Investments in government business enterprises 

PS 3230 Long-term debt 

PS 3310 Loan guarantees 

PS 4200 Financial statement presentation by not-for-profit organizations 

The new requirements are all 
required to be applied at the 
same time. 

For governments - Fiscal years 
beginning on or after April 1, 
2021 . This effective date was 
amended In March 2018. 

For government organizations 
that applied the CPA Canada 
Handbook -Accounting prior to 
their adoption of the CPA 
Canada Public Sector Accounting 
Handbook - Fiscal years 
beginning on or after April 1, 
2012. 

For all other government 
organizations - Fiscal years 
beginning on or after April 1, 
2021 . This effective date was 
amended In March 2018. 

Earlier adoption is permitted. 

Report to the Member.1 of Council -Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31. 2018 

89



Public Sector Accounting Standards (updated March 31, 2019] 

PSG-6 Including results of organizations and partnerships applying fair value measurement was withdrawn as a result of 
the issuance of these sections. 

In January 2019, the PSAB issued an exposure draft to clarify aspects of the Section's application and add new guidance 
to the transitional provisions of Section PS 3450. 

Effective date 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 201 B 

90



Strategic plan for not-for-profit organizations in the public sector 
Since 201 2, government not-for-profit organizations (GNPOs) have been required to adopt PSAS, but were given the option of applying the specific GNPO accounting standards in 
PSAS. Some GNPOs have utilized those standards, while others have not. The PSAB recognized that a "one-size-fits-all" approach may not be appropriate for all stakeholders. 
As a result, the PSAB's 2017-2020 Strategic Plan planned to assess the specific needs of public sector NPO stakeholders. PSAB's 2018-2019 Annual Plan includes the following 
specific objectives for implementing its strategy: 

• developing a GNPO strategy that meets the public interest; and 

• enhancing engagement with users of GNPO financial statements. 

In 2018, PSAB consulted with over 100 GNPO stakeholders to understand their fiscal and regulatory environment, their financial reporting needs, and their financial reporting 
perspectives. Diversity in the financial reporting framework, presentation of net debt and fund accounting, the impact of balanced budget requirements and endowments were some 
of the items stakeholders raised. 

In March 2019, the PSAB approved a consultation paper Government Not-for-Profit that will articulate the results of their consultations and seek stakeholder input in developing a 
strategy for GNPOs. The consultation paper will be issued for comment in spring 2019 and the comment period will end on September 30, 2019. During the comment period, PSAB 
staff plans to consult extensively with GNPO stakeholders. 

Concepts underlying financial performance 
In response to feedback from stakeholders, including the senior government finance community, the PSAB is proposing changes to its conceptual framework and its reporting 
model with a focus on measuring the financial performance of public sector entities. The changes will be made through the following actions: 

1. Issuing a revised conceptual framework to replace two Sections in the PSA Handbook: 
PS 1000 Financial statement concepts 
PS 1100 Financial statement objectives 

2. Issuing a revised financial statement presentation standard that would replace Section PS 1201 Financial statement presentation. 

In May 2018, PSAB released two documents for comment related to this project: 

Statement of Concepts, A Revised Conceptual Framework for the Canadian Public Sector 
A conceptual framework is a clear set of related concepts that act as the foundation for the development of standards and the application of professional judgment. The Statement 
of Concepts presents and explains key concepts that the PSAB expects to include in a future exposure draft. The components of the PSAB's proposed conceptual framework are 
as follows: 

• Characteristics of public sector entities 

• Financial reporting objectives 
• Role of financial statements 
• Financial statement foundations 
• Financial statement objectives 

Report to the Members or Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended Oecember 31, 201 B 

91



• Qualitative characteristics of information and related considerations 

• Elements of financial statements 

• Recognition and measurement 
• Presentation concepts 

The Statement of Concepts also sets the foundation for the revised reporting model in the PSAB's concurrently issued Statement of Principles below. 

Statement of Principles, A Revised Reporting Model for the Canadian Public Sector 
The PSAB is proposing a revised reporting model that builds on the existing reporting model in Section PS 1201 Financial statement presentation. The Statement of Principles 
presents and explains key principles that the PSAB expects to include in a future exposure draft. Some of the main features of the proposals in the Statement of Principles include: 

• In the statement of financia l position: 

o The net debt indicator would be removed and instead a revised net debt calculation would be moved to its own statement, the statement of net debt or net financial assets 

o The accumulated surplus (deficit) indicator would be relabelled as net assets (net liabilities) 

o A new third component, accumulated other, would be added to net assets or net liabilities (existing Section PS 1201 includes two components of accumulated surplus: 
accumulated operating surplus or deficit and accumulated remeasurement gains and losses) 

o The structure would be amended to present financial assets, then non-financial assets, followed by liabilities, to arrive at the net assets or net liabilities position 

• The statement of operations would be renamed as the statement of surplus or deficit; 

• The statement of remeasurement gains and losses would be expanded to reconcile the balances of and changes in all the components of net assets or net liabilities and it would 
be renamed as the statement of changes in net assets or net liabilities; 

• Financing activities would be isolated in the statement of cash flows; 

• The statement of changes in net debt would be removed; and 
• The budget amounts on the financial statements would be presented using the same basis of accounting, following the same accounting principles, for the same scope of 

activities, and using the same classifications as the actual amounts. 

In March 2019, the PSAB received a high-level summary of the comments received from stakeholders on the Statement of Concepts and the Statement of Principles. The PSAB 
discussed the relationship between the conceptual framework project, the project on its approach to International Public Sector Accounting Standards, and the GNPO project and 
reconfirmed the need for continuing collaboration between the three projects. The PSAB will further discuss the development of exposure drafts for the revised conceptual 
framework at its June 2019 meeting. 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit resulis 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2018 

92



Appendix F - Auditing develo men ts 

Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs) and other Canadian Standards issued by the AASB 

Amendments to CAS 700 and other standards pertaining to Reporting on Audited Financial Statements and 
adoption of 701, Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor's Report 

The key changes to the existing Canadian standards as a result of adopting CAS 700 (revised) and CAS 701 are as 
follows: 

• Expanded disclosures regarding managemenfs responsibilities related to going concern, specifically: the responsibility 
to assess the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the going concern basis of 
accounting is appropriate as well as disclosing, if applicable, matters relating to going concern 

• Expanded disclosures regarding the auditor's responsibilities related to going concern , specifically: the requirement to 
conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, if based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether the auditor concludes a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If the auditor concludes that a material 
uncertainty exists, the auditor is required to draw attention in their report to the related disclosures 

Changes to the descriptions of the responsibilities of management, the auditor and those charged with governance, 
including a reference to who within the entity is responsible for overseeing the reporting process (when those charged 
with governance are distinct from management) (ISA 700) 

Disclosure of the engagement partner's name in auditor's reports for audits of listed entities 

• Adoption of a new standard (CAS 701) that deals with the requirements when the auditor will be communicating the 
matters judged to be most significant to the audit in the audit report, either because the auditor has chosen to do so or 
because law or regulation requires key audit matters to be described in the auditor's report. 

It is believed that these changes will enhance the communicative value of the auditor's report and also improve the overall 
quality of the audit and financial reporting. 

In its September 2018 meeting, the AASB decided to further amend the auditor reporting standards such that auditors will 
be required to communicate key audit matters in the auditor's report for audits of complete sets of general purpose 
financial statements of entities listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX), other than entities that are required to comply 
with National Instrument 81-106 Investment Fund Continuous Disclosure. Such requirements are effective for periods 
ending on or after December 15, 2020. 

Amendments to CAS's related to the subject of Addressing Disclosures In the Audit of Financial Statements 

The AASB has approved certain changes to the standards that clarify how auditors should address the audit of financial 
statement disclosures. The changes include: 

Clarifying the meaning of "Disclosure" (CAS 200) 

Providing guidance to auditors to address audit considerations relating to disclosures early in the Audit (CAS 210, 260, 
300) 

Disclosure considerations in identifying, assessing and responding to risks of material misstatement (CAS 240, 315, 
320 and 330) 

Effective date 

The new reporting standards 
apply for all entities with periods 
ending on or after December 15, 
2018, with earlier application 
permitted. 

The communication of key audit 
matters in the auditor's report is 
required for audits of entities 
listed on the TSX, other than 
entities required to comply with 
National Instrument 81-106, 
Investment Fund Continuous 
Disclosure, for periods ending on 
or after December 15, 2020. 

These revised standards apply 
for periods ending on or after 
December 15, 2018, with earlier 
application permitted. 

Report to the Members of CO<Jncil - Audit reS<Jlts 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31. 2018 

93



Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs) and other Canadian Standards issued by the AASB 

Clarifying and elaborating on expectations of the auditor when evaluating misstatements and forming an opinion (CAS 450 
and 700). 

Section 7170 Auditor's Consent to the Use of the Auditor's Report in Connection with a Designated Document 

The AASB amended Section 7170 to include certain materials from Section 7500. Section 7500 has been withdrawn. The 
change to the structure of the Handbook makes it clear what standard the auditor must use when providing consent. The 
revised Section 7170 is used when the auditor is requested to provide consent in connection with audited financial 
statements or a document containing audited financial statements being filed with securities regulatory authorities (unless 
the document is addressed by Section 7150). Such items may be included to assist officers and directors of the entity (or 
acquirer of a business in the case of consent in connection with a Business Acquisition Report) in conducting a reasonable 
investigation for purposes of a due diligence defence or similar. 

Revisions to CAS 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates, including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, and Related 
Disclosures 

In June 2018, the IAASB approved a revised version of ISA 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures. 
In revising the standard, the IAASB focused on improving the scalability of the ISA to very simple accounting estimates, as 
well as the most complex accounting estimates. The standard was also revised to clarify the relationship between ISA 540 
(revised) and the other ISAs and the requirements when using the work of management's expert as audit evidence in 
testing how management made the accounting estimate. The AASB concluded that the changes to the ISA would be 
adopted as CASs, with no special amendments being necessary with respect to the Canadian auditing environment. 

Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs) and other Canadian Standards approved by the AASB but not issued 

None. 

Canadian Exposure Drafts issued by the AASB 

Proposed changes to CAS 315 Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement 

In July 2018, the IAASB issued an Exposure Draft proposing changes to ISA 315 that could drive more consistent and 
effective identification and assessment of the risks of material misstatement by auditors. The AASB has published an 
Exposure Draft of the equivalent Canadian standard , which includes the same proposed revisions as the ISA with no 
Canada-specific amendments. Key amendments include the following: 

Focusing on the applicable financial reporting framework in identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement 

• Updating the understanding of the system of internal control, including clarifying the work effort for understanding each 
of the components of internal control and "controls relevant to the audit", as well as the relationship between this 
understanding and the assessment of control risk 

• Updating aspects relating to IT, in particular to the IT environment, the applications relevant to the audit and general IT 
controls relevant to the audit 

• Introducing the new concepts of inherent risk factors, relevant assertions, significant classes of transactions, account 
balances and disclosures, and the spectrum of inherent risk 

Separating the inherent risk and control risk assessments for assertion level risks, enhancing the requirements relating 
to financial statement level risks, and updating the definition of "significant risks" 

Effective date 

The revised standard is 
applicable for consents issued on 
or after June 1, 2019. 

The revised standard is effective 
for audits of financial statements 
with periods ending on or after 
December 15, 2019. 

Effective date 

Effective date 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31, 2018 

94



Canadian Exposure Drafts issued by the AASB 

Proposed changes to CAS 700 Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements 

As noted above, Key Audit Matters are required to be communicated for audits of complete sets of general purpose 
financial statements of entities listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX) (other than entities that are required to comply 
with National Instrument 81-106 Investment Fund Continuous Disclosure) for periods ending on or after December 15, 
2020. The AASB proposes expanding the requirements for auditors to communicate Key Audit Matters for audits of 
complete sets of general purpose financial statements so that they apply to: 

, All entities listed on the TSX, TSXV, NEO and CSE 

• All entities required to comply with National Instrument 81-106 Investment Fund Continuous Disclosure 

The AASB believes that expanding the applicability of Key Audit Matter reporting would serve the public interest by 
Improving the alignment of the Canadian standards with those used in other jurisdictions, improving the consistency of 
reporting across the entities listed above. and enhancing the communicative value of the report, benefitting the financial 
statement users. The AASB is currently gathering feedback on its Exposure Draft and comments are required to be 
submitted by May 15, 2019. 

Effective date 

The AASB proposes that these 
changes be effective for audits of 
financial statement periods 
ending on or after December 15, 
2021. 

Non-authoritative Guides, Practice Notes, Bulletins and Risk Alerts 
Non-authoritative Guidance issued during the year 

None. 

Issued 

Report to the Members of Council - Audit results 

Corporation of the City of Port Colbome I For the year ended December 31. 2018 

95



Th is page intentionally le~ blank. 

96



Corporate Services Department 
Finance Division PORT COLBORNE 

Report Number: 2019-164 Date: November 12, 2019 

SUBJECT: Approval of the 2018 Consolidated Financial Statements 

1) PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's approval for the draft consolidated 
financial statements year ended December 31, 2018 for the Corporation of the City of 
Port Colborne. 

2) BACKGROUND: 

The Municipal Act, 2001 , states that a municipality shall prepare financial statements for 
each fiscal year. Management in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards (PSAS) as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) 
prepares the consolidated financial statements for the City. PSAB serves the public 
interest by establishing standards and other guidance for financial reporting by all 
Canadian entities in the public sector and by contributing to the development of 
internationally accepted public sector financial reporting standards. 

The consolidated statement of financial position; the consolidated statement of 
operations; the consolidated statement of changes in debt; the consolidated statement 
of cash flows; and notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies, have been audited by the City's auditor, 
Grant Thornton. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with PSAB, and for such internal control as 
management determines necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

The Auditor's responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements based on their audit fieldwork. Following completion of the audit fieldwork, 
Grant Thornton stated, in their opinion, that "the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne as at December 31, 2018, and its results of 
operations, its changes in its net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year ended 
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards". 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS: 

A draft copy of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 , 
2018, is attached to this report. 

The Financial Information Return (FIR) is being finalized for completion. The FIR is that 
main data collection tool used by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs to collect financial and 
statistical information on municipalities. The FIR is a standard document comprised of a 

97



number of schedules that are updated each year to comply with current legislation and 
reporting requirements. 

Finance has made every effort to prepare for the 2018 financial audit. Finance is 
pleased to present to Council the draft consolidated financial statements for the City of 
Port Colborne. 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

a) Approve the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Council can approve the Consolidated Financial Statements report. 

b) Not approve the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Council may choose not to approve the Consolidated Financial Statements and 
request that Grant Thornton review the financial results again. Council will need 
to provide clear expectations for the additional review of the City's finances and 
internal controls. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES: 

An annual financial audit provides clarity and financial transparency for the City's 
residents and ratepayers. 

6) ATTACHMENTS: 

Appendix A: Financial Report- For the year ended December 31, 2018. 

7) RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council approve the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31 , 2018. 

8) SIGNATURES: 

Prepared on October 15, 2019 by: 

Brenda Garrett 
Director of Corporate Services 

Reviewed and respectfully submitted_ by: 
.~-, 

..... )-"" ' ·~ ... 
;..·· ~y 

Peter Senese 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-164 Page 2 of 2 

98



Financial Report 

City of Port Colborne 

December 31, 2018 

,. 

,I' 

99



City of Port Colborne 

Contents 

City of Port Colborne 

·~ 
~ 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

Consolidated Statement of Operations r:, ~\ 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt :\. 'l; 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows . f) 0 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateme;;~lJ 

Consolidated Schedule of Segment Dj;;closure 
(~ 

Consolidated Schedule of Se~~:-:,t Oisclosure with Budget Information 
{' ij()· 

Trust Funds ) 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Statement of Financial Position 

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Page 

1-2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7-27 

28-29 

30 

31-34 

35-36 

37 

38 

39 

40-41 

100



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2018 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 
Portfolio investments (Note 3) 
Taxes receivable 
User charges receivable 
Other receivables 

Liabilities 

$ 1,875,920 $ 
10,862,711 

2,892,409 
2,051,944 
2,275.109 

19,958,093 

Payables and accruals 5,663,370 
Other liabilities 1' ·: ,241,039 
Deferred revenue (Note 5) ~ • 868,226 
Construction loan (Note 6) ~'' 
Long term debt (Note 7) '1 · 28,878,592 
Employee benefit obligations (Notes 8 and 17) . ('\(';)...., 8,514.300 

v 45,165,527 

if· (25,207,434) 

c'P 
Net debt 

Non-financial assets 
Tangible capital assets (Note 9 and r'a'.'JdS 28 and 29) 
Prepaid expenses "' 

138,935,792 
783,510 

1,824,458 
12,232,721 

2,511,093 
1,857,162 
3.385,866 

21.811 ,300 

9,089,647 
1,041 ,576 

423,919 
5,245,000 

24,441 ,445 
8.264.700 

48,506.287 

(26.694.987) 

139,395,207 
615.732 

139,719,302 140.010.939 

Accumulated surplus (N0t;/O} $ 114,511,868 $ 113,315,952 

~~~~~~__;;.~J-7~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Contingencies (Note 21) and Commitments (Note 23) 

Approved by 

Director of Corporate Services Chief Administrative Officer 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 
3 

101



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Revenues other than revenues related 
to tangible capital assets 

Taxation (Note 12) 
User charges (Note 14) 
Government transfers (Note 15) 
Other (Note 16) 

Expenses 
General government 
Protection to persons and property 
Transportation services 
Environmental services 
Health services 

$ 

Budget Actual 
2018 2018 

(Note 24) 

17,588,028 $ 17,736, 188 
12,920,748 12,245,372 

3,495,516 3,389,742 
985 190 2,434,486 

34.989,482 -~5,805,788 

,.. ~ 
4,298,5~'i,~ v 4,478,820 
4,098, 19E I' 4,442,598 
6, ~6?~0138 6,849, 152 

1'j;.i12'}537 9,973,533 
.f •· I ~/5,325 196,944 

Social and family services 
Recreation and culture services 
Planning and development 

e . 37,900 40,970 
~·) 8,385,305 8,842,724 

0 ' 2 174 591 1,997.418 
'• 
·~ 

~ (, 

Annual deficit before revenues rP.lad d 
to tangible capital assets ~,., ~ 

Revenues related to tanJ~ capital assets 
Government trans~rs (l\Jote 15) 
Other (Note 16) V 
Gain (loss) on disposal of 

tangible capital assets 

35 934 475 

(944.993) 

824,500 
10,000 

834 500 

36,822,159 

(1,016,371) 

1,919,773 
252,571 

39,943 

2,212,287 

$ 

Actual 
2017 

16,642,657 
11,428,741 

3,226,423 
1 451 194 

32.749.015 

4, 171,476 
4,047,240 
5,620,793 
9,522,505 

248,962 
50,000 

8,248,298 
1.952.906 

33.862. 180 

(1,113.165) 

1, 144,520 
229,725 

(260,715) 

1.113,530 

Annual surplus (deficit) (110,493) 1, 195,916 365 

Accumulated surplus (Note 10) 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

113.315.952 113,315,952 113,315.587 

$ 113,205,459 $ 114,511,868 $ 113,315,952 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

4 

102



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Annual surplus (deficit) 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 
Write-down of tangible capital assets 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 
(Gain) loss on disposal of 

tangible capital assets 

(Acquisition) usage of prepaid expenses 

Decrease (increase) in net debt 

Net debt 
Beginning of year 

Budget 
2018 

(Note 24) 

$ (110,493) $ 

5,374,592 

(4,980,947) 

283, 152 1' 
(j 

( . -. 
28~152 

{" . ,, 
·' 

J.!.<·~6.694.987) 

' ~ -

Actual 
2018 

1,195,916 

5,380,357 
14,598 

(4,971,439) 
75,842 

{39,943} 

}) 
...,.,655,331 

~ 

{167,778} 

1,487,553 

(26,694,987) 

Actual 
2017 

$ 365 

5,232,058 

(19,331,407) 
381,075 

260 715 

(13,457,194) 

333.994 

( 13, 123,200) 

(13.571 ,787) 

End of year . • ) ' $ (26,411,835) $ (25,207,434) $ (26,694,987) 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
5 

103



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

2018 2017 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Operating activities 
Annual surplus $ 1,195,916 $ 365 
Non-cash items: 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 5,380,357 5,232,058 
Write-down of tangible capital assets 14,598 
(Gain) loss on disposal of tangible capital assets (39,943) 260,715 

Increase in taxes receivable (381,316) (244,291) 
Increase in user charges receivable ())(194,782) (55,988) 
Decrease (increase) in other receivables ~ ",110,757 (492, 196) 
(Decrease) increase in payables and accruals R) ... (3,426,277) 3,636,458 
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities "'); 199,463 (68,498) 
Increase in deferred revenue 444,307 102,682 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses °-' ., {1671778} 333 994 

~ 411351302 8,705,299 
~ 

Capital activities x!f ~ 
75,842 381 ,075 Proceeds from disposal of tangible ca.oitcfi .l 3sets 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets JI ~ {419711439} (19,331,407} 

v ) 
{418951597} (18,950,332) 

~ 

Financing activities ~\.. 
Issue of construction 102,, f 5,245,000 
Repayment of constr~it-tL loan (5,245,000) (7,437,000) 
Issue of long term~eb'. · 6,145,000 14,230,000 
Repayment of long term debt (1,821,667) (1,512,671) 
Issue of capital lease obligation 140,657 
Repayment of capital lease obligation (26,843) (17 ,957) 
Increase in employee benefit obligation 2491600 222,700 

{5581253} 10,730,072 

Investing activities 
Disposal (purchase) of portfolio investments, net 113701010 (99,807) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 51,462 385,232 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 
Beginning of year 11824,458 1,439,226 

End of year $ 1,875,920 $ 1,824,458 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements, 

6 

104



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

1. Significant accounting policies 

Management responsibility 

The consolidated financial statements of the City of Port Colborne ("Municipality") are the 
responsibility of and prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements necessarily 
involves the use of estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions 
affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods. 

The significant accounting policies used are as follows: 

(a) Reporting entity 

The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial assets, liabilities, non-financial 
assets, revenues, expenses and changes in accumulated rnr? lus of the reporting entity. 
The reporting entity is comprised of all organizations and ;'\:'ntc:prises accountable for the 
administration of their affairs and resources to the Murr11..ipality and which are owned or 
controlled by the Municipality. In addition to general 0"°o'{e,..-;1ment tax-supported operations, 
they include the following: 

Port Colborne Public Library Board ( , 
Port Colborne Downtown Developr1len, Board 
Port Colborne Main Street Busir(f'ji&·lmprovement Area 

Interdepartmental and organization~J ·ra;ifactions and balances are eliminated. 

The following joint local board is 1.:k~ortionally consolidated: 

Niagara Centr~l ,Ajport Commission (Joint Board) 

Related party transa<tt 1::. are eliminated (Note 18). 

The statements< xrlude trust assets that are administered for the benefit of external parties 
(Note 19). 

(b) Basis of accounting 

Sources of revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The 
accrual basis of accounting records revenues in the period they are earned and measurable 
and expenses in the period the goods and services are acquired and a liability is incurred. 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and temporary investments include cash on hand, balances with banks and 
guaranteed investment certificates that mature within one year. 

(d) Portfolio investments 

Portfolio investments are valued at the lower of cost and market value. Interest income is 
reported as revenue in the period earned. 

7 

105



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(e) Deferred revenue 

Resources restricted by agreement with an external party are recognized as revenue in the 
entity's financial statements in the period in which the resources are used for the purpose or 
purposes specified. An externally restricted inflow received before this criterion has been 
met is recorded as a liability until the resources are used for the purpose or purposes 
specified. 

(f) Employee future benefits 

The present value of the cost of providing employees with future benefit programs is 
expensed as employees earn these entitlements through service. 

(g) Contaminated sites liability 

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination beinc• 1i:troduced into air, soil, water or 
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive mate@l v~ live organism that exceeds an 
environmental standard. The liability is recorded net of14ny expected recoveries. A liability 
for remediation of contaminated sites is recogniz5'c. ·.vl;en a site is not in productive use and 
all the following criteria are met: ( ,J 

• an environmental standard exists; ( ~ 
• contamination exceeds the enVi~mental standard; 
• the Municipality: ~ 0 

0 is directly res~~:: or 
0 accepts respc~s~ility; 

• it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 
• a reasonable e~11(te of the amount can be made. 

The liability is rec'idt~zed as management's estimate of the cost of post-remediation 
including opera~:On ,1n aintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation 
strategy for a com.:.minated site. 

(h) Tangible capital assets 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Cost includes all directly attributable expenses 
in the acquisition, construction, development and/or betterment of the asset required to 
install the asset at the location and in the condition necessary for its intended use. 
Contributed tangible capital assets are capitalized at their estimated fair value upon 
acquisition. The Municipality does not capitalize interest as part of the costs of its capital 
assets. 

Works of art for display in municipal property are not included as capital assets. The works 
of art are held for exhibition, educational and historical interest. Such assets are deemed 
worthy of preservation because of the social rather than financial benefits they provide to the 
community. The cost of art is not determinable or relevant to their significance. No 
valuation of the collection has been conducted or disclosed in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

8 

106



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(h) Tangible capital assets (continued) 

(i) 

(j) 

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases that transfer substantially all 
benefits incidental to ownership are accounted for as capital leases. All other leases are 
accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to expenses 
as incurred. 

Land improvements 
Buildings 
Leasehold improvements 
Vehicles 
Office equipment and furn)'ur.-~ ·and fixtures 
Machinery and equipmf';lt • 
Infrastructure ( ) 

Subdivision infrastructure' 
( . 
~ > 

10-100 years 
20-50 years 
20-50 years 
10-20 years 
5-10 years 
3-30 years 
10-100 years 

Subdivision streets, H:ir,•t11g, sidewalks, drainage and other infrastructure are required to be 
provided by su':rli ~is;Jn developers. Upon completion they are turned over to the 
Municipality anb' recorded as tangible capital assets. The Municipality is not involved in the 
construction. 

Revenue recognition 

i) Taxation 
Property tax billings are prepared by the Municipality based on assessment rolls issued by 
the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation ("MPAC"). Tax rates are established 
annually by Council, incorporating amounts to be raised for local services and amounts the 
Municipality is required to collect on behalf of the Province of Ontario in respect of education 
taxes. Realty taxes are billed based on the assessment rolls provided by MPAC. Taxation 
revenues are recorded at the time tax billings are issued. 

A normal part of the assessment process is the issue of supplementary assessment rolls 
which provide updated information with respect to changes in property assessment. 

9 

107



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December31, 2018 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(j) Revenue recognition (continued) 

(k) 

(I) 

i) Taxation (continued) 
Once a supplementary roll is received , the Municipality determines the taxes applicable and 
renders supplementary tax billings. Assessments of the related property taxes are subject 
to appeal. Any supplementary billing adjustments made necessary by the determination of 
such changes will be recognized in the fiscal year they are determined and the effect shared 
with the school boards, as appropriate. 

ii) User charges 
User charges are recognized when the services are performed or goods are delivered and 
there is reasonable assurance of collection. 

iii) Government transfers ( 
Government transfers received are recognized in the financ;~1 ~~ateme nts as revenue when 
the transfers are authorized and all eligibility criteria hav? c~eri met except when there is a 
stipulation that gives rise to an obligation that meets fl~ a.;l in ition of a liability. In that case, 
the transfer is recorded as a liability and recognized as 1 !venue as the stipulations are met. 
Government transfers to individuals and other erffr.i) S'tare recognized as an expense when 
the transfers are authorized and all eligibility crLe~ i1ave been met. 

.!' 
iv) Other V';" 
Other revenue is recorded when it is ec;;~'.l and collection is reasonably assured. 

o--' 
Reserves for future expenses ('~· 

Certain amounts, as approvec..' b) Municipal Council, are set aside in reserves and reserve 
funds for future operatinfi, anj capital expenses. 

Local improvementfj§ ""' 

The Municipality •e~ds capital expenses funded by local improvement agreements as they 
are incurred. Revenues are recognized in the year they become payable. 

(m) Region and school board transactions 

The taxation, other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to the operations 
of the school boards and the Region of Niagara are not reflected in the accumulated surplus 
of these consolidated financial statements. 

(n) Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Two 
areas in which management make estimates are with regards to an allowance for 
uncollectible taxes receivable and obligations for employee benefits. 

10 

108



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

2. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 
Bank balances 

3. Portfolio investments 

2018 

$ 3,950 $ 
1,871,970 

2017 

3,950 
1 ,820,508 

$ 1,875,920 $ 1,824,458 

Guaranteed investment certificates carry an effective interest rate from 1.50% to 2. 76% and 
maturity dates ranging from January, 2019 to December, 2020. Interest is receivable on maturity. 
Carrying value approximates market value. 

4. Bank indebtedness 

An operating line of credit of$ 4,000,000 has been establish~c •,;tith the CIBC, of which $ Nil (2017 
- $ Nil) was used at December 31, 2018. An execu~a) bRrrowing by-law in form and content 
satisfactory to CIBC is in effect to a limit of $ 4, 0Q0~0C\.C , Interest is calculated at prime minus 
0.50%. Overdrafts outstanding under the line of credit,,'.:lre converted to a promissory note at the 
CIBC's request which has not been enacted. 0 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-~),'--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

5. Deferred revenue 

Development Charges Act 
Parkland 

~u 
00 

Federal gas tax ~ 

Ontario Community lnfras~Ur.~.'re Fund 

$ 

$ 

214,962 $ 
159,078 
430,871 
63,315 

868,226 $ 

221 ,219 
97,362 

105,338 

423,919 -----

11 

109



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

5. Deferred revenue (continued) 

The continuity of deferred revenue is made up of the following: 

Balance, beginning of year 

Contributions from 
Parkland 
Interest earned 
Government transfers received 

Federal 
Provincial 

Utilized for 
Tangible capital asset acquisitions 
Operations 

$ 

~ 

2018 

423,919 

60,345 
8,650 

586,822 
61,600 

717,417 

(265,000) 
(8,110} 

(273,110} 

$ 

Balance, end of year V' 
r} $ 868,226 $ 

"' .·0 
(' 6. Construction loan 

2017 

321.237 

79,705 
9,349 

570,065 

659 119 

(556,437) 

. (556,437} 

423,919 

In 2017, the City entered into an ag1 'O\er,1ent with the Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation 
("OILC") to temporarily borrow m0:iey to finance capital expenditures relating to the Nickel Street 
area storm sewers for $ 4 ,6 11:,0,00, the water meter replacement project for $ 300,000 and the 
marine mobile lift for $ 34U~<1J , to a max imum of$ 6, 145,000, pending the issue of debentures ,,_..,.,/ .) 

which were issued in 201 ~1 . :-ne City paid interest on the loan monthly at the OILC floating interest 
rate until the loan wo.::. rE piaced by debentures. Principal payments began once the debentures 
were issued. 

7. Long term debt 2018 2017 

(a) The balance of net long term debt reported on the 
consolidated statement of financial position is 
made up of the following: 

The Municipality has assumed responsibility for the 
payment of principal and interest charges on 
certain long term debt issued by the Region of 
Niagara. At the end of the year, the outstanding 
principal amount of this debt is $ 28,749,264 $ 24,425,931 

Capital lease obligations 129,328 15 514 

Net long term debt $ 28,878,592 $ 24,441,445 

12 

110



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

7. Long term debt (continued) 

(b) The net long term debt is made up of the following: 

Debenture Interest Maturity 
Number Purpose Rates Dates 2018 

74-2003 Marina Pavilion/ 
Restaurant and 
Fire Dept. HQ 2.95 to 5.65% 2018 $ -

61-2008 Watermains 3.70 to 4.90% 2018 
67-2009 Vehicles and 

Equipment 1.15 to 4.80% 2019 54,000 
73-2010 City Hall, Marina, 

Main St. CIP and 
Fire Vehicle 1.60 to 4.65% 2020 ( J 888,794 

46-2013 Health & t t 
Wellness Centre 2.67% 2023 R::>' 1,448,760 

47-2013 Roads and Fire 
2033 ( p Dept. 3.37% 630,665 

48-2013 Skatepark, Fuel ( )~ 
Tanks and Op. f )., 
Centre Design 3.70% .f ~043 1,682,383 

75-2015 LED Street Lights )' 

and Water Meters 1.15 to~::-r.b\J Jo 2025 1,977,000 
94-2015 Fire Tanker and 

.I 

Watermains 2035 1,877,645 
35-2016 Fire Truck 

Operations Centre 2021 179,730 
64-2017 East Side ~ 

' .. 
3.22% 2037 433,668 Employment_ 1~211.ds 

65-2017 Operationr . }' ci11tre 3.43% 2047 13,511,275 
11-2018 Nickel ~t Sturm • Sewe;· 3.56% 2048 5,447,991 
12-2018 Marina Lift 

and Water Meters 3.18% 2028 617,353 
Leased Vehicles 
and Equipment Various 2019-2022 129.328 

$ 28,878,592 

(c) Principal repayments in each of the next five years are due as follows: 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

$ 1,546,281 
2,010,861 
1,344,039 
1,317,374 
1, 166,371 

2017 

$ 356,000 
84,000 

106,000 

1,079,368 

1,747,891 

663,911 

1,724,000 

2 ,239,000 

1,957,622 

238,139 

450,000 
13,780,000 

15 514 

$ 24,441,445 

(d) The Municipality paid $ 919,299 (2017 - $ 379, 739) interest on long term debt during the 
year. 

13 

111



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

8. Employee benefit obligations 2018 

Workplace Safety and Insurance Board future benefits $ 1,899,500 
Vested sick leave benefits 264,400 
Retirement benefits 6.350.400 

8,514,300 
Less: Sick leave funded by reserve (20,225) 

$ 8,494,075 

(a) Workplace Safety and Insurance Board future benefits 

2017 

$ 1,874,000 
253,500 

6.137,200 

8,264,700 
(37.009) 

$ 8,227,691 

The City of Port Colborne is a Workplace Safety and Insurance Board ("WSIB") Schedule 2 
employer. 

~ 
In 2016, an actuarial estimate of future liabilities has b~~:i· ccmpleted and forms the basis 
for the estimated liability reported in these financial r-~2t0rr.ents. During the year $ 35,916 
(2017 - $ 37,477) was paid by the City to the WSIB in r~ I ~~;on to these benefits. 

The accrued benefit obligation at December 3,~. 20· $'1 of $ 1,899,500 (2017 - $ 1,874,000) 
was determined by an actuarial valuation using· a r\;scount rate of 3.30%. 

f • 

The most recent actuarial valuation was nr~6'·'.lred at December 31, 2016. 
f ) ' 

The main actuarial assumptions err._l)l1v·~Cf above are as follows (where applicable): 

(i) Interest (discount) rat\ .. 

The obligations as at DecP,Tiber 31, 2018 of the present value of future liabilities were 
determined using a dis~~~·n,t rate of 3.30% . 

. fr,._ 
(ii) Future bPriefit ;~,dexing rate 

~ 

The rates used ;Jr loss of earnings benefits and pension and survivors benefits are 
assumed to be 2.00% per annum. The rate for health benefits is assumed to be 4.00% per 
annum. 

14 

112



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

8. Employee benefit obligations (continued) 

(a) Workplace Safety and Insurance Board future benefits (continued) 

Accrued benefit obligation 
Beginning of year 
Benefit payments 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Amortization of actuarial gain 

Funded status 
Deficit 
Unamortized actuarial gain 

The net benefit expense is as follows: 

Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Amortization of actuarial gain 

(b) Vested sick leave bera~as" 
• 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2018 2017 

1,874,000 $ 1,851,400 
(88,900) (87,000) 
87,500 84,400 
54,900 53,200 

(28,000) (28,000) 

1,899,500 $ 1,874,000 

I 1,675,100 $ 1,621 ,600 
224.400 252.400 

1,899,500 $ 1,874,000 

87,500 $ 84,400 
54,900 53,200 

(28,000) --~<2""""8"'-",0""'-00"""') 

114,400 $ 109,600 -------

Under the sick ler,ft~ benefit plan for employees of the Port Colborne Firefighters' 
Association, sir~ h::a1e can accumulate and employees may become entitled to a cash 
payment upon lec.'t:ng the Municipality's employment. 

The accrued benefit obligation at December 31, 2018 of$ 264,400 (2017 - $ 253,500) was 
determined by an actuarial valuation using a discount rate of 3.40%, 

The most recent actuarial valuation for the vested sick leave was prepared at 
December31 , 2015. 

The main actuarial assumptions employed for the vested sick leave and retirement benefits 
valuations above are as follows (where applicable): 

(i) Interest (discount) rate 

The obligations as at December 31, 2018 of the present value of future liabilities were 
determined using a discount rate of 3.40%. 

(ii) Salary increase rate 

The rate used to increase salaries is assumed to be 3.00% per annum. This rate reflects 
management's best estimate of future salary increases. 

15 

113



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

8. 

(b) 

(c) 

Employee benefit obligations (continued) 

Vested sick leave benefits (continued) 

Accrued benefit obligation 
Beginning of year 
Benefit payments 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Amortization of actuarial gain 

Funded status 
Deficit 
Unamortized actuarial gain 

The net benefit expense is as follows: 

Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Amortization of actuarial gain 

<f 

r 
(' 

2018 2017 

$ 253,500 $ 249,300 
(22,700) (28, 100) 
26,400 25,500 

8,800 8.400 
(1,600) (1 .600) 

$ 264,400 $ 253,500 

I': 255,300 $ 242,800 ,. 
.. 91100 10 700 

~ $ 264,400 $ 253,500 

$ 26,400 $ 25,500 
8,800 8.400 

__ _,(i...:..1 =16.=00~) ___ (i....:.1.i..:::.6c::;,.00:...) 

$ 33,600 $ 32,300 -----
During the year $ Nil (':'017 - $ Nil) was paid to employees who left the Municipality's 
employment. The M~'{F:J~lity has set aside$ 20,225 (2017 - $ 37,009) in a reserve. 

Retirement ber.et1;·s• 
I 

The City of Port Colborne pays certain retirement benefits on behalf of its retired employees. 
The City of Port Colborne recognizes these retirement costs in the period in which the 
employees rendered the services. The plan is substantially unfunded and requires no 
contributions from employees. 

The accrued benefit obligation at December 31 , 2018 of$ 6,350,400 (2017 - $ 6,137,200) 
was determined by an actuarial valuation using a discount rate of 3.40%. 

The City's obligation under the retirement provision of employment agreements will be 
funded out of current revenue. During the year benefit payments of $ 344,900 (2017 -
$ 345,400) were paid to retirees. 

Actuarial valuations for accounting purposes are performed every three years using the 
projected benefit method, pro-rated on service. Under this method, the projected retirement 
benefits are deemed to be earned on a pro-rata basis over the employee's years of service. 

The most recent actuarial valuation for the retirement benefits was prepared at 
December31, 2015. 

16 

114



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

8. Employee benefit obligations (continued) 

(c) Retirement benefits (continued) 

The main actuarial assumptions employed for retirement benefits valuation above are as 
follows (where applicable): 

(i) Interest (discount) rate 

The obligations as at December 31, 2018 of the present value of future liabilities were 
determined using a discount rate of 3.40%. 

(ii) Medical costs 

Drug costs were assumed to be 7.65% in 2018 and decrease 0.175% per year until 2036 
when the rate will be 4.5% and continue thereafter. 

I 

Vision costs were assumed to be 2.00% in 2018 and decr;,,st; 0.25% per year until 2026 
when the rate will be 0% and continue thereafter. , ~ 

Other health costs were assumed to be 4.50% in 2018" ),d continue thereafter. 

(iii) Dental costs 
( -. 

Dental costs were assumed to be 5.625°<..r" 2018 and decrease 0.1875% per year until 
2024 when the rate will be 4.5% and cortbd thereafter. 

Accrued benefit obligation 
Beginning of year 
Benefit payments ,.. . ' 
Current service cos~ " · 
Interest cost • r • 

( . 
\ · "'J 
(j' 

0 

Amortization lf a,~tuarial loss 

Funded status 
Deficit 
Unamortized actuarial loss 

The net benefit expense is as follows: 

Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Amortization of actuarial gain 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

6,137,200 $ 
(344,900) 
319,600 
217,800 
20,700 

6,350,400 $ 

6,450,800 $ 
(100.400) 

6,350,400 $ 

319,600 $ 
217,800 
20.700 

558,100 $ 

5,941 ,300 
(345,400) 
309,100 
211,500 

20 700 

6 ,137,200 

6 ,258,300 
(121.100) 

6, 137,200 

309,100 
211 ,500 

20 700 

541,300 

17 

115



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

9. Tangible capital assets 

Net book value 
Land 
Land improvements 
Buildings 
Leasehold improvements 
Vehicles 
Office equipment and furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 

Assets under construction 

2018 

$ 5,628,931 
10,001,091 
44,815,132 

297,708 
2,484,188 
1,158,646 
2,828,723 

58,850,553 

126,064,972 

12,870,820 

:") ~,935,792 - ¥ 

2017 

$ 5,639,417 
10, 182,399 
45,781,041 

258,232 
2,512,357 

779,728 
2,819,649 

60. 181.642 

128, 154,465 

11,240,742 

$ 139,395,207 

r\ ) -----------------------'/ 
10. Accumulated surplus 

Consists of: 
Surpluses (deficits) 

Operating 

c~~ 
.~ <); 
~ 

Port Colborne Public Library Board .. ( ~ 
Port Colborne Downtown Develo~r1~e• 1 Board 
Port Colborne Main Street B•,::it1~c:~ Improvement Area 
Niagara Central Airport Com."lliP.>ion (Note 18) ., 

(}:i 
·~'-· 

Investment in tc:inc, :b~apital assets 

Unfunded liabilities 
Construction loan 
Long term debt 
Employee benefit obligations 

Reserves and reserves funds (Note 11) 

$ (4,248,793) $ (5,987,379) 
35,440 1,306 
35,324 40, 709 
23,927 19,927 

( 59. 786) __ _,,.(2:.:::5..:::,2~85::.J.) 

(4,213,888) 

138,935,792 

(28,878,592) 
(8,514,300) 

(5,950.722) 

139,395,207 

(5,245,000) 
(24,441 ,445) 

(8,264.700) 

(37,392,892) (37,951,145) 

17.182,856 17,822.612 

$ 114,511,868 $ 113,315,952 

18 

116



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

11. Reserves and reserve funds 

Reserves set aside for specific purposes by Council 
Working capital 
Recreation programs and facil ities 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Library 
Museum 
Transit 
Election expense 
Administration costs 
Airport 
Cemetery 
Wastewater operations 
Water operations 

Total reserves 

Reserve funds set aside for specific purposes 
by Council or agreement 

Acquisition of fixed assets 
Accumulated sick leave and disability 
Administration costs 
Grain elevator property 
Community centre 
Library 
Transit 

Total reserve funds 

$ 703,010 $ 
419,799 

2,576,107 
15,298 
25,220 
53,504 
31,235 

1,524,833 
48,499 
16,978 

873,527 
824.571 

I 

.;: ! 112,581 

7,665,122 
20,225 

1,147,059 
990,513 
139,423 
88,055 
19.878 

10,070,275 

703,010 
428,475 

3, 115,579 
14,322 
17,793 
75,100 
95,956 

1,389,353 
48,661 
16,978 

912,510 
582,234 

7,399.971 

7,697,830 
37,009 

1,246,569 
932,231 
236,016 
234,845 

38 141 

10A22.641 

$ 17,182,856 $ 17,822,612 Total reserves and reserve fl!~11..:5, 
(J • 

~~~~~~~~ -"~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~---v v 

19 

117



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

12. Taxation 

Real property 
From other governments 

Payments in lieu of taxes 

Less: taxation collected on behalf of (Note 13): 
Region of Niagara 
School boards 

Net taxes available for municipal purposes 

Residential, multi-residential and farm 
Commercial and industrial 

Net taxes available for municipal purposes 

Budget 
2018 

Actual 
2018 

Actual 
2017 

$ 36,082,522 $ 35, 163,946 

539,556 

36,622,078 

13,654,742 
5,231,148 

18,885,890 

389 316 

35,553262 

13,583,724 
5.326.881 

18.910.605 

$ )~,736,188 $ 16,642,657 
r-= _c ~ 

$ 13,587 ,9.~ il • :'? 13,631,446 $ 12,870,451 
4 000 0411' 4,104.742 3,772.206 .,. .... 

$ 1 ·1,:;~c,,02a $ 17,736,188 $ 16,642,657 
-\,-~ • v 

~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~.O.::',..-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

13. Collections for the Region of Niag~~~chool boards 
~ 

Total taxation and development chaf w; r~ceived or receivable on behalf of the Region of Niagara 
and the school boards were as fol!,?ws: 

~ 
~1J· 

Region of Niagara A 
School boards V 

$ 13,654,742 $ 13,583,724 
5,231,148 5.326,881 

$ 18,885,890 $ 18,910,605 

The Municipality is required to levy and collect taxes on behalf of the Region of Niagara and the 
school boards. The taxes levied over (under) the amounts requ isitioned are recorded as accounts 
payable (receivable). 

20 

118



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

14. User charges Budget Actual Actual 
2018 2018 2017 

Operating 
Fees and service charges $ 2,801 ,847 $ 3,068,685 $ 2,800,900 
Direct water billings 4,903,513 4,625,607 4,277,180 
Wastewater surcharges 5,215,388 4,551,080 4,350,661 

$ 12,920,748 $ 12,245,372 $ 11 ,428,741 

21 

119



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

16. Otherrevenue 

Operating 
Penalties and interest on taxes 
Fines 
Interest income 
Licences and permits 
Rental income 
Investment income- reserves 

and reserve funds 
Contributions from developers 
Transfer from trust funds 
Donations 
Proceeds from sale of road allowances 
Other 

Capital 
Donations 
Other 

$ 

{ 

Budget 
2018 

395,000 
17,000 
31 ,000 

277,470 
49,810 

8,110 
4,000 

145,200 

57.600 

985.19Q_ 
r , 

"' 
1v,,OJO .. -- ----

17. Pension agreements .; 
''-• .... 

o"}. - - , 10.000 

~J $ 995,190 

"(j 

Actual 
2018 

$ 456,253 
17,870 
36,598 

296,227 
61,054 

215,757 
8,110 
3,928 

117,789 
564,023 

_Ct 656,877 
I 

- 21434,486 

212,801 
39,770 

252,571 

$ 2,687,057 

Actual 
2017 

$ 406,270 
15,004 
48,801 

301,576 
57,391 

160,834 

4,024 
112,711 

344 583 

1 451194 

156,773 
72.952 

229.725 

$ 1,680,919 

The Municipality makes c~.:t,;~utions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System 
("OMERS"), which is e rr.~1lt. employer plan, on behalf of the members of its staff. The plan is a 
defined benefit plan •:riat specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the 
employees based on th~ length of service and rates of pay. Employees and employers contribute 
jointly to the plan. 

Since OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan, the Municipality does not recognize any share of 
the pension plan deficit of$ 2.8 billion (2017 - $ 0.6 billion surplus) based on the fair market value 
of the plan's assets, as this is a joint responsibility of all Ontario municipal entities and their 
employees. Contributions were made in the 2018 calendar year at rates ranging from 9.0% to 
15.8% depending on the member's designated retirement age and level of earnings. Employer 
contributions for current and past service are included as an expense in the consolidated 
statement of operations. Employer contributions to OMERS for 2018 current and past service 
was $ 862,723 (2017 - $ 790,501) and were matched by employee contributions in a similar 
amount. 

22 

120



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

18. Niagara Central Airport Commission 

The Niagara Central Airport Commission operates a two runway airport offering a year round fixed 
base operation. The Commission is funded by the four nearby municipalities, City of Welland, 
City of Port Colborne, Town of Pelham and the Township of Wainfleet. The City of Port Col borne 
has a non-controlling interest in the airport of 19% (2017 - 20%) based on population. 

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information for the Niagara 
Central Airport Commission: 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 284,481 $ 163,027 
Receivables 461129 19 902 

~ 
( , 

·,/ - ~ 
3301610 182.929 

Liabilities <19 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 223,722 27,447 
Deferred grant revenue ~~ 33,716 
Loans payable . t.t· 399,790 250,000 
Capital lease obligation 541222 

e»· 6771734 31 1 163 
~ 

Net debt ~, o· (3471124) (128.234) 

0" 
Non-financial assets 0 

Prepaid expenses ;- 1,354 1,354 
Fuel inventory ' )' 47,272 16,621 
Tangible capital assets '(}, 116361642 1,460.280 

~~ 1,685,268 1,478.255 

Accumulated surplus $ 1,338,144 $ 1,350,021 

Accumulated surplus consists of: 
Operating deficit $ (314,662) $ (126,423) 
Reserves 16,164 16,164 
Investment in tangible capital assets 116361642 1,460.280 

$ 1,338,144 $ 1,350,021 

Revenues 
Grants $ 115,761 $ 121,556 
Fuel, rentals and other 91 ,981 137,001 
Interest 1,138 390 

Expenses (220l57) (256.620) 

Annual (deficit) surplus $ (11,877) $ 2,327 

23 

121



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

18. Niagara Central Airport Commission (continued) 

The financial position information is as reported by the Niagara Central Airport Commission as at 
December 31, 2018 and the results of operations are as reported for the year ended 
December 31, 2018. The comparative financial position and results of operations figures are as 
reported by the Niagara Central Airport Commission at December 31, 201 7. 

The Municipality has recorded in the financial statements its 19% (2017 - 20%) share of the 
Niagara Central Airport Commissions' assets, liabilities, accumulated surplus, revenues, 
expenses, and annual surplus. 

The following summarizes the Municipality's related party transactions with the Niagara Central 
Airport Commission for the year. All transactions are in the normal course of operations, and are 
recorded at the exchange value based on normal commercial rates, or as agreed to by the 
parties. 

Government transfers 
Interest 

21,995 $ 
1,750 

24,311 

Loan, bearing interest of 3.5% per annum repayable ~·· r:, ~ 
annual instalments of$ 6 ,012, commencing June 15, ?.018 $ 45,738 $ 50,000 

Loan, bearing interest of 4.3% per annum repayah\ \ in 
annual instalments of$ 4, 113, commencinn A 1~ 1 :i>t 24, 2019 

' )~ 
32,870 

'),• $ 
('~ 

78,608 $ 50,000 -----) 

19. Trust funds J ' 

~f 

Trust funds administered J l;~e Municipality amounting to $ 430,858 (2017 - $ 405,881) have not 
been included in the k'"'' '<;1..'Jidated statement of financial position nor have these operations been 
included in the consolil.13~dd statement of operations . ... 

20. Subdividers' deposits 

The Municipality holds bank letters of credit as security to ensure the provision of subdivision 
services and the completion of contracts. 

Letters of credit, beginning of year 
Net {deletions) additions 

Letters of credit, end of year 

These letters of credit are not reflected in the accounts. 

2018 2017 

$ 1,637,354 $ 1,098,723 
(188,604) 538 631 

$ 1,448,750 $ 1,637,354 

24 

122



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

21. Contingencies 

The Municipality is involved from time to time in litigation, which arises in the normal course of 
business. In respect of any outstanding claims, the Municipality believes that insurance coverage 
is adequate and that no material exposure exists on the eventual settlement of such litigation, 
therefore no provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

22. Liabilities for contaminated sites 

The Municipality reports environmental liabilities related to the management and remediation of 
any contaminated sites where the Municipality is obligated or likely obligated to incur such costs. 
Currently no such contaminated sites have been identified and therefore no liability has been 
recorded. 

The Municipality's ongoing efforts to assess contaminated sites may r:.:~ult in future environmental 
remediation liabilities related to newly identified sites, or chanp~s 11: Jne assessments or intended 
use of existing sites. Any changes to the Municipality's liatil:+ie:·. for contaminated sites will be 
accrued in the year in which they are assessed as likely and~ea')onably estimable. 

23. Commitments 

0· 
Tax increment based grants ~ 

The Municipality has commitments for t~~~~ement based grants with various expiry dates up to 
2024. There are currently five sir11e~J :.greements with a term spanning ten years each. At 
December 31 , 2018, the total am0l .. :it .emaining to be paid from these agreements is $137,292 
with the total commitment for eacr, of the next five years as follows: 

~ 

• 

2f11(0~ 
.?02ll ~ 
20/i 
2022 
2023 

$ 33,722 
33,722 
33,722 
32,520 
2,405 

25 

123



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

24. Budget 

The budget bylaw adopted by Council March 5, 2018 was not prepared on a basis consistent with 
that used to report actual results in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 
The budget was prepared on a modified accrual basis while Canadian public sector accounting 
standards require a full accrual basis. As a result, the budget figures presented in the 
consolidated statement of operations and consolidated statement of changes in net debt 
represent the budget adopted by Council with the following adjustments: 

Budgeted annual surplus 

Add: 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 
Repayment of long term debt 

Less: 
Transfers (to) from reserves, net 
Amortization of tangible capital assets ~ 

Budgeted deficit per consolidated statement of operations R) 
<t~· 

'J ~. 

$ 91 ,344 

4,980,947 
1,821,666 

(1,629,858) 
(5,374,592} 

$ (110,493) 

25. Segmented reporting ;\. <).,; 
The Municipality is a diverse municipal gov~rp{~'t that provides a wide range of services to its 
citizens. Segmented information has beer. '.rJ:;:·1tified for the service lines that reflect the way in 
which the operations are managed and,...i ~'.: irce needs are identified and budgeted. Municipal 
activities are reported by function in (Q :.1Bcty of the financial statements. 

Certain departments that have been l eparately disclosed in the segmented information, along 
with the services they provid !(:~~re'as follows: 

'-'. ..... 
General • f(j-

-.. 
The general provisio;i of municipal services includes general government, fire services, 
transportation services, storm sewer services, planning and development, facilities, parks and 
cemeteries. 

Water 

The water operations install and maintain water capital infrastructure to ensure the safe supply, 
metering and cost recovery for all treated water to serviced areas within all urban and settlement 
areas of the Municipality. 

Wastewater 

The wastewater operations install and maintain wastewater capital infrastructure and recover 
costs of providing this service within all urban and settlement areas of the Municipality. 

26 

124



City of Port Colborne 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

26. Segmented information (continued) 

Port Colborne Public Library Board 

The Port Colborne Public Library Board provides library services, materials and faci lities. The 
Municipality controls the board and consolidates the financial activities. 

For each reported segment, revenues and expenses represent both amounts that are directly 
attributable to the segment and amounts that are allocated on a reasonable basis. 

The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements as disclosed in Note 1. The consolidated 
schedule of segment disclosure and the schedules of segment disclosure with budget information 
follow the notes. 

27 

125



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Land Buildings and Furniture and 
Land lm(1rovements Leaseholds Vehicles Egui(1ment Infrastructure 

Cost 

Beginning of year $ 5,639,417 $ 17,906,419 $ 58,853,654 $ 4,992,958 $ 8 ,105 .C'\O $ 111,084,592 $ 

Additions 375,742 796,279 290,648 1,0'.':; c;;,8~~ 822,869 

Disposals {1 0,486l (5,478l (167,623) --~~J3,628l (69,908l 

End of year 5,628,931 18,282, 161 59 644 455 5 .1 15 983 -t687,275 111 ,837 ,553 

r:,~ 
Accumulated amortization .. t 

(y 
Beginning of year 7,724,020 12,814,381 2,~,001 4,505,703 50,902,950 

Amortization 557,050 1,721,248 '{ 318 817 635,859 2,147,383 
1-',£) ' 

Amortization (' ) 
on disposals (4, iJ.111 (167.623) (441,656) (63,333) 

End of year 8,281,070 14 531,,615 2 631 795 4,699,906 52,987,000 

Net book value $ 5,628,931 $ 10,001,091 $ ~-~~1~,840 $ 2,484, 188 $ 3,987,369 $ 58,850,553 $ 
-,~. 
~. 

v 

126



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2017 

Land Buildings and Furniture and 
Land lm12rovements Leaseholds Vehicles Egui12ment Infrastructure 

Cost 

Beginning of year $ 6,203,049 $ 17,038,857 $ 46,624,840 $ 5,054,070 $ 7 211 n79 $ 107,717,557 $ . • CJ 
Additions 1,377,127 12,488,954 76,766 1.2.~1~:::, 3,638,894 

Disposals (563,632) (509,565) (260,140) (137,878) - - _ (i\0,082) 
~ :-.. 

(271,859) 

End of year 5.639 417 17 906 419 58,853,654 4,992,958 d 105 080 111,084,592 

r~ 
t -Accumulated amortization 

Beginning of year 7,687,051 11 ,383,658 2.i3 ~t1oo03 4,246,605 48,995,046 

Amortization 528,944 1,669,334 .( 303,876 589,178 2,140,726 

Amortization ·~ 
on disposals (491,975) (238,'111 (137,878} (330,080) (232,822} 

End of year 7,724,020 12 81"' ,381 2,480,601 4 ,505,703 50,902,950 

' 
Net book value $ 5,639,417 $ 10,182,399 $ •. ~6,"'39,273 $ 2,512,357 $ 3,599,377 $ 60,181,642 $ 

"?ti 

127



City of Port Col borne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Revenues 

Taxation 

User charges 

Government transfers 

Other revenue 

Gain (loss) on disposal of 

tangible capital assets 

Expenses 

Salaries and benefits 

Materials 

Contract services 

Rents and financial expenses 

External transfers to others 

Long term debt interest 

Tax write-offs 

Amortization 

Inter-functional transfers 

Annual surplus (deficit) 

$ 17,736, 188 

3,005,548 

5,263,249 

2,650,037 

37,592 

28,692,614 

12,778,460 

6,566,216 r 2,194,. 18 

~ H??,098 
~ 

(; ' il1,072 

["'\<:._()' 871 ,502 

v 119,152 

4,339,074 

265,840 

27.412,732 

$ 1,279,882 

Wastewater 

$ $ 

4,654,264 

26,640 

----'1~9;~~: ~-----=9=85~ 
.........1..§§?.854 ,, 4,558,575 

0 
~580,239 

~- 301 541 ' ' 2,593,982 

9,132 

97,892 

602,645 

257.620 

4 443 051 

$ 239,803 

90,313 

97,728 

4 ,138,318 

1,331 

365,935 

211 374 

4 ,904,999 

$ (346,424) 

$ 

$ 

27,970 

781,100 

10,380 

(584) 

818.866 

558,544 

138,418 

26,408 

138 

72,703 

796 211 

22,655 

128



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

General 

Revenue 
Taxation 
User charges 
Government transfers 
other 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 

Budget 
2018 

$ 17,588,028 $ 
2,755,097 
4,278,685 

981 ,080 

c ; - , ~5.602.890 
ri; 

Rents and financial expenses 
External transfers to others 
Long term debt interest 

<V' 
~ 

'•:!:,fl' 
o~ 

11 ,743,137 
6,410,510 
2,233,377 

200,304 
87,162 

809,018 
253,500 

4,333,309 
Tax write-offs 
Amortization 
Inter-functional transfers ~ 0 266 301 

Actual 
2018 

17,736,188 
3,005,548 
5,263,249 
2,650,037 

37,592 

28,692,614 

12,778,460 
6,566,216 
2,1 94,318 

197,098 
81 ,072 

871,502 
119,152 

4,339,074 
265,840 

~~.,. 26.336,618 27,412,732 

Annual surplus (deficit) -tflJ' 
'\ 

$ (733, 728) $ 1,279,882 

31 

129



City of Port Col borne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

Water 

Revenue 
User charges 
Government transfers 
Other 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Expenses 

Budget 
2018 

Actual 
2018 

$ 4,923, 113 $ 4,654,264 

6,000 26,640 

l 4.929,11 3 ;- ;-

1,950 

4,682,854 

~ > 

<)) 688,565 580,239 Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 
Rents and financial expenses 
Long term debt interest 
Amortization 

.V' 
r8 

.§> 

307,316 301,541 
2,450,357 2,593,982 

7,525 9,132 
97,892 97,892 

602,645 602,645 
Inter-functional transfers 25 7,620 __ 2=--5...._7=,6=2-=-0 

Annual surplus 

(j' 
0 $ 

4,443,051 

517,193 $ 239,803 -------
4 411 920 

32 

130



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Wastewater 

Revenue 

Budget 
2018 

Actual 
2018 

User charges $ 5,217,888 $ 4,557,590 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 
Rents and financial expenses 
Amortization 
Inter-functional transfers 

Annual (deficit) surplus 

5.217.888 

327,285 
153,126 

4,072,067 
2,106 

365,935 
211 374 

5.131.893 

85,995 

985 

4,558,575 

90,313 
97,728 

4,138,318 
1,331 

365,935 
211.374 

4,904.999 

$ (346,424) 

33 

131



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

Library 

Revenue 
User charges 
Government transfers 
Other 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 

$ 

Budget 
2018 

24,650 $ 
776,165 

8,1 10 

Actual 
2018 

27,970 
781,100 

10,380 
(584) 

808. 925 __ 8=1=8=,8-=-66=-

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 
Rents and financial expenses 
Amortization 

Annual surplus 

554,812 
135,863 
25,500 

72 703 

788 878 

20,047 

558,544 
138,418 

26,408 
138 

72,703 

796,211 

$ 22,655 

34 

132



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Land Buildings and Furniture and Construction 
Land lm1;1rovements Leaseholds Vehicles Egui1;1ment Infrastructure in Process 2018 

Cost 

Beginning of year $ 5 ,639,417 $ 17,906,419 $ 58,853,654 $ 4,992,958 $ 8, 105.0'10 $ 111,084,592 $ 11 ,240,742 $ 217,822,862 

Additions - 375,742 796,279 290,648 
. '7 

1 ,0.:i'l,8~::. 822,869 1,880,168 5,221,529 
r ... ' 

Disposals (10,486) - (5,478) (167,623) - ~ - (1[ 3.628) (69,908) (250,090) {977,213) 
, 

14 687.275 End of year 5,628,931 18,282, 161 59,644,455 5115 983 111 .837 .553 12,870.820 222,067, 178 ,... . ,..... " 'll _, 
Accumulated amortization 

Beginning of year - 7,724,020 12,814,381 2~:001 4,505,703 50,902,950 - 78,427,655 

Amortization 557,050 
,n 

635,859 2,147,383 5,380,357 - 1,721,248 c 'y318,817 -
~. 

Amortization '\; 

on disposals - - (4,1W·(j (167,623) (441,656) (63,333) - (676,626) ,_, 
End of year - 8 281 070 14 53,\615 2,631,795 4,699,906 52,987,000 - 83,131,386 

t"'r Net book value $ 5,628,931 $ 10,001 ,091 $ -~i5;·!..12,840 $ 2,484,188 $ 3,987,369 $ 58,850,553 $ 12,870,820 $ 138,935, 792 - -- .. :.r-.... . ... 
f. .. 

A'°' -.-· v 

28 

133



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Land Buildings and Furniture and Construction 
Land lmgrovements Leaseholds Vehicles Egui12ment Infrastructure in Process 2017 

Cost 

Beginning of year $ 6,203,049 $ 17,038,857 $ 46,624,840 $ 5,054,070 $ 7,211 ~79 $ 107,717,557 $ 10,715, 159 $ 200,564,611 

Additions - 1,377, 127 12,488,954 76,766 
)' 

).:2,.:~:::, 3,638,894 9,812,592 28,618,416 

Disposals (563,632) (509,565) (260, 140) (137,878) _ ,..:; _g )0;082) (271,859) (9,287,009) (11,360, 165) 

End of year 5 639 417 17 906 419 58,853,654 4,992,958 
~ /.! 

111 ,084,592 11,240,742 217,822,862 -- <:S,105,080 ,. 
. :>" 

Accumulated amortization I ; ~ 

Beginning of year - 7,687,051 11 ,383,658 2,~ 1 ,ti03 4,246,605 48,995,046 - 74,626,963 

"""--Amortization - 528,944 1,669,334 C' rr-303,876 589,178 2,140,726 - 5,232,058 

Amortization ..:\; 
(238,,m -

I 

on disposals - (491,975) (137,878) (330,080) (232,822) - (1,431,366) -End of year 7 724 020 12 811,,381 2 480 601 4,505,703 50,902,950 - 78,427,655 

Net book value $ 5,639,417 $ 10, 182,399 $ ~ . .\~-:-~39,273 $ 2,512,357 $ 3,599,377 $ 60, 181,642 $ 11,240,742 $ 139,395,207 

~:; 

29 

134



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

General Water Wastewater Library Eliminations 2018 

Revenues 

Taxation $ 17,736, 188 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 17,736,188 

User charges 3,005,548 4,654,264 4,557, ::qo 27,970 - 12,245,372 

Government transfers 5,263,249 
...... "' 

781 ,100 (734,834) 5,309,515 -
'1\S" ·: Other revenue 2,650,037 26,640 10,380 - 2,687,057 

Gain (loss) on disposal of / ,.,. 
tangible capital assets 37,592 1 9:'l: :J ,, 985 (584} - 39,943 

28.692,614 
. ~ 

4,558.575 818 .866 (734,834) 38,018,075 ~?,854 

Expenses O'c . 
Salaries and benefits 12,778,460 ~580,239 90,313 558,544 - 14,007,556 

Materials 6,566,216 ~ 301,541 97,728 138,418 - 7,103,903 ,....., 
Contract services 2,194,.~ 2,593,982 4,138,318 26,408 8,953,026 

Rents and financial expenses 1 e.~ ,098 9 ,132 1,331 138 - 207,699 
l ;:! 

External transfers to others .t ' o1 012 - - - - 81,072 r; . ., ' 
Long term debt interest <::>'()' 871 ,502 97,892 - - - 969,394 

Tax write-offs 119,152 - - - - 119,152 

Amortization 4,339,074 602,645 365,935 72,703 - 5,380,357 

Inter-functional transfers 265,840 257,620 211 374 - (734,834} 

27,412,732 4,443,051 4,904,999 796 211 (Z34,834} 36,822,159 

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 1,279,882 $ 239,803 $ (346,424) $ 22,655 $ - $ 1, 195,916 

30 

135



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

General 

Revenue 
Taxation 
User charges 
Government transfers 
Other 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 

Budget 
2018 

$ 17,588,028 
2,755,097 
4,278,685 

981,080 

" !) ~ - 25,602,890 

n~-
v 11,743,137 

t{~ .... 6,410,510 
It'' 2,233,377 

'!.... 200,304 
.f'"/11 87, 162 v{'J-

Rents and financial expenses 
External transfers to others 
Long term debt interest 
Tax write-offs 
Amortization 

,y 809,018 
't~ 253,500 

O
(j 4,333,309 

Inter-functional transfers 266.301 

Actual 
2018 

$ 17,736,188 
3,005,548 
5,263,249 
2,650,037 

37,592 

28,692,614 

12,778,460 
6,566,216 
2,194,318 

197,098 
81,072 

871,502 
119,152 

4,339,074 
265,840 

~; 26.336.618 27 ,412, 732 

Annual surplus (deficit) (~ $ (733,728) $ 1,279,882 

( _) 

31 

136



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

Water 

Revenue 
User charges 
Government transfers 
Other 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 
Rents and financial expenses 
Long term debt interest 
Amortization 
Inter-functional transfers 

Annual surplus 
. . 

Budget 
2018 

Actual 
2018 

$ 4,923, 113 $ 4,654,264 

6,000 26,640 
1,950 

4,682,854 

688,565 580,239 
307,316 301,541 

2,450,357 2,593,982 
7,525 9,132 

97,892 97,892 
602,645 602,645 
257 ! 620 ----'2=5o.:..7=,6=20,,_ 

4 411 920 4.443,051 

$ 517, 193 $ 239,803 -------
~~~~-~~~~!-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

32 

137



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

Wastewater 

Revenue 
User charges 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 
Rents and financial expenses 
Amortization 
Inter-functional transfers 

Budget 
2018 

Actual 
2018 

$ 5,217,888 $ 4,557,590 
985 

4,558,575 

0, 
". 327,285 90,313 
~ 153,126 97,728 

(l' 4,072,067 4,138,318 
v 2,106 1,331 

('~ <; 365,935 365,935 v 211 374 _ ____,2::...,:1w..1...:::,3.:...;74~ 

f!;, 5. 131,893 4,904,999 

~ $ 85,995 $ (346,424) 

r~ 
Annual (deficit) surplus 

___________ ., ) 

33 

138



City of Port Colborne 
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure 
with Budget Information 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

Library 

Revenue 
User charges 
Government transfers 
Other 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Materials 
Contracted services 
Rents and financial expenses 
Amortization 

$ 

.I 

" =-cf' 
.o/' 

0 
.·~ 

$ Annual surplus (j 

Budget 
2018 

24,650 $ 
776,165 

8,110 

808.925 

554,812 
135,863 
25,500 

72 703 

788 878 

20,047 $ 

Actual 
2018 

27,970 
781,100 

10,380 
(584) 

818.866 

558,544 
138,418 

26,408 
138 

72,703 

796,211 

22,655 

34 

139



City of Port Colborne 
Trust Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Operating activities 
Excess of revenues over expenses 
Increase in due from City of Port Colborne 
Increase in accrued interest 

Investing activities 
Decrease (increase) in investments - net 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

(j" 
0 

$ 24,977 $ 
(6,996) 

(64) 

17917 

7,285 

25,202 

63,614 

88,816 $ 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

19,693 

(28) 

19 665 

(13.605) 

6,060 

57 554 

63,614 

39 

140



City of Port Colborne 
Trust Funds 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies 

Management responsibility 

The financial statements are the responsibility of and prepared by management in accordance with 
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. 

The significant accounting policies used are as follows: 

(a) Basis of accounting 

Sources of revenue and expenses are reported on the accru,·t basis of accounting. The 
accrual basis of accounting records revenues in the period /.':iey :.:ire earned and measurable 
and expenses in the period the goods and services are acqG'.) ecl and a liability is incurred. 

' (b) Cash and cash equivalents 

' .... Cash and cash equivalents are represented b~ \ la~+. on hand, cash on deposit in chartered 
banks and investments that mature within thre~ m•; nths. 

(c) Portfolio investments 0 · 
j 

Portfolio investments are valued at {~ lower of cost and market value. Interest income is 
reported as revenue in the periorl Earned. 

(d) Financial instruments 

Initial measurement . 

The Trust Funds ,;;:it~V~1· instruments are measured at fair value when issued or acquired. 
For financial inS'~·ur tents subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost, fair value is 
adjusted by the amount of the related financing fees and transaction costs. Transaction costs 
and financing fees relating to financial instruments that are measured subsequently at fair 
value are recognized in operations in the year in which they are incurred. 

Subsequent measurement 

At each reporting date, the Trust Funds measure their financial assets and liabilities at cost. 
The financial instruments measured at cost are cash investments, interest receivable and due 
from revenue fund. 

For financial assets measured at cost, the Trust Funds regularly assesses whether there are 
any indications of impairment. If there is an indication of impairment, and the Trust Funds 
determine that there is a significant adverse change in the expected timing or amount of 
future cash flows from the financial asset, it recognizes an impairment loss in the statement of 
operations. Any reversals of previously recognized impairment losses are recognized in 
operations in the year the reversal occurs. 

40 

141



City of Port Colborne 
Trust Funds 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

2. Portfolio investments 

Portfolio investments consist of money market, bond and equity funds with annual interest rates 
ranging from 1.60% to 3.40% and a guaranteed investment certificate with an annual interest rate 
of 0.60% maturing December, 2019. Portfolio investments have an estimated market value of 
$ 362,507 (2017 - $ 386, 140). 

41 

142



POR. T COLBOR.NE 

Corporate Services Department 
Finance Division 

Report Number: 2019-165 Date: November 12, 2019 

SUBJECT: Development Charge Reserve Funds - 2018 Year-end Update 

1) PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with a Development Charges Reserve 
Fund Statement of Activity for the period ending December 31, 2018. 

2) BACKGROUND: 

In accordance with the Development Charges Act, 1997, municipalities must provide an 
annual Development Charges statement of activity to Council. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS: 

The City may impose and collect Development Charges. The Development Charges 
Act, 1997 and the City's by-law specify the collection and use of Development Charges. 

The balance in each fund as at December 31, 2017 and 2018 is broken down as 
follows: 

Fund December 31, 2017 December 31, 2018 

Roads $76,034 $76,695 

Wastewater $6,581 $6,638 

Fire $36,614 $36,932 

Public Works $61,640 $62,177 

Parks and Recreation $31,280 $31,552 

Library $9,070 $968 

Total $221,219 $214,962 

Appendix A provides the breakdown of the reserve fund activity for the period January 
1, 2018 to December 31, 2018. There were no Development Charges collected due to 
the moratorium on collection of the fees. 

143



4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

The report is for informational purposes. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES: 

Council receives an annual statement for Development Charges activity. 

6) ATTACHMENTS: 

Appendix A: Development Charges Reserve Funds - Statement of Activity 

7) RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council receives the attached Development Charge Statement for information. 

8) SIGNATURES: 

Prepared on October 15, 2019 by: Reviewed and respectfully submitt~d by: 

'"'':"> .... r~ ... 
1' •• \ 

Ir"" 

Brenda Garrett Peter Senese 
Director of Corporate Services Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-165 Page 2 of 2 

144



Development Charges Reserve Funds 

Statement of Activity 

January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 

Appendix A 

Roads Wastewater Fire Public Works Parks & Rec Library Total 

Balance, Beginning of year 76,033.90 6,581.05 36,613.95 61,640.60 31,279.59 9,069.75 221,218.84 

Allocation of Surplus: 
Revenue 
Interest 661.15 57.22 318.37 535.98 271.99 8.35 1,853.06 

Total 661.15 57.22 318.37 535.98 271.99 8 .35 1,853.06 

Utilization: 
ForTCA 
For current ope rations . . . . 8,110.00 8,110.00 

Total . . . 8,110.00 8,110.00 

Balance, End of year 76,695.05 6,638.27 36,932.32 62,176.58 31,551.58 968.10 214,961.90 

145



~ 

ihi~ p~ge intentionally le~ blank. 

146



Community and Economic Development Department 
Parks and Recreation Division 

PORT COLBORNE -

Report Number: 2019-158 Date: November 12, 2019 

SUBJECT: Annual Lighted Santa Claus Parade - Road Closures 

1) PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to recommend road closures and parking restrictions for the 
management and control of vehicular traffic for the purposes of the Annual Lighted Santa 
Claus Parade (the "parade")- Road closures and parking restrictions will facilitate the 
Parade movement, help manage traffic, and will allow for the safe passage of pedestrians 
throughout the event area. 

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 

The Annual Lighted Santa Claus Parade takes place on the first Saturday in December 
each year. This year, the Parade will take place on Saturday, December 7, 2019 
beginning at 6:30 p.m., with staging to begin at 4:00 p.m. The parade is a significant 
community event, being one of the only night parades in the Niagara Region, that attracts 
visitors from across the Region and beyond. The parade will begin at Port Colborne High 
School and finish at the Market Square parking lot, directly across from City Hall. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

In order to facilitate this year's parade, staff recommend temporary road closures and 
parking restrictions on Saturday, December 7, 2019 from 4:00 p.m. until 7:00 p.m., for the 
purpose of staging parade floats, as follows: 

• Fielden Avenue, from the southern limit of Killaly Street, to the southern limit of 
Elgin Street; 

• Elgin Street, from the eastern limit of Steele Street, to the western limit of Elm 
Street; and 

• Fielden Avenue, at the western limit of Delhi Street. 

This request will provide parade marshals a safe and orderly area for parade floats to 
assemble prior to the start of the parade at approximately 6:30 p.m. In addition, staff 
recommend the following areas be closed to street parking on Saturday, December 7, 
2019 from 4:00 p.m. until 9:00 p.m., in order to provide for safe viewing areas from 
boulevards/sidewalks, and to ensure floats can move freely throughout the route and 
disperse at the end, as follows: 

• Clarence Street, from the western limit of Steele Street, to the eastern limit of West 
Street; 

• West Street, from the northern limit of Clarence Street, to the southern limit of 
Charlotte Street; and 

• Charlotte Street, from the western limit of Elm Street, to the eastern limit of West 
Street. 

147



The City's Operations Division will block off all parking stalls with pylons and provide 
waste receptacles along the parade route prior to the commencement of the parade. By
law staff will be required to remove and ticket vehicles as necessary that are inside the 
parade route during the time of the traffic and parking restrictions. Further, staff 
recommend temporary (barricaded) road closures to restrict vehicular traffic at 
intersections throughout the route, as follows: 

• North and west intersections of Steele Street and Elgin Street; 
• East intersection of Steele Street at Carter Street; 
• East intersection of Steele Street at Park Street; 
• East intersection of Steele Street at Tugboat Lane; 
• West and south intersections of Steele Street and Clarence Street; 
• North and south intersections of Fielden Avenue at Clarence Street; 
• North and south intersections of Elm Street at Clarence Street; 
• North and south intersections of Catharine Street at Clarence Street; 
• North and south intersections of King Street at Clarence Street; 
• North and east intersections of West Street at Clarence Street; 
• South intersection of West Street at Charlotte Street; 
• North and south intersections of King Street at Charlotte Street; and 
• East and north intersections of Charlotte Street and Catharine Street. 

The parade route is attached as Appendix "A". Road closures and parking restrictions are 
not applicable to ambulance, police and/or fire services vehicles or any other vehicles 
required in the case of an emergency, which may include public works, by-law, and public 
utility vehicles or vehicles authorized by permit only. Prior to the commencement of the 
parade, the City's roads crew will begin to close the above intersections with barricades 
starting at the high school. Once all intersections are closed, the parade will commence. 

In order to facilitate the parade along West Street, closure of Bridge 21 will be required. 
Staff will communicate with the St. Lawrence Seaway Management Corporation Traffic 
Control Centre Supervisor, and provide the necessary details for the bridge closure. 

The parade is scheduled to begin at 6:30 p.m., leaving Port Colborne High School on 
Elgin Street at Steele Street and continuing south on Steele Street. The parade will then 
turn left onto Clarence Street, travel east to West Street, then turn right onto West Street 
and then south to Charlotte Street. The parade will then turn right onto Charlotte Street 
and continue to travel west to Catharine Street where the parade entries will disperse. 
Traffic will be regulated with the assistance of Niagara Regional Police traffic services as 
a rolling closure, and once the last parade float followed by the police escort has passed, 
each temporary barricade will be removed by the City's roads crew. A media notice will 
be prepared and distributed notifying the community of the closures. 

Staff/Stakeholder Comments: 

Various City departments were engaged for comments during the report writing process. 
The departments include: By-law Enforcement Division, Fire & Emergency Services, 
Engineering & Operations, and Communications. None of the mentioned staff had any 
comments to add to the report. 

Community and Economic Development Department, Parks and Recreation Division, Report No: 2019-158 
Page 2 of 5 

148



4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

a) Do nothing. 

Council may choose to receive and file this report, effectively denying the request. This 
option is not recommended. 

b) Other Options 

Council may provide alternative direction regarding the parade and/or road closures and 
parking restrictions. This option is not recommended. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 

Not applicable. 

6) ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix "A" - Annual Lighted Santa Claus Parade Route Map 

7) RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the road closures necessary for the Annual Lighted Santa Claus Parade on 
Saturday, December 7, 2019, as outlined in Community and Economic 
Development, Report 2019-158, be approved; 

2. That the following roads be closed to general vehicular traffic and parking from 4:00 
p.m. to 7 :00 p.m. on Saturday, December 7, 2019, forthe purpose of parade staging: 

• Fielden Avenue, from the southern limit of Killaly Street to the southern limit of 
Elgin Street; and 

• Elgin Street, from the western limit of Elm Street to the eastern limit of Steele 
Street; and 

• Fielden Avenue, at the western limit of Delhi Street. 

3. That the following roads be closed for vehicular parking from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 
on Saturday, December 7, 2019, for the purpose of parade staging and to provide 
for a safe viewing area of the parade: 

• Clarence Street, from the western limit of Steele Street to the eastern limit of 
West Street; 

• West Street, from the northern limit of Clarence Street to the southern limit of 
Charlotte Street; and 

• Charlotte Street, from the western limit of Elm Street to the eastern limit of West 
Street. 

4. That the following road intersections be temporarily closed (by barricade) beginning 
at 6:30 p.m. until 9:00 p.m. on Saturday, December 7, 2019, to restrict through traffic 
onto the parade route: 

Community and Economic Development Department, Parks and Recreation Division, Report No: 2019-158 
Page 3 of 5 

149



• North and west intersections of Steele Street and Elgin Street; 
• East intersection of Steele Street at Carter Street; 
o East intersection of Steele Street at Park Street; 
o East intersection of Steele Street at Tugboat Lane; 
• West and south intersections of Steel Street and Clarence Street; 
o North and south intersections of Fielden Avenue at Clarence Street; 
e North and south intersections of Elm Street at Clarence Street; 
• North and south intersections of Catharine Street at Clarence Street; 
• North and south intersections of King Street at Clarence Street; 
o North and east intersections of West Street at Clarence Street; 
• South intersection of West Street at Charlotte Street; 
• North and south intersections of King Street at Charlotte Street; and 
• East and north intersections of Charlotte Street and Catharine Street. 

5. That emergency service vehicles, including ambulance, police and fire, as well as 
public works, public utility vehicles, and authorized permit vehicles be exempt from 
the above noted closures; 

6. That Public Works staff deliver traffic barricades before the event at the 
predetermined locations, restrict access to the appropriate parking stalls and deliver 
waste receptacles along the Parade route; 

7. That Public Works staff will block off all parking stalls along the parade route with 
pylons beginning at the time of the traffic and parking restrictions; 

8. That By-law Enforcement staff ticket and remove vehicles as necessary along the 
parade route during the time of the traffic and parking restrictions closures. 

8) SIGNATURES 

Prepared on September 30, 2019 by: 

Luke Rowe 
Event Coordinator 

Reviewed by: 

Ashley Grigg 
Director of Community and Economic 
Development 

Reviewed by: 

Nicole Halasz 
Manager of Parks and Recreation 

Reviewed and respectfully submitted by: 

Peter Senese 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer 

Community and Economic Development Department, Parks and Recreation Division, Report No: 2019-158 
Page 4 of 5 

150



~ 

Appendix "A" to Community and Economic Development, 
Parks and Recreation Division Report 2019-158 - Parade Route Map 

~-

r 
--·- WWW ~.'t.i.IM'i.r ---. 

\-
l LEGEND ~ 

-0-

~1 
·1 PORT COLBORNE 

HIGH SCHOOL 

' NIAGARA 
""--REGIONAL 

POLICE 

a • .., .. ,., 

!I l_ 
;1~J 

j!I 

~ 

S>-
........ 

3 I- - --11 ~ r J _.,_ _ .. ._ 
- - - 1 . ....... "-~~ 

' _ _ .....:..-~~-·-· .. =_) --- . [ ~ rr-~·-_----r. . PARA]\ -·-1\ . c .. -, ROUTE~ \ ~ ]f. -~ .... . --- ,,...,. ... -, ........... ~ .._...,,_, .... ___::_...... ~ ...... -.._......... ~~ i [ 1 -~ MARKE~T \ ~- - -· -- I ---==---· . Ji SQUARE l ' 
I~ ~ '" S CITYHALLI t t=cJ ·= . _J_~-
~.~- · ---__ r •nrn•m -

2019 Port Colborne Sant Claus Parade Route 

- STAGING AREA 

• PARADE ROUTE! l 
• lllACAIM REGIOllAL l'OUCE 

• PORT COLS ORNE HIGH SCHOOL 

• MARXETSQUARE 

• CfTYHALLI GU/LOHALJ.. 

• PARAOE ROUTE DIRECTION 

• ROAD CLOSURE BARRICAOE 

~ 
ITt ... ... 
)> 

~ 

0 

0 
i. 

~ 

i. ,... 

J~-
POR. T COLBOR.NE 

151



This page intentionally left blank. 

152



I 

R
Ci.!J'...of Port Colbomo 
ECEIVED 

OCT 3 1 2019 

.. lj~ ~' .. CO RPORATE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

--..;;.J181il'lllll.~-- ENGINEERING & OPERATIONAL SERVICES 

PORT COLBORNE 
MEMORANDUM 

EXT. 219 

DATE: October 31 , 2019 

TO: Amber LaPointe, City Clerk 

FROM: Janice Peyton, Executive Assistant, DEO 

RE: Transit Advisory Committee 
Community Bus Saturday Service Pilot Program 

Please be advised that, at the meeting of October 9, 2019 the Transit Advisory Committee 
discussed increasing the Community Bus service. The committee resolved as follows: 

Moved by Scott Mathieson 
Seconded by Melissa Bigford 

That the Council of the City of Port Colborne be notified that the Port Colborne 
Transit Advisory Committee is in agreement with increasing the Port Colborne 
Community Bus services through a pilot project coordinated with Welland 
Transit, to run on Saturdays for a six-hour block of time. The pilot project will be 
in place from May 2, 2020 to December 31,2020. 
CARRIED. 

Please place this item on the next Council agenda for consideration. 

Thank you. 

Signed: 
Janice Peyton 
Executive Assistant, DEO 
Recording Secretary, Transit Advisory Committee 

153



This page intentioncilly le~ blank. 

154



Niagara 7A_ 71 Region 

November 1, 2019 

DISTRIBUTION LIST 

SENT ELECTRON/CALLY 

Administration 
Office of the Regional Clerk 

~1r;-0g~~10 

NOV O 1 2019 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock W ay, PO Box I 042, Th~,Q\g~~t..tt'S~1=i\i1CES 
Telephone: 905-980-6000 Toil-free: 1-800-2~~)f?J)~7-4977 
www .niagararegion.ca 

CL 16-2019, September 19, 2019 

Re: Actions & Resources to Join the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities 
Report CAO 14-2019 

Regional Council, at its meeting held on September 19, 2019, passed the following 
resolution: 

That Report CAO 14-2019, dated September 19, 2019, respecting Actions & 
Resources to Join the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities, BE RECEIVED and 
the following recommendations BE APPROVED: 

1. That Council RESOLVE to join the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities (CIM), 
formerly known as Canadian Coalition for Municipalities Against Racism and 
Discrimination (CCMARD) and SIGN a declaration to support the ten CIM 
commitments; 

2. That staff BE DIRECTED to create supporting governance structures with 
internal and external stakeholders to advise on internal diversity, equity, and 
inclusion issues and support the creation of a Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 
Action Plan; 

3. That the dedicated resources required for developing the Diversity, Equity, and 
Inclusion Action Plan BE REFERRED for consideration as part of the 2020 
budget process; and 

4. That Report CAO 14-2019 BE CIRCULATED to all municipalities in the Coalition 
of Inclusive Municipalities, the local area municipalities and the Association of 
Municipalities of Ontario (AMO). 

A copy of Report CAO 14-2019 is enclosed for your information. 

155



Yours truly, 

£1n~ 
Ann-Marie Norio 
Regional Clerk 

Cl-K-C 2019-234 

Distribution List: 

Actions & Resources to Join the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities 
November 1, 2019 

Page 2 

Municipalities in the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities 

Niagara Region Local Area Municipalities 
Association of Municipalities of Ontario 

156



Niagara91/ Region CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 2019 

Page 1 

Subject: Actions & Resources to Join the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities 

Report to: Regional Council 

Report date: Thursday, September 19, 2019 

Recommendations 

1. That Council RESOLVE to join the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities (CIM), 
formerly known as Canadian Coalition for Municipalities Against Racism and 
Discrimination (CCMARD) and SIGN a declaration to support the ten CIM 
commitments; and 

2. That staff BE DIRECTED to create supporting governance structures with 
internal and external stakeholders to advise on internal diversity, equity, and 
inclusion issues and support the creation of a Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 
Action Plan; and 

3. That the dedicated resources required for developing the Diversity, Equity, and 
Inclusion Action Plan BE REFERRED for consideration as part of the 2020 
budget process. 

Key Facts 

• The purpose of this report is to outline the action and resources involved for Niagara 
Region to join the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities, in response to the motion of 
Council (COM 14-2019) on May 16, 2019. 

• In 2017, there were 21 hate crimes reported to police in Niagara, which was an 
increase from 11 in 2016. In London there were 26, Windsor had 19, Hamilton had 
91 and was the second highest rate per 100,000 in Canada. In Canada the majority 
of hate crimes are motivated by race or ethnicity (45%), religion (35%), sexual 
orientation (11 %). 

• The population of Niagara is growing, as is the diversity of those coming to Niagara. 
According to the 2016 census, 8.9% of people in Niagara are a visible minority 
(38,810 individuals), up from 7.0% in 2011. There are 18,625 people (4.3%) in 
Niagara with North American Indigenous origins (First Nations, Inuit, or Metis). In 
2011, there were 14, 720 people (3.8%) with North American Indigenous origins. 

• Recognizing the importance of attracting and retaining a diverse workforce for 
achieving economic prosperity, a Global Attractiveness project was undertaken 
under the previous Council Strategic Plan. The 2017 report outlined actions 
associated with three objectives (see Appendix 1 ): 

o Supporting community readiness 
o Marketing to migrants 
o Supporting retention programs 

157



CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 2019 

Page 2 

o A strategic marketing manager has been hired to address one of the objectives, 
however, work has not yet been able to progress for the other two objectives absent 
dedicated resources. 

• There are 77 municipal ities across Canada that have joined CIM, with 20 in Ontario , 
including City of Hamilton, City of London, and City of Windsor. 

• Other municipalities that have supported Cl M have resourced at least one FTE for 
developing and implementing an action plan, and/or up to one FTE support for 
advisory committees. 

Financial Considerations 

Based on the experiences of other municipalities in Canada, providing dedicated 
resources is crucial to realize Council-led action pursuant to joining CIM. 

Ded icated resources are recommended for a two-year period in order to fulfill the 
requirements of joining the CIM. The annual operating impact is estimated at $144,000, 
which includes one temporary non-union FTE dedicated for the duration of the project, 
student support, and funds for training, conferences, mileage and community 
engagement. We estimate a total project cost of $288,000 over two years. If the 
recommendations in this report are approved , a business case will be submitted for 
consideration through the 2020 budget approval process. The financial implication of 
these resources would be equivalent to 0.04% of the levy. 

This potential financial implication should be considered in context of new budget 
commitments previously endorsed by Council and new budget pressures outlined by 
staff, as summarized in the following table presented to Budget Review Committee to 
illustrate the potential levy impact estimated for the 2020 budget. 

Suicide Prevention Initiative PHO 8-2019 0.200 0.05% 
·- - - . - _ .... ~ . ·-· 

Niagara Airports CAO 04-201 9 2.240 0.61% - ~-~ - .. ·- . 
Waterfront Investment Program - Base funding CSD 40-2019 1.000 0.27% 

Smarter Niagara Incentive Program - Base CSD 40-2019 0.600 0.16% funding 

Brock LINC request for funding ED 9-2019 1.500 0.41% 

Niagara Regional Transit - phase in cost CSD 40-2019 6.213 1.70% 

NRPS 2019 position hiring deferral BRC-C 7-201 9 0.706 0.19% 

Long-Term Care Home Redevelopment capital COM 32-2019 5.899 1.62% 
funding 
GO Project - Station Operations CSD 17-2019 1.410 0.39% 

158



EMS Central Hub capital funding 

Potential Budget Pressure To-date 

Analysis 

Background 

CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 2019 

Page 3 

CSD 40-2019 0.390 0.11 % 

$20.158 5.51% 

The Niagara Region Global Attractiveness Committee Report was submitted in 
February 2017, written by external consultants, Sarah Wayland and Huyen Dam, in 
conjunction with the internal Niagara Region Global Attractiveness Committee. The 
report outlined current immigration patterns, the attraction and retention factors in 
Niagara, and an action plan with three objectives: 

1. To support community readiness to be a welcoming region through 
engagement and fostering collaboration with key stakeholders using tailored 
information and data. 

2. To improve Niagara's existing marketing and migrant/immigrant focused 
literature and create new marketing to attract primary and secondary migration 
from within Canada and internationally. 

3. To support further implementation of concrete programs that will retain 
immigrants and international students. 

The objectives were supported by six tactics, and short, medium, and long term actions 
(see Appendix 1). A Strategic Marketing Manager was hired to address the second 
objective, however, work has not yet progressed on the other two objectives due to a 
lack of dedicated resources. Although these objectives focus on Niagara being a 
welcoming community, able to retain immigrants, it was not focused specifically on 
addressing discrimination and racism as in the CIM ten common commitments. 

The Canadian Coalition Against Racism and Discrimination (CCMARD) was launched in 
2004 as part of the International Coalition of Inclusive and Sustainable Cities (ICCAR) 
supported by the United Nations Educational, Scientific, and Cultural Organization 
(UNESCO). The name changed to Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities in 2019. Joining 
the Coalition and working actively towards the 10 commitments is beneficial for 
municipalities to be able to build respectful, inclusive and diverse societies, for the 
whole region , and specifically for newcomers, immigrants, refugees, Indigenous 
peoples, visible minorities, people with disabilities, and the LGBTQ2S+ community. 

Additional benefits of joining CIM include access to a network of municipalities across 
the world to share best practices and resources, strengthening community partnerships, 

159



CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 2019 

Page 4 

involving diverse community stakeholders to understand their realities, and working 
together to form an Action Plan. Joining CIM can lead to increased accountability to 
citizens around issues of racism and discrimination, and increased trust, loyalty and 
respect towards the municipality, as the government works towards equity, inclusion, 
and appreciation of diversity in the community. 

Creating an inclusive and diverse workforce and municipality leads to greater economic 
innovation and increased profitability. A 2018 report by McKinsey & Company cal led 
Delivering through Diversity described research conducted with 1,000 companies in 12 
countries.1 The research found that companies in the top-quartile for gender diversity on 
executive teams were 21 % more likely to outperform on profitability and 27% more likely 
to have superior value creation. Companies in the top-quartile for ethnic/cultural 
diversity on executive teams were 33% more likely to have industry-leading profitability. 

Focus groups and interviews with community partners and residents of Niagara 
conducted while developing the Public Health & Emergency Services Health Equity 
Strategic Plan found that discrimination based on race, gender, religion, sexuality, and 
other characteristics is experienced by people in multiple locations across the region. 
This results in negative health, social, and justice impacts for individuals and groups of 
people. 2 These negative results include physical harm as well as social or emotional 
impacts.2 Studies have shown that when services have been withheld from people from 
certain populations due to stereotypes and misconceptions, has led to negative social 
and health outcomes and reluctance to access services when issues arise in the 
future. 3 This applies not only for that individual, but for other family members as well. 
There is an over-representation of Indigenous peoples and visible minorities in many 
social services, including Family and Children's Services, the justice system, and in the 
homeless shelters. 

Joining the Coalition 

There are six steps to join the Coalition: 
1. Prepare the case 
2. Adopt a resolution to join 
3. Sign the Declaration 
4. Inform the Canadian Commission for UNESCO 
5. Announce your involvement to local partners and residents 
6. Agree to develop or adapt a unique plan of action 

1 Hunt V, Prince S, Dixon-Fyle S, & Yee L. (2018). Delivering through Diversity. McKinsey & Company. 
2 Paradies Y, Ben J , Denson N, Elias A, Priest N, Pieterse A, et al. (2015). Racism as a Determinant of 
Health: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. PLoS ONE 10(9): e0138511. 
https://doi.orq/10.1371 /journal.pone.0138511 
3 Ben J, Cormack D, Harris R, & Paradies Y. (2017). Racism and health service utilisation: A systematic 
review and meta-anaysis. PLoS ONE 12(12): e0189900. https://doi .orq/10.1371 / jou rnal.pone.01 89900 

160



CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 2019 

Page 5 

A summary of the ten Common Commitments grouped under three categories are listed 
in Appendix 2 with examples of current internal and external facing work from across 
the Regional departments and potential opportunities. 

Other Municipal Action 

There are 77 municipalities across Canada that have joined CIM, and 20 within Ontario. 
Here are some of the activities and resources of other similar municipalities. 

~Ml.micipality~~.:R.;i":.;·.;'. Comniitt~-~ctioff Plan·. · · Staff-Res~urces 
Region of Peel Diversity, Equity, and Office of Culture and 

,-;T 
. ~-

Anti-Racism Inclusion - seven staff 
Committee 
Seven members 

City of Hamilton Hamilton Committee Equity, Diversity, Human Rights, 
Against Racism and Inclusion Diversity and 

Plan Inclusion Office -
(announced eight staff 
2019) 

City of London Diversity and One staff member 
Inclusion (Coordinator, 
Strategy (2015- Government & 
2019) External Relations) 

City of Windsor Diversity Committee One staff (Diversity & 
Nine members Accessibility Advisor) 

- Clerks Office 
Region of Waterloo Grand River Diversity, Equity One staff member 
(Not part of CIM) Accessibility and Inclusion 

Advisory Committee Plan (2018-
(GRAAC) 2022) 
12 members 

Based on the learnings and experiences of other municipalities in Canada, we 
recommend dedicated personnel and operating costs. Personnel would coordinate the 
governance structures with internal and external stakeholders, and draft a Diversity, 
Equity, and Inclusion Action Plan. 

Drafting the Action Plan would include conducting literature reviews, community 
engagement, and an environmental scan of best practices across Canada and 
internationally, as well as identifying needs, best practices, resources, and areas of 
focus for advancing a more inclusive Niagara that supports the ten CIM commitments. 

161



Alternatives Reviewed 

CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 2019 

Page 6 

Staff considered waiting until the 2021 budget cycle to request dedicated resources for 
this initiative. This is not recommended as there are no staff that can be reassigned in 
the meantime to support the proposed governance structures. This alternative would 
result in the work towards the commitments and action plan to progress slower, with an 
action plan-not being created until 2021-2022. 

A second alternative considered was for potential FTE support through the Community 
Safety and Well-Being (CSWB) Plan. There is potential alignment between the CSWB 
Plan and the CIM recommendations for some aspects of the two projects, however, this 
would require the community consultations to identify diversity, equity, and/or inclusion 
as a key issue. This option is dependent on many variable factors, and does not offer 
committed support for CIM. 

A third alternative considered was to hire a consultant to conduct research and draft an 
Action Plan. However, this would still require FTE support in directing the consultant, 
and would not be able to provide sustainable support to the internal Task Force or the 
Advisory Committee. A consultant would also not be able to develop and sustain quality 
internal and external stakeholder relationships that are important for this work. 

A final alternative considered was leveraging existing resources by repurposing a 
current position. This option is not recommended, as there are no staff available for 
reallocation without significant impact on core Region operations or other strategic 
priorities. 

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities 

Supporting Business and Economic Growth, which works towards a coordinated 
approach to fostering economic growth in Niagara. Research has shown that cultural ly 
diverse regions are more innovative and economically prosperous. 

Healthy and Vibrant Community, specifically with objective 2.1: Enhancing 
Community Wellbeing with the intended outcome to foster a safe and inclusive 
community. Council will contribute to creating a healthy and vibrant community through 
advancing the ten commitments, which include monitoring and taking action against 
racism and discrimination in the region, supporting people who experience racism and 
discrimination, as well as the police as they combat racism and discrimination. 

Sustainable and Engaging Government, through committing to high quality, efficient, 
fiscally sustainable and coordinated services. Creating an inclusive, equitable, and 
diverse region will enhance Council's ability to provide customer focused services, 
demonstrates a value to continuous improvement, collaboration and innovation, and be 
inclusive through reaching and maximizing the assets of all members of the community. 

162



Other Pertinent Reports 

CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 2019 

Page 7 

c COM 14-2019 - Canadian Coalition of Municipalities Against Racism and 
Discrimination (CCMARD) 

• CAO 08-2019 - Community Safety and Well-Being Plan 
• CWCD 70-2017 - Global Attractiveness Committee Report 

Prepared by: 
Cassandra Ogunniyi 
Strategic and Health Equity Initiatives 
Coordinator 
Public Health and Emergency Services 

Submitted by: 
Ron Tripp, P.Eng. 
Acting Chief Administrative Officer 

Recommended by: 
M. Mustafa Hirji, MD MPH RCPC 
Medical Officer of Health/Commissioner 
(Acting) 
Public Health and Emergency Services 

This report was prepared in consultation with Farzana Crocco, Strategic Marketing Manager; 
Sandy Dupuis, Corporate Performance Specialist; Donovan D'Amboise, Manager, Program 
Financial Support, and reviewed by Dr. Andrea Feller, Associate Medical Officer of Health. 

163



Appendices 

Appendix 1 

CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 201 9 

Page 8 

··- .l • - - ' ••• 

. : STRATEGY TO IMPROVE 'GL.O.BA'L··. A+TR.AC:(1,\l'ENESS : 
. '• .· ._ . - . ~· . - .. .--.. ·.-.:: ··: ...... -~ - :-'·.'. .-- : _, ..... -· ; . ·': · ... ·:~-- -· ' ........... ~ 

1. Support community readrness to be a welcomlllg I 
region through engagement and fostemg 
collaboration with key stakehoklers using tailored 
information and data I 

1.1 stakeholder 
engagement 

Engage with LAMs, 
stakehoklers and 
informal sectors 

/'-

1.2 Data Strategy 

Develop a robust data 
stralegy 

· 0 BJ E C:TIY ES ··~ :';, '~···, ·· .~ : -'.' /;~ .~:.:·., ~("';~: '-:'~:,;· ::~ :_.;.:,~~: 

2. Improve Niagara's exisllng marketing and 
m1granVimmigrant focused literature and 
programs and create new marketilg to 
attract secondary migration from Ille GTA and 
internationally 

/'-

3. Support 1mplementabon of concrete programs 
that w1D retain 11T1m1grants and international 
students 

/'-

T ACTICS ··. 

2.1 Improve access to 
local illlormation 

2.2 Marketing plan 
3.1 Welcome and 

engage wrlh 
newcomers 

I 

- -- -----------

3.2 AdvOC3le for 
mc!usive workplaces 
and policies 

I 

SHORT · · .. · 

Promote Ille 
Revamp Niagara Region Develop a holistic Create newcomer development of induslve 
lmmlgralion portal ma!keling strategy welcome package wor1<p!aces lllroughout 

the re_glon -Support stakeholders Promote events and 
Ervfch the local 
settlement service 

Improve diversity 
Implement data strategy ~~i:~~iooal Implement marketing networks for ~ewcomers landscape 

awareness campaign to GTA and comm111ity S rt local . t h' 
members 1o engage uppo 11 ems 1P opportunities 

programs 

,. · .- LONG : .. : . 

Develop st.akellolder 
leadership to malntain/ 
improve diverstty 

Evaluate data strategy 
and Action Plan 

Mainlam immigration 
portal and employment 
services websites 

Implement international 
markelilg campalgn 

P.lcllrta1e programs that 
promote newcomer 
volunteerlsm and 
recognition in the 
community 

Advocate for policies that 
foster the attraction and 
retention ot Immigrants 

164



CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 2019 

Page9 

Appendix 2 CIM Commitments - Current and Potential Future Activities 

The municipality as a guardian of the public interest 

1. Increase vigilance against systemic and individual racism and discrimination. 
Current Internal Activities: HR policies 
Potential Opportunities: Establish an external consultation or advisory committee 

2. Monitor racism and discrimination in the community more broadly as well as 
municipal actions taken to address racism and discrimination. 

Current Activities: None 
Potential Opportunities: Report on the incidence of hate crimes, racism, and 
discrimination, as well as the responses taken, including areas such as housing, 
recreation, health, and other social programs 

3. Inform and support individuals who experience racism and discrimination. 
Current Internal Activities: HR Policies 
Potential Opportunities: Use awareness materials and campaigns to inform 
citizens about their rights and obligations, including available resources and 
mechanisms for prevention and redress, as well as penalties for racist acts or 
behaviour and other forms of discrimination 

4. Support policing services in their efforts to be exemplary institutions in combating 
racism and discrimination. 

Potential Opportunities: Consult with local communities to hear concerns and 
receive input on responsive measures. Establish or enhance a comprehensive anti
racism and anti-discrimination vision statement and implement effective policies and 
procedures (including a complaints mechanism), as well as staff training to help 
prevent and respond to issues of racism and discrimination in policing services and 
in the community. 

The municipality as an organization in the fulfillment of human rights 

5. Provide equal opportunities as a municipal employer, service provider, and 
contractor. 

Current Internal Activities: HR Policies 
Current External Activities: Support Social Procurement 
Potential Opportunities: Examine equity at a systemic level, such as auditing 
different aspects of the municipality's operations, including corporate planning, policy 
and program development, and procedures and practices with respect to 
employment, service delivery and contracting, as well as organizational culture; take 
steps to eliminate barriers; and finally, measure progress. Educate and sensitize 
elected officials and civil servants on mutual respect, citizenship and the obligation 
to protect and promote human rights. 

165



6. Support measures to promote equity in the labour market. 
Current Internal Activities: Corporate Diversity Training 

CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 2019 

Page 10 

Current External Activities: SAEO Employment Services, Bend the Curve 
Potential Opportunities: In partnership with local chambers of commerce, set up a 
certification program for businesses, organizations, and professional bodies to 
integrate mechanisms into their own organizations for combating racism and building 
inclusive and respectful workplaces. Facilitate monitoring and removal of systemic 
barriers that impede fair and equitable access for full participation of Aboriginal and 
racialized communities in the economic life of the municipality, as well as access to 
professions and trades for foreign trained professionals. 

7. Support measures to challenge racism and discrimination and promote diversity 
and equal opportunity in housing. 

Current External Activities: 10 Year Housing and Homelessness Action Plan, 
Niagara Housing Statement 
Potential Opportunities: Work with landlords and social housing providers, with the 
assistance of tenant associations and community organizations, including legal 
clinics, to adopt equitable policies and practices with respect to qualifying applicants 
and selecting tenants for market rent units consistent with human rights principles. 
Work with homebuilder, realtor, rental, hotel, tourist and hospitality associations to 
draw up anti-discrimination codes of practice for their respective industry businesses 
and organizations. 

The municipality as a community sharing responsibility for respecting and 
promoting human rights and diversity 

8. Involve citizens by giving them a voice in anti-racism initiatives and decision-
making. 

Current Internal and External Activities: Accessibility Advisory Committee, Lived 
Experience Advisory- homelessness, Mental Health Client Advisory, Youth Advisory 
Committee (YAC), Lived Experience Advisory Network (LEAN) - poverty, Council 
Strategic Plan (Shape Niagara) 
Potential Opportunities: Take steps to facilitate and increase the representation of 
Aboriginal and racialized communities on municipal boards, commissions and 
committees. Organize regular community forums in collaboration with existing 
organizations and mechanisms in order to offer citizens an opportunity to discuss 
and be heard on issues of racism and discrimination in the municipality, including 
effectiveness of local policies and programs 

9. Support measures to challenge racism and discrimination and promote diversity 
and equal opportunity in the education sector, and in other forms of learning 

Current Internal Activities: Public Health - Indigenous Cultural Safety Training 

166



CAO 14-2019 
September 19, 2019 

Page 11 

Current External Activities: SAEO - Local Immigration Partnership (LIP) 
Potential Opportunities: Support partnerships between educators and front-line 
community organizations to reach out to vulnerable youth whose access to 
education is adversely affected by bullying and violence or discriminatory discipline 
policies or practices. Create a program to recognize schools for their anti-racism and 
anti-discrimination initiatives. 

10. Promote respect, understanding and appreciation of cultural diversity and the 
inclusion of Aboriginal and racialized communities into the cultural fabric of the 
municipality. 

Current Internal Activities: Public Health - Indigenous Cultural Safety Training, 
Public Health - Health Equity Strategic Plan, Seniors Services and Community 
Programs - Diversity and lnclusivity Committee, Diversity Calendar for new 
International Plaza and Civic Park 
Current External Activities: SAEO - LIP, 10 Year Housing and Homelessness 
Action Plan, Indigenous Community Engagement Consultant, Overdose Prevention 
and Education Network of Niagara (OPENN), Public Health - Health Equity Strategic 
Plan, Economic Development marketing and promotion of Niagara, Diversity 
Calendar for new International Plaza and Civic Park 
Potential Opportunities: Support initiatives that increase expertise and capacity 
within ethno-cultural organizations to effect change in their communities and enable 
their members to participate fully in society. Promote awareness of the fact that 
integration of a community's cultural fabric, together with its economic, educational, 
social and security interests, strengthens and benefits the whole community. 

167



This page intentionally le~ blank.. 

168



c1!)'. . .oc' l'Q!l c o1bomtt 
Administration RI:: t: IVE D 

Niagara Office of the Regional Clerk NOV n 1 2019 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box I 042, Thorold, ON' l'2V 4i 7 
Telephone: 905-980-6000 Toll-free: 1-800-263-72 tsOF~OJ~~lltfCES 
www.niagararegion.ca 10EPART.MEWT 

November 1, 2019 

CL 18-2019, October 17, 2019 

DISTRIBUTION LIST 

SENT ELECTRON/CALLY 

Re: Proposed Cuts to Legal Aid Ontario Budget 

Regional Council , at its meeting held on October 17, 2019, passed the following resolution: 

WHEREAS the Niagara Community Legal Clinic is a not-for-profit agency providing 
access to justice and vital service to low-income Niagara citizens in civil law matters, 
including landlord-tenant disputes, Ontario Disability Support Payment (ODSP) appeals, 
pension appeals, workplace injury/WSIB compensation, consumer law protection, 
refugee assistance, migrant worker support, human rights law, power of attorney 
matters, and wills and estates for low-income seniors; 

WHEREAS the Niagara Community Legal Clinic is funded by Legal Aid Ontario, an 
arm's-length agency of the Ministry of the Attorney General for Ontario, which (in 
addition to funding the province's legal clinics) provides much-needed support to low
income people in matters of family law, refugee law, and criminal law; 

WHEREAS the two historic Niagara legal clinics - Justice Niagara, founded in 1978, 
and Niagara North Community Legal Assistance, founded in 1982 - merged on January 
1, 2019, to form the Niagara Community Legal Clinic; 

WHEREAS Legal Aid funding saves money in the overall justice system budget, in light 
of the evidence that the cases of self-represented parties (i.e., parties without Legal Aid 
support) consume significantly greater amounts of expensive court time and/or tribunal 
time; and 

WHEREAS the Province cut approximately $70 million from the Legal Aid Ontario 
budget in 2019, with approximately $14.5 million of that being cut from the legal clinic 
system, and has indicated an intention to cut an additional $1 7.3 million from the LAO 
budget in 2020: 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. That Regional Chair Jim Bradley BE DIRECTED to send a letter to Ontario Attorney General 
Doug Downey, on behalf of Regional Council, reading as follows: 

169



Motion respecting Proposed Cuts to Legal Aid Ontario Budget 
November 1, 2019 

Page 2 

"The Region of Niagara is grateful for the work of the Niagara Community Legal 
Clinic, whose professionals provide meaningful access to justice for low-income 
people in Niagara. In light of the deep challenges Niagara faces in terms of 
poverty and lack of sufficient affordable housing, the services that the Niagara 
Community Legal Clinic provides are truly vital to our community. 

It has come to our attention that the Province has proposed additional cuts to the 
budget of Legal Aid Ontario (LAO), the Niagara clinic's funder, to be implemented 
in 2020. Because our Council deeply values the work of our Niagara Community 
Legal Clinic, and the supports that LAO provides to citizens facing challenges in 
family law, criminal law, and refugee law, we request that you not implement any 
additional cuts to the LAO budget. We also ask that you re-invest in the Legal Aid 
and clinic systems, so as to address the many barriers to access to justice that 
our citizens face. 

Thank you for your consideration." 

2. That this motion and the Chair's letter BE CIRCULATED to municipalities 
throughout Ontario and the Association of Municipalities of Ontario. 

Yours truly, 

L/1nU---
Ann-Marie Nerio 
Regional Clerk 

CLK-C 2019-245 

Distribution List: 

All Municipalities in Ontario 
Association of Municipalities of Ontario 

170



October 21, 2019 

Office of the Regional Chair I Jim Bradley 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box I 042 Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 
Telephone: 905-980-6000 Toll-free: 1-800-263-7215 Fax: 905-685-6243 
Email: jim.bradley@niagararegion.ca 
www .niagararegion.ca 

The Honourable Doug Downey, Attorney General of Ontario 
Ministry of the Attorney General 
McMurtry-Scott Building 
720 Bay Street , I I th Floor 
Toronto, ON M7 A 2S9 

Dear Attorney General Downey, 

The Region of Niagara is grateful for the work of the Niagara Community Legal Clinic, whose 
professionals provide meaningful access to justice for low-income people in Niagara. In light of the deep 
challenges Niagara faces in terms of poverty and lack of sufficient affordable housing, the services that 
the Niagara Community Legal Clinic provides are truly vital to our community. 

It has come to our attention that the Province has proposed additional cuts to the budget of Legal Aid 
Ontario (LAO), the Niagara clinic's funder, to be implemented in 2020. Because our Council deeply 
values the work of our Niagara Community Legal Clinic, and the supports that LAO provides to citizens 
facing challenges in family law, criminal law, and refugee law, we request that you not implement any 
additional cuts to the LAO budget. W e also ask that you re-invest in the Legal Aid and clinic systems, so 
as to address the many barriers to access to justice that our citizens face. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Jim Bradley, Chair 
Niagara Region 

171



ihis page intentionally left blank. 

172



O N T AR I O Community Services 
Our Focus: Your Future 

Legislative Services 

Ci!z'...Of Port Colbornfl 
Rt::CEIVED 

OCT 2 3 2019 
CORPORATE SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT 

October 23, 2019 
File No. 120204 

Sent via email: amberlapointe@portcolbome.ca 

Mayor and Members of Council 
City of Port Colborne 
66 Charlotte Street 
Port Colborne, ON L3K 3C8 

Dear Mayor and Members of Council : 

Re: Port Colborne Quarry and the Aquifer through Fort Erie 

The Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie at its meeting of October 21, 2019 passed the 
following resolution: 

Whereas there are concerned citizens in the Town of Fort Erie regarding the quarry 
remediation project in our neighbouring municipanty of Port Colborne, and 

Whereas that concern centres around the potential impacts and risks to the aquifer, now or 
in the future, and 

Whereas according to Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks Water Well 
Information System, there are app.ro:ximately 1, 100 private water wells in the Town of Fort 
Erie, of which 75% are used for domestic purposes, including human and livestock 
consumption, and 

Whereas By-law No. 201-96, as amended, regulates the placing of fill and site alterations 
on lands within the Town of Fort Erie, and 

Whereas the quarry remediation project lies within the jurisdiction of the Ci.ty of Port 
Colborne but the aquifer provides water for those using wells in Fort Erie and other parts of 
Niagara; 

Now therefore be it resolved, 

That: The Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie directs staff to continue to collaborate 
with officials in the City of Port Colborne on the quarry remediation project, and further 

... 12 

Mailing Address: The Corporation of the Town of Fort Erie 
1 Municipal Centre Drive, Fort Erie ON L2A 2S6 

Office Howrs 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Phone: (905) 871-1600 FAX: (905) 871-4022 Web-site: www.forterie.ca 

173



Mayor and Members of Council Page two 

That: The Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie supports the protection of our water 
and natural heritage, which are included in Council's 2018-2022 Corporate Strategic Plan 
as Council priorities, and further 

That: The Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie requires the protection of water in the 
aquifer from contamination as the result of any remediation of Pit One owned by the Port 
Colborne Quarries, and further 

That: The Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie requests the City of Port Colborne 
and the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks to continue to follow or 
establish protocols that will take into consideration potential impacts to neighbouring 
municipalities., and further 

That: The Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie requests the City of Port Colborne 
and the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks to continue that process in· a 
way that is open and transparent to the public, and further 

That: This resolution be circulated to the Municipal Council of the City of Port Colborne, all 
other municipalities within The Regional Municipality of Niagara, The Regional Municipality 
of Niagara, the Honourable Jeff Yurek, Minister of the Environment, Conservation and 
Parks, and The Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario. 

Trusting this information will be of assistance to you . 

You{!ZJru )', 

Carol Schofield, Dipl.M.A. 
Manager, Legislative Services/Clerk 
cschofield@forterie.ca 

CS:dlk 

c.c Niagara Local Area Municipalities Sent via email 
Ann-Marie Nerio, Regional Clerk, Niagara Region Sent via email: ann-marie.norio@niaaarareqion.ca 
The Honourable Jeff Yurek, Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks Sent via email: leff.yurek@pc.ola.org 
The Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Oratario Sent via email: f!Temiei{@ontarlo.ca 

174



~
1

~°CE fVEnD 
OCT 2 8 2019 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

The City of Niagara Falls, Ontario 
Resolution 

October 22, 2019 

No. 9 

Moved by: Councillor Vince Kerrio 

Seconded by: Councillor Wayne Campbell 

WHEREAS distracted drivers continue to be the major cause of traffic accidents and 
fatalities throughout Ontario; and 

WHEREAS school children loading and unloading on school buses continue to be the 
most vulnerable to distracted drivers; and 

WHEREAS Bill 174, adopted by the Province of Ontario in December 2017 includes 
school bus camera legislation; and 

WHEREAS as a result of adopting Bill 174, the Ministry of Transportation of Ontario 
(MTO) is required to produce regulations within the Highway Traffic Act in order for 
municipalities to implement school bus stop-arm technology; and 

WHEREAS it is imperative Niagara have a say in how to best expedite legislation and 
implement effective, realistic protocols that ensure every chi ld boarding or exiting a 
school bus in Niagara is safe; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Niagara Region Council direct staff to generate a 
report to be returned to Council by the last week of November, 2019 that addresses the 
Province's request that municipalities: 

• Identify the preferred technology Niagara Region would like to use 
• Identify the method of procurement Niagara Region would utilize in order to 

acquire and implement the needed equipment, with feedback from all Niagara 
School Boards (DSBN/ NCDSB/ CSV/ CSC), bus carrier (NSTS) and school bus 
camera technology partners 

• Identify options that would allow Niagara Region to enter in to an agreement with 
the Province and school bus technology vendor 

175



• Identify the framework for the set up for enforcement and the processing of 
offence notices complete with funding options and opportunities 

• That fines be reviewed and possibly be increased as a deterrent. 

AND FURTHER that a copy of this resolution be sent to all Local Area Municipalities 
within Niagara. 

AND The Seal of the Corporation be hereto affixed. 

WILLIAM G. MATSON 
CITY CLERK 

Carried 

176



SENT VIA EMAIL 

October 25, 2019 

The Honourable Doug Ford, Premier 
Legislative Building 
Queen's Park 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 

Dear Premier Ford : 

RE: LOCAL HEAL TH CARE SERVICES 

2021 Division Road North 
Kingsville, Ontario N9Y 2Y9 

Phone: (519) 733-2305 
www.kingsville.ca 

kingsvilleworks@kingsville.ca 

Clll1_or Port Colborne 
Rt:CEIVED 

OCT 2 5 2019 
CORPORATE SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT 

At its Regular Meeting held on October 15, 2019 Council of the Town of Kingsville 
passed the following Resolution: 

"533-2019 
Moved By Councillor Kimberly DeYong 
Seconded By Councillor Larry Patterson 

WHEREAS public health care consistently ranks as the top priority in public opinion 

polls, and; 

WHEREAS Public Health provides vital health promotion and prevention services based 
on the unique demographic and economic, social , and cultural needs of our 

communities; and; 

WHEREAS the evidence from hospital amalgamation in Ontario and across Canada is 

that they have cost billions of dollars and have not yielded the promised administrative 
savings but have taken money away from frontline care, and; 

WHEREAS there is no evidence to support the proposed closure of 25 out of 35 local 
Public Health Units, the closure of 12 of 22 local ambulance dispatch centres, and the 

closure of 49 out of 59 local ambulance services, and; 

WHEREAS there is a deep consensus among virtually all stakeholders that increasing 

acuity in our long-term care homes requires additional staff and resources, not 

177



cancellation of the two special funds and real dollar cuts to per diem funding of our long
term care homes, and; 

WHEREAS our local hospitals have been downsized for an entire generation and 
cannot meet population needs while sustaining real dollar cuts to hospital global 
budgets. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

That The Corporation of the Town of Kingsville calls upon the Ontario government to 
halt the closures of, mergers of, and cuts to our local health care services including 
Public Health Units, land ambulance services, hospitals and long-term care homes and 
the Town of Kingsville forward this resolution to all municipalities in the Province of 
Ontario." 

Yours very truly, 

Jennifer Astrologo, B.H.K. (Hons), LLB. 
Director of Corporate Services/Clerk 
Corporate Services Department 
jastrologo@kingsville.ca 

cc: Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) 
cc: All Ontario Municipalities 
cc: Taras Natyshak, MPP 
cc: Windsor-Essex County Health Unit 

178



City of Port Colborne 
Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 26-19 

Minutes 

Date: October 28, 2019 

Time: 6:30 p.m. 

Place: Council Chambers, Municipal Offices, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne 

Members Present: M. Bagu, Councillor 
E. Beauregard , Councillor 
R. Bodner, Councillor 
G. Bruno, Councillor 
F. Danch, Councillor 
A. Desmarais, Councillor 
D. Kalailieff, Councillor 
W. Steele, Mayor (presiding officer) 
H. Wells, Councillor 

Staff Present: D. Aquilina, Director of Planning and Development 
B. Garrett, Director of Corporate Services 
A. LaPointe, Manager of Legislative Services/City Clerk 
C. Lee, Acting Chief Administrative Officer 
L. Nelson, EAA to the Director of Corporate Services (minutes) 

Also in attendance were interested citizens, members of the news media and WeeStreem. 

1. Call to Order: 

Mayor Steele called the meeting to order. 

2. National Anthem 

Those in attendance stood for 0 Canada. 

3. Introduction of Addendum Items: 

Nil. 

4. Confirmation of Agenda: 

Moved by Councillor H. Wells 
Seconded by Councillor G. Bruno 

That the agenda dated October 28, 2019 be confirmed, as circulated or as 
amended. 

CARRIED. 

179



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 26-19 Page 2 of 9 

5. Disclosures of Interest: 

Councillor Wells declared a pecuniary interest regarding item 5. Councillor Wells 
refrained from discussing or voting on item 5. 

6. Adoption of Minutes: 

(a) Regular meeting of Committee of the Whole 25-19, held on October 15, 2019. 

Moved by Councillor F. Danch 
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard 

That the minutes of the regular meeting of the Committee of the Whole 
25-19, held on October 15, 2019, be approved as presented. 

CARRIED. 

7. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

The following items were identified for separate discussion: 

Items 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7. 

8. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion: 

Moved by Councillor A. Desmarais 
Seconded by Councillor M. Bagu 

Items: 

That items 1 to 9 on the agenda be approved, with the exception of items that 
have been deferred, deleted or listed for separate discussion, and the 
recommendation contained therein adopted. 

1. Chief Administrative Officer Department, Report 2019-160, Subject: 
Memorandum of Understanding - Procurement of Goods and Services 

Committee of the Whole recommends: 

That Council ratify the Memorandum of Understanding attached as 
Appendix "A" to Chief Administrative Officer's Department Report 2019-
160. 

8. Pierre Ranger, Chair of the Let's Remember Adam - STOP FOR THE 
SCHOOL BUS Committee Re: National School Bus Safety Week and Stop 
Arm Cameras 

Committee of the Whole recommends: 

180



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 26-19 Page 3 of 9 
That the correspondence received from Pierre Ranger, Chair of the Let 's 
Remember Adam - STOP FOR THE SCHOOL BUS Committee Re: 
National School Bus Safety Week and Stop Arm Cameras, be received 
for information. 

9. City of St. Catharines Re: Menstrual Products in City Facilities 

Committee of the Whole recommends: 

The the resolution received from the City of St. Catharines Re: Menstrual 
Products in City Facilities, be received for information. 

CARRIED. 

9. Presentations: 

Nil. 

10. Delegations: 

(a) Janet Handy, Executive Director of the Kristen French Child Advocacy 
Centre Niagara Re: Information about the Kristen French Advocacy Centre 
and what the Centre is looking to for the Future 

Janet Handy, Executive Director of the Kristen French Child Advocacy Centre 
Niagara provided a presentation with respect to the programs and services offered by 
the Kristen French Child Advocacy Centre Niagara. A copy of the presentation is 
attached. 

11. Mayor's Report: 

A copy of the Mayor's Report is attached. 

12. Regional Councillor's Report: 

Councillor Butters reported that the Niagara Region is conducing curbside branch 
removal October 28 to November 22. Branches must be tied in bundles no longer than 
1.5 metres or 5 feet long, and no heavier than 22. 7 kilograms or 50 pounds. Councillor 
Butters noted that it is flu season and encouraged residents to call Public Health to 
make an appointment and get a flu shot. Councillor Butters reported that the Province 
has decided against amalgamation. Councillor Butters also attended the Taste of Port 
Colborne event and noted that the event was very good. 

13. Councillors' Items: 

(a) Centennial Park (Wells) 

Councillor Wells asked that the ruts in Centennial Park be levelled off. 

181



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 26-1 9 Page 4 of 9 

{b) Concession 2 and Highway 140 Piles of Asphalt {Wells) 

Councillor Wells had a concern about piles of asphalt and stone on Concession 
2 and Highway 140. Councillor Wells followed up with the City and was notified 
that the roadway is being refurbished at that location. 

{c) Sherkston Halloween {Wells) 

Councillor Wells noted that the Sherkston Halloween event was well attended. 

{d) Amelia Street South Side (Desmarais) 

Councillor Desmarais requested that the Director of Engineering and Operations 
have staff look at the Amelia Street south side sidewalk as someone fell off a 
scooter due to the large drop in the pavement. 

(e) Road Patches (Bagu) 

Councillor Bagu noted that he has received several complaints about the road 
patches around the City. The Director of Engineering and Operations said that 
there will be repairs made in the last two weeks of November. 

(f) Council Chambers Podium (Bruno) 

Councillor Bruno inquired about having the podium in Council Chambers 
included in the renovations for the first floor. Councillor Bruno suggested a new 
podium that can be adjusted for height and that would be more easily accessible 
for standing and sitting. 

(g) Lighting Issues West Street and Charlotte Street (Kalailieff) 

Councillor Kalailieff asked for an update regarding lighting on West Street and 
Charlotte Street. The Director of Engineering and Operations gave a brief 
update to the ongoing repairs to lighting on both streets. 

(h) Communities that Bloom Workshop (Kalailieff) 

Councillor Kalailieff attended the Communities that Bloom workshop which can 
be used to promote our community. Councillor Kalailieff suggested that the 
Director of Communities that Bloom come in and do a presentation to Council 
and staff. 

{i) Crimestoppers Niagara (Kalailieff) 

Councillor Kalailieff presented a gift and a Certificate of Recognition to the 
Mayor from Crimestoppers Niagara. 

182



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 26-19 Page 5 of9 

(j) High Wind Water Event October 27 (Bodner) 

Councillor Bodner thanked staff for their work on the high water event which 
occurred on Sunday, October 27. 

(k) Sherkston Community Centre (Bodner) 

Councillor Bodner noted that the Sherkston Community Centre has built a new 
cabinet for storing memorabilia from the Sherkston School. Councillor Bodner 
requested that if anyone has memorabilia from the school that they would like to 
donate or loan to the display, please contact the Sherkston Community Centre. 

Staff responses to Councillors' enquiries: 

Nil. 

14. Consideration of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: Re-order items 

2. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report 
2019-142, Subject: Oil Mill Creek Municipal Drain - Appointment of 
Engineer 

Moved by Councillor M. Bagu 
Seconded by Councillor R. Bodner 

That the Council of the City of Port Colborne receives Report 2019-142 
with respect to the Oil Mill Creek Drain Engineer Appointment as 
information; and 

That Paul Marsh P. Eng. Of EWA Engineering Ltd. be appointed under 
Section 8 of the Drainage Act, Chapter D.17 R.S.O. 1990 for the 
preparation of a new engineer's report under Section 78 of the Drainage 
Act, Chapter D.17 R.S.O. 1990, related to the Oil Mill Creek Drain. 

CARRIED. 

3. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report 
2019-143, Subject: Point Abino Municipal Drain -Appointment of Engineer 

Moved by Councillor M. Bagu 
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells 

That the Council of the City of Port Colborne receives Report 2019-143 
with respect to Point Abina Drain Engineer Appointment as information; 
and 

That Paul Marsh P. Eng. Of EWA Engineering Ltd . be appointed under 
Section 8 of the Drainage Act, Chapter D.17 R.S.O. 1990 for the 
preparation of a new engineer's report under Section 78 of the Drainage 
Act, Chapter D.17 R.S.O. 1990, related to the Point Abina Municipal 
Drain. 

183



Minutes - Regu lar Committee of the Whole Meeting 26-19 
CARRIED. 

Page 6 of 9 

4. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report 
2019-156, Subject: Biederman Municipal Drain -Appointment of Engineer 

Moved by Councillor M. Bagu 
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells 

That the Council of the City of Port Col borne receives Report 2019-156 
with respect to Biederman Drain Engineer Appointment as information; 
and 

That Brandon Widner P. Eng. Of Spriet Associates Engineers and 
Architects. be appointed under Section 8 of the Drainage Act, Chapter 
D.17 R.S.O. 1990 for the preparation of a new engineer's report under 
Section 78 of the Drainage Act, Chapter D.17 R.S.O. 1990, related to the 
Biederman Municipal Drain. 

CARRIED. 

5. Planning and Development Department, Report 2019-155, Subject: 
Planning Budget Tasks 

Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard 

That Council authorize $75,000 to be allocated to the Planning and 
Development Department for Consulting Services and included in the 
2020 budget process. 

Moved in amendment by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard 

That the main motion be amended by replacing the words "included in the 
2020 budget process" with "be taken from 2019 reserve funds". 

CARRIED. 

Moved in amendment by Councillor R. Bodner 
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard 

That the main motion be amended to include the following as a second 
paragraph: That the Director of Planning and Development hold an open 
house for the removal of topsoil and placement of fill by-law. 

CARRIED. 

The vote was then called on the main motion, as amended, as follows: 

That Council authorize $75,000 to be allocated to the Planning and 
Development Department for Consulting Services and be taken from 2019 
reserve funds; and 

184



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 26-19 Page 7 of 9 
That the main motion be amended to include the following as a second 
paragraph: That the Director of Planning and Development hold an open 
house for the removal of topsoil and placement of fill by-law. 

CARRIED. 

6. Planning and Development Department, Report 2019-146, Subject: 
Background Study and Development Charges By-law Update 

Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

That Council approve Option 1 as described in Planning and 
Development Department Report 2019-146; and 

That the proposed Development Charges By-law attached as Appendix C 
to Planning and Development Department Report 2019-146 be brought 
forward for approval; and 

That staff be directed to prepare the Notice of passing in accordance with 
the Development Charges Act. 

Moved in amendment by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

That the main motion be amended to replace the second paragraph with 
the following: 

That Council approves the Development Charges implementations as 
follows: 

1. Infill housing - deferral of all development charges for 5 years. 
2. Multiple unit residential (including condominiums) - no development 

charges for the first 3 years; year 4 50%; year 5 100%. 
3. Sub-division/new development - 20% of development charges in first 

year; 40% year 2; 60% year 3; 80% year 4; 100% year 5. 
4. Commercial, Industrial, and institutional - no development charges for 

the first 3 years; year 4 50%; year 5 100%. 
5. Brownfield Development - deferral of all development charges for 5 

years; 
CARRIED. 

The vote was then called on the main motion, as amended, as follows: 

That Council receives Planning and Development Department Report 
2019-146, Background Study and Development Charges By-law Update 
for information; 

That Council approves the Development Charges implementations as 
follows: 

1. Infill housing - deferral of all development charges for 5 years. 

185



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 26-19 Page 8 of 9 
2. Multiple unit residential (including condominiums) - no development 

charges for the first 3 years; year 4 50%; year 5 100%. 
3. Sub-division/new development - 20% of development charges in first 

year; 40% year 2; 60% year 3; 80% year 4; 100% year 5. 
4. Commercial, Industrial, and institutional - no development charges for 

the first 3 years; year 4 50%; year 5 100%. 
5. Brownfield Development - deferral of all development charges for 5 

years; 

That the updated Development Charges By-law be brought forward for 
approval at Council; and 

That staff be directed to prepare the Notice of passing in accordance with 
the Development Charges Act. 

CARRIED. 

7. Memorandum from the Economic Development Advisory Committee Re: 
Development Charges 

Moved by Councillor A. Desmarais 
Seconded by Councillor D. Kalailieff 

That the memorandum received from the Economic Development 
Advisory Committee Re: Development Charges be received for 
information; and 

That the following motion be considered by Council when reviewing the 
Development Charges Bylaw: 

That the Economic Development Advisory Committee recommends to the 
Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne that Development 
Charges be implemented as follows: 

1. Infill housing - deferral of all development charges for 5 years. 
2. Multiple unit residential (including condominiums)- no development 

charges for the first 3 years; year 4 50%; year 5 100%. 
3. Sub-division/new development - 20% of development charges in first 

year; 40% year 2; 60% year 3; 80% year 4; 100% year 5. 
4. Commercial and Industrial- no development charges for the first 3 

years; year 4 50%; year 5 100%. 
5. Brownfield Development - deferral of all development charges for 5 

years. 

That the City impose a vacancy tax on land that is approved for 
development which remains undeveloped for a period as recommended 
by city staff. 

CARRIED. 

15. Notice of Motion: 

Nil. 

186



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 26-19 

16. Adjournment: 

Moved by Councillor E. Beauregard 
Seconded by Councillor F. Danch 

Page 9 of 9 

That the Committee of the Whole meeting be adjourned at approximately 
7:45 p.m. 

CARRIED. 

AL/In 

187



\ \ '\ 

188



•• 
OUR 
PURPOSE 
• Provide a non-threatening, 
child-friendly place where children 
and youth feel safe disclosing their 
abuse experience 

• Minimize the# of times children 
must repeat their experience 

· To provide a coordinated partners' 
response that significantly 
reduces the trauma associated 
with disclosing abuse 

189



~ 

ABOUT INVESTIGATION 

1JSs 
FACS 

Family and Children's 
Services Niagara 

Les Services a la famllle 
et a l'enfance de Niagara 

t 

0
, i<... Kristen French 

/f-/1~ '-- Child Advocacy 
~ (( (( x_ Centre Niagara 

~ES~fg 1 Centre Niagara 
Centre de 
counseling familial 

190



Children report being 
less scared 

Caregivers are more 
satisfied with procedure 
and investigation 

CACs refer more children for 
both mental health services 
and preventative and injury
related medical exams 

BENEFITS 

for Professionals & Community 

~ When working as investigation 
teams, professionals better 
understand each other's team 
roles, improve team results 
through case review & fewer 
children fall through the cracks 

~ At an estimated savings of 32%, 
CAC coordinated investigations 
are more cost-effective than non 
CAC run investigations 

191



SINCE 
OPENING 
IN 2008 ... 
• More than 3000 children & youth have 

found our safe place to disclose abuse 

• We have grown from hosting 50 to 
340 interviews per year 

• Children have come from every 
municipality in the Niagara region for 
investigation support 

192



e 

111• 

• 

~ family andCllllOrtnl fJL.& ltrYic., Nlag"' 

F: A •CS LuStrv1ces~11 1immt 
n t1~ 1'tnfancedtNli9illil 

COLLABORATION 

~ !:IS:~£ I Cent<e de 
Centre Niagara coun1ellng fam~•JI 

~ Nlag•l'll Chapter 
~-Native Women Inc. 

INTERAGENCY 
&COMMUNITY 

LEARNING 

FtgTiVAL 
hUML'i llM+.illtt '-' •ti 

OUTREACH 
TO YOUTH 

CHILD ABUSE 
AWARENESS, 
PREVENTION 
&RESPONSE 

193



I 1
-

::J 
0 >-

• 

• 

194



FUNDING 
We have no core funding from the Government. 

Our funding sources are based on the tireless fund raising 
by volunteers and staff and partner support. 

We receive/raise funds from three areas: 

Events/Campaigns/Planned Giving $162,544 

• 5 fundraising events (sponsors and participants) 
• 3rd party events 
· Campaigns: annual holiday campaign Kristen's Helpers 
• Donor: Individual. corporate donors. Planned giving partners 
· Miscellaneous funding sources (one time funders or unexpected support) 

0 Partner Support: = NRPS/FACS $125,000 

e Grants, Foundations, Service Clubs $123, 912 
(time-limited and program/project specific/ summer students) 

REVENUE SOURCES 

Events/campaigns/ planned giving 
Partner support:= NRPS/FACS 
Grants. Foundations. Service Clubs 

EXPENSES 

e Administration Operations 
Program 

195



BUT MOST 
PORTAN 

Report Child Abuse 

Family and Children's Services Niagara 
905.937.7731 or 1.888.937.7731 

Niagara Regional Police Service 
905.688.4111 

If you or someone you know is in 
immediate danger, CALL 911 

•• 

196



I 

---~•_ .. __ 
PORT COLBORNE 

City of Port Colborne 
Regular Meeting of Counci l 32-19 

Tuesday, November 12, 2019 
following Committee of the Whole Meeting 
Council Chambers, 3 rd Floor, 66 Charlotte Street 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order: Deputy Mayor Frank Danch 

2. Introduction of Addendum Items: 

3. Confirmation of Agenda: 

4. Disclosures of Interest: 

5. Adoption of Minutes: 
(a) Regular meeting of Council 31-19, held on October 28, 2019 

6. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

7. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion: 

8. Consideration of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

9. Proclamations: 
Nil. 

10. Minutes of Boards, Commissions & Committees: 
Nil. 

11. Consideration of By-laws: 

12. Council in Closed Session: 

(i) Motion to go into Closed Session 

That Council do now proceed into closed session in order to address the 
following matter(s): 

(a) Minutes of the Closed Session portion of the following Council meeting: 
September 23, 2019. 

(b) Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report 2019-171, 
concerning the potential disposition of City owned land, pursuant to the Municipal 

197



Council Agenda November 12, 2019 

Act, 2001, Subsection 239(2)(c) a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition 
of land by the municipality or local board. 

(ii) Disclosures of Interest (closed session agenda): 

(iii) Consideration of Closed Session Items: 

(iv) Motion to Rise With Report: 

13. Disclosures of Interest Arising From Closed Session: 

14. Report/Motions Arising From Closed Session: 

15. Adjournment: 

198



Council Agenda 

Notes 

WCS MB EB 

RB GB FD 

AD DK HW 

WCS MB EB 

RB GB FD 

AD DK HW 

WCS MB EB 

RB GB FD 

AD DK HW 

November 12, 2019 

Council Items: 

Item Description I Recommendation 

1. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 
Report 2019-161, Subject: Cannabis Production - Interim Control 
By-law 

That Council pass an Interim Control By-law, pursuant to Section 38 of 
the Planning Act, for a period of one year, prohibiting retail cannabis 
production on all properties in the City; and 

That the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary 
By-law to give effect to Council's decision; and that the Notice of 
Decision requi red by the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended, be 
processed by staff. 

2. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 
Report 2019-168, Subject: Land Sale on Lorraine Road 

That By-law 6706/70/19 Being A By-Law To Authorize Entering Into An 
Agreement Of Purchase And Sale be amended to remove Helen 
Lliodromitis. 

That the City enters into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale with 
Robert and Tanya Kriter for $230,000 plus HST. 

That the Mayor, Clerk and City Solicitor be authorized to sign and 
execute any and all documents respecting the sale of these lands. 

3. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 
Report 2019-173, Subject: Ministry of Environment, Conservation 
and Parks Response Regarding Safe Soil Levels of the CBRA 

That Planning and Development Department report 2019-173, Ministry 
of the Environment, Conservation and Parks Response Regarding 
Safe Soil Levels of the CBRA be received for information; and 

That the Director of Planning and Development discuss concerns 
about land use change burdens associated with requiring a RSC with 
Vale. 

199



Council Agenda November 12, 2019 

wcs MB EB 4. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 

RB FD 
Report2019-174, Subject: Condominium Exemption Request-57 

GB Minto Street 

AD DK HW That Council approves the request for exemption from draft plan of 
condominium for the development at 57 Minto Street. 

wcs MB EB 5. Engineering and Operations, Engineering Division, Report 2019-

RB GB FD 
172, Subject: Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain - Appointment of 
Engineer 

AD DK HW That the Council of the City of Port Colborne receives Report 2019-172 with 
respect to the Eagle Marsh Drain Engineer Appointment as information; and 

That Brandon Widner, P. Eng. of Spriet Associates Engineers & Architects 
be appointed under Section 8 of the Drainage Act, R.S.O. 1990 for the 
preparation of a new engineer's report under Section 78 of the Drainage Act, 
R.S.O. 1990, related to the Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain. 

wcs MB EB 6. Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-

RB GB FD 
1632 Subject: Audit Results for the ~ear ended December 31 2 2018 

AD DK HW 
That Council accept and approve the Audit Results report for the year 
ended December 31 , 2018. 

wcs MB EB 7. Corporate Services Department, Finance ·Division, Report 2019-
164, Subject: Approval of the 2018 Consolidated Financial 

RB GB FD Statements 

AD DK HW That Council approve the Consolidated Financial Statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2018. 

wcs MB EB 8. Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-

RB GB FD 
165, Subject: Development Charge Reserve Funds - 2018 Year-
end U~date 

AD DK HW That Council receives the attached Development Charge Statement for 
information. 

200



Council Agenda November 12, 2019 

wcs MB EB 9. Community and Economic Development Department, Parks and 

RB GB FD 
Recreation Division, Report 2019-158, Subject: Annual Lighted 
Santa Claus Parade - Road Closures 

AD DK HW 1. That the road closures necessary for the Annual Lighted Santa 
Claus Parade on Saturday, December 7, 2019, as outlined in 
Community and Economic Development, Report 2019-158, be 
approved; 

2. That the following roads be closed to general vehicular traffic and 
parking from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Saturday, December 7, 
2019, for the purpose of parade staging: 

• Fielden Avenue, from the southern limit of Killaly Street to the 
southern limit of Elgin Street; and 

• Elgin Street, from the western limit of Elm Street to the 
eastern limit of Steele Street; and 

• Fielden Avenue, at the western limit of Delhi Street. 

3. That the following roads be closed for vehicular parking from 4:00 
p.m. to 9:00 p.m. on Saturday, December 7, 2019, for the purpose 
of parade staging and to provide for a safe viewing area of the 
parade: 

• Clarence Street, from the western limit of Steele Street to the 
eastern limit of West Street; 

• West Street, from the northern limit of Clarence Street to the 
southern limit of Charlotte Street; and 

• Charlotte Street, from the western limit of Elm Street to the 
eastern limit of West Street. 

4. That the following road intersections be temporarily closed (by 
barricade) beginning at 6:30 p.m. until 9:00 p.m. on Saturday, 
December 7, 2019, to restrict through traffic onto the parade route: 

• North and west intersections of Steele Street and Elgin 
Street; 

• East intersection of Steele Street at Carter Street; 

• East intersection of Steele Street at Park Street; 

• East intersection of Steele Street at Tugboat Lane; 

• West and south intersections of Steel Street and Clarence 
Street; 

• North and south intersections of Fielden Avenue at Clarence 
Street; 

• North and south intersections of Elm Street at Clarence 
Street; 

201



Council Agenda November 12, 2019 

• North and south intersections of Catharine Street at Clarence 
Street; 

• North and south intersections of King Street at Clarence 
Street; 

• North and east intersections of West Street at Clarence 
Street; 

• South intersection of West Street at Charlotte Street; 
• North and south intersections of King Street at Charlotte 

Street; and 
• East and north intersections of Charlotte Street and 

Catharine Street. 

5. That emergency service vehicles, including ambulance, police and 
fire , as well as public works, public utility vehicles, and authorized 
permit vehicles be exempt from the above noted closures; 

6. That Public Works staff deliver traffic barricades before the event 
at the predetermined locations, restrict access to the appropriate 
parking stalls and deliver waste receptacles along the Parade 
route; 

7. That Public Works staff will block off all parking stalls along the 
parade route with pylons beginning at the time of the traffic and 
parking restrictions; 

8. That By-law Enforcement staff ticket and remove vehicles as 
necessary along the parade route during the time of the traffic and 
parking restrictions closures. 

Miscellaneous Correspondence 

WCS MB EB 10. Memorandum from Janice Peyton, Executive Assistant, DEO Re: 
Transit Advisory Committee - Community Bus Saturday Service 

RB GB FD ~P=il~ot~P;._;...;ro~g~r=a~m.;.__~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

AD DK HW That the Memorandum from Janice Peyton, Executive Assistant, DEO 
on behalf of the Transit Advisory Committee Re: Community Bus 
Saturday Service Pilot Program, be received for information; and 

That the Council of the City of Port Colborne be notified that the Port 
Colborne Transit Advisory Committee is in agreement with increasing 
the Port Colborne Community bus services through a pilot project 
coordinated with Welland Transit, to run on Saturdays for a six-hour 
block of time. The pilot project will be in place from May 2, 2020 to 
December 31 , 2020. 

202



Council Agenda November 12, 2019 

wcs MB EB 11 . Region of Niagara Re: Actions & Resources to Join the Coalit ion 

RB GB 
of Inclusive Munici~alities Re~ort CAO 14-2019 

FD 

AD DK HW 
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re: 
Actions & Resources to Join the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities 
Report CAO 14-2019, be received for information. 

wcs MB EB 12. Region of Niagara Re: Proposed Cuts to Legal Aid Ontario 

RB GB FD 
Budget 

AD DK HW 
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re: 
Proposed Cuts to Legal Aid Ontario Budget, be received for 
information. 

Outside Resolutions - Requests for Endorsement 

wcs MB EB 13. Town of Fort Erie Re: Port Colborne Quarry and the Aquifer 

RB GB FD 
through Fort Erie 

AD DK HW 
That the resolution received from the Town of Fort Erie Re: Port 
Colborne Quarry and the Aquifer through Fort Erie, be received for 
information. 

wcs MB EB 14. City of Niagara Falls Re: School Bus Camera Legislation 

RB GB FD That the resolution received from the City of Niagara Falls Re: School 

AD DK HW 
Bus Camera Legislation, be received for information. 

wcs MB EB 15. Town of Kingsville Re: Local Health Care Services 

RB GB FD That the resolution received from the Town of Kingsville Re: Local 

AD DK HW 
Health Care Services, be received for information. 

Responses to City of Port Colborne Resolutions 

Nil. 

203



Council Agenda 

By-law No. 

6732/96/19 

6733/97/19 

6734/98/19 

6735/99/19 

6736/100/19 

6737/101/19 

6738/102/19 

6739/103/19 

Consideration of By-laws 
(Council Agenda Item 11) 

.. 
Title 

November 12, 2019 

Being a By-law to Appoint an Interim Chief Administrative Officer for 
the City of Port Colborne (Peter Senese) 

Being a By-law to Establish Development Charges for the City of Port 
Col borne 

Being a By-law to Extend an Interim Control By-law for All Lands 
within the City of Port Colborne 

Being a By-law to Amend By-law 6706/70/19 Being a By-law to 
Authorize Entering Into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale with 
Helen Lliodromitis for the Sale of Part 2 on Plan 59R-10301 and with 
Paul and Kathleen Kuronen for the Sale of Part 6 on Plan 59R-10301 

Being a By-law to Authorize Entering Into an Agreement of Purchase 
and Sale with Robert and Tanya Kriter respecting Part 2 on Plan 59R-
10301 

Being a By-law to Authorize Entering Into an Engineering Agreement 
with Spriet Associates Engineers & Architects for the Eagle Marsh 
Municipal Drain 

Being a By-law to Temporarily Close Sections of Various Streets to 
Vehicular Traffic for the Purpose of the Annual Lighted Santa Claus 
Parade 

Being a By-law to Adopt, Ratify and Confirm the Proceedings of the 
Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne at its Regular 
Meeting of November 12, 2019 

204



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law No. 6732/96/19 

Being a By-law to Appoint an Interim Chief Administrative Officer 
for the City of Port Colborne (Peter Senese) 

Whereas section 229 of the Municipal Act, 2001 S.O. 2001 , Chapter 25, as 
amended, provides that a municipality may appoint a Chief Administrative Officer, who 
shall be responsible for, 

(a) exercising general control and management of the affairs of the municipality for 
the purpose of ensuring the efficient and effective operation of the municipality; 
and 

(b) performing such other duties as are assigned by the municipality; 

And Whereas on May 25, 2015, By-law 6245/71 /15 was enacted and passed and 
appointed Scott Luey as Chief Administrative Officer for the City of Port Colborne; 

And Whereas Scott Luey, Chief Administrative Officer will be absent for a period 
of time; 

And Whereas at its meeting of October 28, 2019 the Council of The Corporation 
of the City of Port Colborne is desirous of appointing an Interim Chief Administrative 
Officer for the City of Port Colborne. 

Now therefore the Counci l of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne Enacts 
as follows: 

1. That Peter Senese be and is hereby appointed as Interim Chief Administrative 
Officer and Deputy Treasurer for the City of Port Colborne. 

2. That the Mayor and proper officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed 
to enter into an employment contract with Peter Senese and to do all other things 
necessary to give effect to said appointment and to execute al l documents as 
may be necessary in that behalf. 

3. That this by-law shall be repealed on the date that the appointee ceases to be an 
employee of the City of Port Colborne. 

Enacted and passed this 12th day of November, 2019. 

Frank Danch 
Deputy Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

205



This page intentionally left blank . .. 

206



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-Law No. 6733/97/19 

Being a by-law to Establish Development Charges 
for the City of Port Colborne 

Whereas section 2(1) of the Development Charges Act, 1997 (hereinafter 

called "the Act") enables the Council of a municipality to pass by-laws for the 

imposition of development charges against land located in the municipality for 

increased capital costs required because of the need for services arising from 

development in the area to which the by-law applies; 

And Whereas the Council of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

(hereinafter called "the Council"), at its public meeting of August 26, 2019, 

approved a report dated July 24, 201 9 entitled "City of Port Colborne, 2019 
Development Charge Background Study", which report was prepared by Watson 

& Associates Economists Ltd.; 

And Whereas the Council has given Notice in accordance with Section 12 
of the Development Charges Act, 1997 of its development charge proposal and 

held a public meeting on August 26, 2019; 

And Whereas the Council has heard all persons who applied to be heard 
in objection to, or in support of, the development charge proposal at such public 

meeting; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
hereby enacts as follows: 

1. In this by-law, 

DEFINITIONS 

"Act" means the Development Charges Act, as amended, or any successor 

thereof; 

"accessory use" means where used to describe a use, building, or structure 

that the use, building or structure is naturally and normally incidental, 
subordinate in purpose of floor area or both, and exclusively devoted to a 

principal use, building or structure; 

"agricultural use" means use or intended use for bona fide farming 

purposes: 

a) including (but not limited to): 

i) cultivation of crops whether on open land or in greenhouses, 

including (but not limited to) fruit, vegetables, grains, field crops, sod 

trees, shrubs, flowers, and ornamental plants; 

ii) raising of animals, including (but not limited to) cattle, horses, 

pigs, poultry, livestock, fish; and 

207



iii) animal husbandry, dairying, equestrian activities, horticultural, 

fallowing, pasturing, and market gardening; 

b) but excluding: 

i) winery activities; 

ii) retail sales activities; and 

iii) marijuana facilities. 

"apartment unit" means any residential unit within a building containing 

three or more dwelling units where access to each residential unit is 

obtained through a common entrance or entrances from the street level and 
the residentia l units are connected by an interior corridor, and includes a 

stacked townhouse; 

"back-to-back townhouse dwelling" means a building containing more than 

two dwell ing units separated vertically by a common wall, including a rear 

common wall, that do not have rear yards; 

"bedroom" means a habitable room larger than seven square metres, 

including a den, study or other similar area, but does not include a 
bathroom, living room, dining room or kitchen; 

"benefiting area" means an area defined by map, plan or legal description 

in a front-ending agreement as an area that will receive a benefit from the 

construction of a service; 

"board of education" has the same meaning as set out in the Education Act, 
R.S.O. 1990, Chap. E.2, as amended, or any successor thereof; 

"Building Code Act" means the Building Code Act, S.O. 1992, as amended, 

or any successor thereof; 

"capital cost" means costs incurred or proposed to be incurred by the City 

or a local board thereof directly or by others on behalf of and as authorized 

by the City or local board; 

(1) to acquire land or an interest in land, including a leasehold interest, 

(2) to improve land, 

(3) to acquire, lease, construct or improve buildings and structures, 

(4) to acquire, construct or improve facilities including: 

(1) furniture and equipment other than computer 

equipment; and 

(2) material acquired for circulation, reference or 
information purposes by a library board as defined in the 

Public Libraries Act, R.S.O. 1990, Chap. P.44, as amended, 

or any successor thereof; and 

208



(3) rolling stock with an estimated useful life of seven years 
or more; and 

(5) to undertake studies in connection with any matter under the Act and 

any of the matters in clauses (1) to (4) above, including the development 

charge background study required for the provision of services 
designated in this by-law within or outside the City, including interest on 
borrowing for those expenditures under clauses (1) to (4) above that are 

growth related; 

"City" means the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne; 

"commercial" means any use of land, structures or buildings for the 

purposes of buying or selling commodities and services, but does not 

include industrial or agricultural uses, and does not include hotels, motels, 
motor inns and boarding, lodging and rooming houses; 

"Council" means the Council of the City; 

"development" means the construction, erection or placing of one or more 
buildings or structures on land or the making of an addition or alteration to 

a building or structure that has the effect of increasing the size of usability 
thereof, and includes redevelopment; 

"development charge" means a charge imposed with respect to this by-law; 

"dwelling unit" means any part of a building or structure used, designed or 

intended to be used as a domestic establishment in which one or more 
persons may sleep and are provided with culinary and sanitary facilities for 

their exclusive use; 

"existing" means the number, use and size that existed as of the date this 
by-law passed; 

"farm building" means that part of a bona fide farming operation 

encompassing barns, silos and other ancillary development to an 

agricultural use, but excluding a residential use; 

"gross floor area" means: 

(1) in the case of a residential building or structure, the total area of all 
floors above grade of a dwelling unit measured between the outside 

surfaces of exterior walls or between the outside surfaces of exterior 

walls and the centre line of part walls dividing the dwelling unit from any 

other dwelling unit or other portion of a bui lding; and 

(2) in the case of a non-residential building or structure, or in the case of 

a mixed-use building or structure in respect of the non-residential portion 
thereof, the total area of all building floors above or below grade 

measured between the outside surfaces of the exterior walls, or between 

the outside surfaces of exterior walls and the centre line of party walls 

dividing a non-residential use and a residential use, except for: 

.I 

209



(1) a room or enclosed area within the building or structure 

above or below that is used exclusively for the 

accommodation of heating, cooling, ventilating, electrical, 

mechanical or telecommunications equipment that service the 
building; 

(2) loading facilities above or below grade; and 

(3) a part of the building or structure below grade that is 

used for the parking or motor vehicles or for storage and other 

accessory use; 

"industrial" means lands, buildings or structures used or designed or 

intended for use for manufacturing, processing, fabricating or assembly or 

raw goods, warehousing or bulk storage of goods, and includes office uses 

and the sale of commodities to the general public where such uses are 

accessory to an industrial use, but does not include the sale of commodities 

to the general public through a warehouse club; 

Infill Housing - Construction of a residential dwelling on a vacant lot or a 

new lot created between two existing residential dwellings and located 

within the Urban Area Boundary. II 

"institutional" means land, buildings, structures or any part thereof used by 

any organization, group or association for promotion of charitable, 

educational or benevolent objectives and not for profit or gain; 

"Local Board" means a school board, public utility, commission, 

transportation commission, public library board , board of park management, 

local board of health, board of commissioners of police, planning board, or 

any other board, commission, committee, body or local authority 

established or exercising any power or authority under any general or 

special Act with respect to any of the affairs or purposes, including school 

purposes, of the City of Port Colborne or any part of parts thereof; 

"local services" means those services, facilities or things which are under 

the jurisdiction of the City and are related to a plan of subdivision or within 

the area to which the plan relates in respect of the lands under Sections 41, 

51 or 53 of the Planning Act, R.S .O. 1990, Chap. P.13, as amended, or any 

successor thereof; 

"marijuana facilities" means a building used, designed or intended for 

growth, producing, testing, destroying, storing or distribution, excluding 

retail sales, of medical marijuana or cannabis authorized by a license issued 

by the federal Minister of Health pursuant to section 25 of the Marihuana for 

Medical Purposes Regulations, SOR/2013-119, under the Controlled Drugs 

and Substances Act, S.C. 1996, c.19; 

"multiple dwellings" means all dwellings other than single-detached, semi

detached and apartment unit dwellings; 

"non-residential use" means a building or structure of any kind whatsoever 

used, designed or intended to be used for other than a residential use; 

210



"Official Plan" means the Official Plan adopted for the City, as amended and 
approved; 

"owner" means the owner of land or a person who has made application for 

an approval for the development of land upon which a development charge 
is imposed; 

"place of worship" means that part of a building or structure that is exempt 
from taxation as a place of worship under the Assessment Act, R.S.O. 1990, 
Chap. A.31, as amended, or any successor thereof; 

"rate" means the interest rate established weekly by the Bank of Canada 
based on Treasury Bills having a term of 91 days; 

"regulation" means any regulation made pursuant to the Act; 

"residential dwelling" means a building, occupied or capable of being 

occupied as a home, residence or sleeping place by one or more persons, 
containing one or more dwelling units but not including motels, hotels, tents, 

truck campers, tourist trailers, mobile camper trailers or boarding, lodging 
or rooming houses; 

"residential use" means the use of a building or structure or portion thereof 

for one or more dwelling units. This also includes a dwelling unit on land 
that is used for an agricultural use; 

"row dwelling" means a building containing three or more attached dwelling 

units in a single row, each of which dwelling unit has an independent 
entrance from the outside and is vertically separated from any abutting 
dwelling unit; 

"semi-detached dwelling" means a dwelling unit in a residential building 

consisting of two dwelling units having one vertical wall or one horizontal 

wall, but not other parts, attached or another dwelling unit where the 
residential units are not connected by an interior corridor; 

"service" means a service designated in Schedule "A" to this by-law, and 
"services" shall have a corresponding meaning; 

"servicing agreement" means an agreement between a landowner and the 

City relative to the provision of municipal service to specified land within the 
City; 

"single detached dwell ing unit" means a residential building consisting of 
one dwelling unit and not attached to another structure; 

"special care facilities" means lands, buildings or structures used or 

designed or intended for uses for the purpose of providing supervision, 

nursing care or medical treatment, which do not comprise dwelling units, 

that are licensed, approved or supervised under any special or general 

statute, and excludes the special care/special dwelling portions of the 
building 

211



"special care/special dwelling" means a residential portion of special care 

faci lities containing rooms or suites of rooms designed or intended to be 

used for sleeping and living accommodation that have a common entrance 

from street level: 

i. Where the occupants have the right to use in common, halls, stairs, 
yards, common rooms and accessory buildings; 

ii. Which may or may not have exclusive sanitary and/or culinary 
faci lities; 

iii. That is designed to accommodate persons with specific needs, 

including, but not limited to, independent permanent living 

arrangements; and 

iv. Where support services such as meal preparation, grocery shopping, 

laundry, housekeeping, nursing, respite care and attendant services 

may be provided at various levels. 

"Stacked townhouse dwelling" means a building containing two or more 

dwelling units where each dwelling unit is separated horizontal ly and/or 

vertically from another dwell ing unit by a common wall or floor. 

2. DESIGNATION OF SERVICES 

2.1 The categories of services for which development charges are imposed 

under this by-law are as follows: 

(1) Services Related to a Highway; 

(2) Fire Protection Services; 

(3) Indoor Recreation Services; 

(4) Outdoor Recreation Services; 

(5) Library Services; 

(6) Engineering Studies; 

(7) Community Based Studies 

(8) Wastewater Services; and 

(9) Water Services. 

2.2 The co mponents of the services designated in Section 2.1 are described in 

Schedule A. 

3. APPLICATION OF BY-LAW RULES 

3.1 Development charges shall be payable in the amounts set out in this by-law 

where: 

(1) the lands are located in the area described in Section 3.2; and 

I 
I 

r 
I 
I 

212



(2) the development of the lands requires any of the approvals set out in 

Subsection 3.4(1 ). 

Area to Which By-law Applies 

1.2 Subject to Section 3.3, this by-law applies to all lands in the City of Port 

Colborne whether or not the land or use thereof is exempt from taxation 
under s.13 or the Assessment Act. 

3.3 Notwithstanding Clause 3.2 above, this by-law shall not apply to lands that 

are owned by and used for the purposes of: 

(1) the City or a local board thereof; 

(2) a board of education; or 

(3) the Corporation of the Region of Niagara or a local board thereof. 

Approvals for Development 

3.4 (1) Development charges shall be imposed on all lands, buildings or 

structures that are developed for residential or non-residential uses if the 
development requires: 

(1) the passing of a zoning by-law or of an amendment to a 
zoning by-law under Section 34 of the Planning Act; 

(2) the approval of a minor variance under Section 45 of the 
Planning · Act; 

(3) a conveyance of land to which a by-law passed under 
subsection 50(7) of the Planning Act applies; 

(4) the approval of a plan of subdivision under Section 51 of the 

Planning Act; 

(5) a consent under Section 53 of the Planning Act; 

(6) the approval of a description under Section 50 of the 

Condominium Act, R.S.O. 1990, Chap. C.26, as amended, or 
any successor thereof; or 

(7) the issuing of a permit under the Building Code Act in relation 
to a building or structure. 

(2) No more than one development charge for each service designated in 

Subsection 2.1 shall be imposed upon any lands, buildings or structure 
to which this by-law applies even though two or more of the actions 

described in Subsection 3.4(1) are required before the lands, buildings 
or structures can be developed. 

(3) Despite Subsection 3.4(2), if two or more of the actions described in 

Subsection 3.4(1) occur at different times, additional development charges 
shall be imposed if the subsequent action has the effect of increasing the 
need for services. 

213



Exemptions 

3.5 Notwithstanding the provisions of this by-law, development charges shal l 

not be imposed with respect to: 

(1) an enlargement to an existing dwelling unit; 

(2) one or two additional dwelling units in an existing single 

detached dwelling; or 

(3) one additional dwelling unit in any other existing residential 

building. 

3.6 Notwithstanding Section 3.5(2), development charges shall be imposed if 

the total gross floor area of the additional one or two units exceeds the gross 

floor area of the existing dwelling unit. 

3. 7 Notwithstanding Section 3.5, development charges shall be imposed if the 

additional unit has a gross floor area greater than: 

(1) in the case of a semi-detached or row dwelling, the gross floor 

area of the existing dwelling unit; and 

(2) in the case of any other residential building, the gross floor 

area of the smallest dwelling unit contained in the residentia l 

building. 

3.8 Exemption for Industrial Development: 

3.8.1 Notwithstanding any other provision of this by-law, no development charge 

is payable with respect to an enlargement of the gross floor area of an 

existing industrial building where the gross floor area is enlarged by 50 

percent or less. 

3.8.2 If a development includes the enlargement of the gross floor area of an 

existing industrial building, the amount of the development charge that is 

payable in respect of the enlargement is determined in accordance with the 

following: 

(i) Subject to subsection 3.8.2 (iii), if the gross floor area is 

enlarged by 50 per cent or less of the lesser of: 

(A) the gross floor area of the existing industrial building, 

or 

(B) the gross floor area of the existing industrial building 

before the first enlargement for which: 

(i) an exemption from the payment of development 

charges was granted, or 

(ii) a lesser development charge than would otherwise be 

payable under this by-law, or predecessor thereof, was 

paid, pursuant to Section 4 of the Act and this subsection, 

214



the amount of the development charge in respect of the 

enlargement is zero; 

(ii) Subject to subsection 3.8.2 (iii), if the gross floor area is 

enlarged by more than 50 per cent or less of the lesser of: 

(A) the gross floor area of the existing industrial building, 

or 

(B) the gross floor area of the existing industrial building 
before the first enlargement for which: 

(i) an exemption from the payment of development 
charges was granted, or 

(ii) a lesser development charge than would otherwise be 
payable under this by-law, or predecessor thereof, was 

paid, pursuant to Section 4 of the Act and this subsection, 

the amount of the development charge in respect of the 

enlargement is the amount of the development charge that 

would otherwise be payable multiplied by the fraction 
determined as follows: 

(A) determine the amount by which the enlargement exceeds 

50 per cent of the gross floor area before the first 

enlargement, and 

(B) divide the amount determined under subsection (A) by the 

amount of the enlargement 

(iii) For the purposes of calculating the extent to which the gross 

floor area of an existing industrial building is enlarged in subsection 

3.8.2 (ii), the cumulative gross floor area of any previous enlargements 

for which: 

(A) An exemption from the payment of development 

charges was granted, or 

(B) A lesser development charge than would otherwise be 

payable under this by-law, or predecessor thereof, was 

paid pursuant to Section 4 of the Act and this 

subsection, shall be added to the calculation of the 
gross floor area of the proposed enlargement. 

(iv) For the purposes of this subsection, the enlargement must not 

be attached to the existing industrial building by means only of a 

tunnel. bridge, passageway, canopy, shared below grade connection, 

such as a service tunnel, foundation, footing or parking facility. 

3.9 For the purpose of Section 3.8 herein, "existing industrial building" is used 

as defined in the Regulation made pursuant to the Act. 

3.10 Other Exemptions: 

215



Notwithstanding the provision of this by-law, development charges shall not be 

imposed with respect to: 

(1) Non-residential farm buildings for the purpose of an agricultural use except 

for any building constructed to accommodate an On-Farm Business which shall 

be considered to be an industrial building; 

(2) Downtown core area is exempt from payment of development charges; 

(3) Industrial development shall be exempt from payment of development 

charges on any square footage of gross f loor area constructed over 5,000 

square feet; 

( 4) Partial exemption requiring the payment of only the roads and fire protection 

components of the charge for all residentia l unit types constructed within the 

Sherkston Secondary Plan Area; 

(5) Exemption of 100% of the payable development charges for development 
on Brownfield properties under the City of Port Colborne Brownfield Community 
Improvement Plan, which have an approved Application and Agreement under 

the Brownfield Rehabilitation Grant Program; and 

(6) Partial exemption for certain Community Improvement Plan areas based 

upon specific policies approved by Council. 

Amount of Charges 

Residential 

3.11 a) The development charges set out in Schedules B-1 and B-2 shall be 
imposed on residential uses of lands, build ings or structures, including a 

dwelling unit accessory to a non-residential use and, in the case of a mixed 

use building o r structure, on the residential uses in the mixed use building 
or structure, according to the type of residential unit, and calculated with 

respect to each of the services according to the type of residential use. 

All 

b) In regard to Schedules B-1 and B-2, the fo llowing percentage of each 

service for residential uses, shal l be imposed for the following periods: 

Year1 Year2 Year 3 
0esidential October 7, 2019 October 7, 2020 October 7, 2021 

Year4 

October 7, 2022 
-October 6, 

2023 

Year 5 

October 7, 
2023-Services -October 6, -October 6, 

2020 2021 

20% 40% 

-October6, 

2022 

60% 80% 

October 6, 
2024 

100% 

216



c) In regard to Schedules B-1 and B-2, the following percentage of each 
service for multiple dwellings use, shall be imposed for the following 
periods: 

All Year 1 Year 2 

I ·esidential October 7, 2019 - October 7, 2020-

Services October 6, 2020 October 6, 2021 

Year3 

October 7, 2021 -

October 6, 2022 

Year4 

October 7, 2022 -

October 6, 2023 

Year5 

October 7, 
2023-

October6, 

2024 

0% 0% 0% 50% 

Non-Residential 

3.12 a) The development charges described in Schedules B-1 and B-2 to this by

law shall be imposed on non-residential uses of lands, buildings or 

structures, and, in the case of a mixed use building or structure, on the 

non-residential uses in the mixed use building or structure, and 

calculated with respect to each of the services according to the total floor 

area of the non-residential use. 

All Non-

b) In regard to Schedules B-1 and B-2, the following percentage of each 

service for non-residential uses, shall be imposed for the following 
periods: 

Year 1 Year 2 Year3 Year4 

100% 

Year 5 

~esidential October 7, 2019 - October 7, 2020- October 7, 2021 - October 7, 2022 - October 7, 

Services October 6, 2020 October 6, 2021 October 6, 2022 October 6, 2023 2023-

October6, 

2024 

0% 0% 0% 50% 100% 

Reduction of Development Charges for Redevelopment 

3.13 Despite any other provisions of this by-law, where, as a result of the 

redevelopment of land, a building or structure existing on the same land 
within 12 months prior to the date of payment of development charges in 

regard to such redevelopment was, or is to be demolished, in whole or in 

part, or converted from one principal use to another principal use on the 

same land, in order to facilitate the redevelopment, the development 
charges otherwise payable with respect to such redevelopment shall be 

reduced by the following amounts: 

(1 )in the case of a residential building or structure, or in the case of a 

mixed-use building or structure, the residential uses in the mixed-use 

building or structure, an amount calculated by multiplying the applicable 

development charge under Subsection 3.11 by the number, according 

to type, of dwelling units that have been demolished or will be 

demolished or converted to another principal use; and 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

217



(2)in the case of a non-residential building or structure or, in the case of 

mixed-use building or structure, the non-residential uses in the mixed 

use building or structure, an amount calculated by multiplying the 

applicable development charges under Subsection 3.12, by the gross 

floor area that has been or wil l be demolished or converted to another 

principal use; provided that such amounts shall not exceed, in total, the 
amount of the development charges otherwise payable with respect to 

the redevelopment. 

Timing of Payment of Development Charges 

3.14 Development charges imposed under this by-law are calculated, payable, 

and collected upon issuance of a building permit with respect to each 

dwelling unit, building or structure. 

3.15 Despite Section 3.14, Council from time to time, and at any time, may enter 

into agreements providing for all or any part of a development charge to be 

paid before or after it would otherwise be payable, in accordance with 

Section 27 of the Act. 

4. PAYMENT BY SERVICES 

4.1 Despite the payment required under Subsections 3.11 and 3.12, Council 
may, by agreement, give a credit towards a development charge in 

exchange for work that relates to a service to which a development cha rge 

relates under this by-law 

5. INDEXING 

5.1 Development charges imposed pursuant to this by-law shall be adjusted 
annually, without amendment to this by-law, on the anniversary date of the 

by-law, in accordance with the prescribed index in the Act. 

6. SCHEDULES 

6.1 The following schedules sha ll form part of this by-law: 

Schedule A -

Schedule 81 -

Schedule 82 -

Schedule C1 -

Schedule C2 -

Schedule C3 -

Plan 

7. CONFLICTS 

Components of Services Designated in Section 2.1 

Schedule of Development Charges - Hard Services 

Schedule of Development Charges - Soft Services 

Map of East Waterfront Community Plan 

Map of Downtown Community Improvement Plan 

Map of Olde Humberstone Community Improvement 

7.1 Where the City and an owner or former owner have entered into an 
agreement with respect to land within the area to which this by-law applies, 

and a conflict exists between the provisions of this by-law and such 

218



agreement, the provisions of the agreement shall prevail to the extent that 

there is a conflict. 

7 .2 Notwithstanding Section 7 .1, where a development which is the subject of 

an agreement to which Section 7.1 applies, is subsequently the subject of 

one or more of the actions described in Subsection 3.4(1), an additional 

development charge in respect of the development permitted by the action 
shall be calculated, payable and collected in accordance with the provisions 

of this by-law if the development has the effect of increasing the need for 

services, unless such agreement provides otherwise. 

8. SEVERABILITY 

8.1 If, for any reason, any provision of this by-law is held to be invalid, it is 

hereby declared to be the intention of Council that all of the remainder of 

this by-law shall continue in full force and effect until repealed, re-enacted, 

amended or modified. 

9. DATE BY-LAW IN FORCE 

9.1 This by-law shall come into effect at 12:01 AM on November 13, 2019 

10. DATE BY-LAW EXPIRES 

10.1 This by-law shall expire at 12:01 AM on November 13, 2024 unless it is 

repealed by Council at an earl ier date. 

11 . EXISTING BY-LAW REPEALED 

11 .1 By-law No. 6131/97/14 is hereby repealed as of the date and time of this 

by-law coming into effect. 

12. SHORT TITLE 

This by-law may be cited as the "Port Colborne City-wide Development 

Charge Bylaw." 

Enacted and Passed this 12th day of November, 2019. 

Frank Danch 
Deputy Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
CITY CLERK 

219



BY-LAW NUMBER 6733/97/19 

SCHEDULE "A" 

DESIGNATED MUNICIPAL SERVICE UNDER THIS BY-LAW 

City-wide Services (Soft) 

1. Community Based Studies 

2. Outdoor Recreation Services 

3. Indoor Recreation Services 

4. Library Services 

City-wide Services (Hard) 

1. Engineering Studies 

2. Fire Protection Services 

3. Services Related to a Highway 

Urban Area Services 

1. Wastewater Services 

2. Water Services 

220



SCHEDULE "81" 

TO BY-LAW NO. 6733/97/19 OF CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT CHARGES - HARD SERVICES 

City-Wide Services: 

Services Related to a Highway 2,160 1,595 1,557 952 862 1.10 

Fire Protection Services 155 114 11 2 68 62 0.08 

Engineering Related Studies 267 197 192 118 107 0.13 

Total City-Wide Services 
~ --~~ 2,582 

~ 

1,906 ··~ 1,861 ~1 

1,138 ~-..... 1,031 
-----~,..:...: 

1.31 ,, -
Urban Services 

Wastewater Services 1,593 1,176 1, 149 702 636 0.76 

Water Services 3,688 2,723 2,659 1,626 1,472 1.75 

Total Urban Services 
~:!""'"'••--T~~-~ ' 5,281.' 

·~ 

3,899 - 3,808 - 2,328 2,108 
~-..-...-

2.51 -
~- --- --- --

GRAND TOTAL CITY-WIDE 2,582 1,906 1,861 1,138 1,031 1.31 

- ' 
GRAND TOTAL CITY-WIDE+ URBAN SERVICES 7,863'' ·- 5,805 5,669 3,466 3,139 -

,. 3.82 

221



SCHEDULE "82" 

TO BY-LAW NO. 6733/97/19 OF CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT CHARGES - SOFT SERVICES 

City-Wide Servi ces: 

Outdoor Recreation Ser\1ces 305 225 220 134 122 0.02 

Indoor Recreation Ser\1ces 2,999 2,214 2,162 1,322 1, 197 0.21 

Library Ser\1ces 163 120 118 72 65 0.01 

Community Based Studies 89 66 64 39 36 0.04 

Total City-Wide Services 
~- ~ ~~ 

3,556 
~· 

2,625 - 2,564 1,567 
~ 

1,420 
~ 

0.28 

222



SCHEDULE "C1 II 

MAP OF EAST WATERFRONT COMMUNITY PLAN 

Ea<>t \Va(crfront 
Community 
lmpro,'<:mc.ut Plan 
ProJcxl Are;.\ 

• I 

223



c1 11 
--1. 1 

- 1 ; I r 

-· l I . IL 

SCHEDULE "C2" 

MAP OF DOWNTOWN COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

Propo;;d C:BD CIP PROJECT AREA 

224



CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 

Olrle Humberstone Community Improvement Plan 
Streetscape Master Plan 
~«rlOO& 

0 
llOml 

LAND .'ll 
_.., 

Solt 1;16) ----. . " " -

s:: 
)> 
""O 

0 ,, 
0 
r 
0 
m 
I 
c (J) s:: 0 co I m m :::a 0 (J) c -I r 0 m z 

0 m 
0 ~ 
0 
s:: 
s:: 
c 
z 
-I 
-< 
""O 
r 
)> 
z 

225



This page intentionally left blank. 

226



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law No. 6734/98/19 

. Being a by-law to extend an Interim Control by-law for all 
lands within the City of Port Colborne 

Whereas Section 38 of the Planning Act, R. S. 0. 1990, c. P .13, as amended, 
authorizes Council to adopt an Interim Control By-law, provided Council has by 
resolution directed that a review or study be undertaken of land use planning policies; 
and 

Whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne passed 
By-law 6629/84/18 on November 26, 2018 directing that a review be undertaken in 
respect of the Official Plan policy, Zoning By-law standards, and implementation 
procedures as they relate to cannabis production facilities within the City of Port 
Colborne and to report back to Council with recommendations with respect to an 
Interim Control By-law; and 

Whereas the Council of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne considers 
it necessary to extend the Interim Control By-law 6629/84/18 for 1 year with respect to 
the lands described in Section 1 of this By-law, and only as it applies to the use of land, 
premises, or partial use of premises, for either of the uses described in Section 2 a) of 
this By-law, to allow it time to consider its land use planning policies as directed; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
enacts as follows: 

1. This Interim Control By-law applies to all lands zoned in Zoning By-law 
6575/30/18 of The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne to prohibit the use 
of land, premises, or partial use of premises within such lands, for the use as 
described in Section 2 a) of this by-law. 

2. The following use is prohibited under this by-law: 

a) a facil ity or land for the growing of cannabis. 

3. In this by-law, the following definitions apply: 

a) "Cannabis": means a cannabis plant, including the phytocannabinoids 
produce by or found in such a plant regardless of whether that part has 
been processed or not and any substance or mixture of substances that 
contains or has on it and part of such a plant and any substance that is 
identical to a phytocannabinoid produced by or found in such a plant 
regardless of how the substance was obtained. Marihuana shall have 
the same definition; 

b) "Cannabis Production Facility": means the use of land, buildings or 
structures for the cultivation, processing , packaging and shipping of 
cannabis. 

4. This by-law shall be in effect for a period of one year from the date of passage 
hereof. 

Enacted and passed this 12th day of November, 2019. 

Frank Danch 
Deputy Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

227



This page intentionally le~ blank. 

228



I 
I 

I 
II 

!1 

11 

The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law no. 6735/99/19 

Being a By-law to Amend By-law No. 6706/70/19, Being a By
law to Authorize Entering Into an Agreement of Purchase and 

Sale with Helen Lliodromitis for the Sale of Part 2 on Plan 59R-
10301 and with Paul and Kathleen Kuronen for the sale of 

Part 6 on Plan 59R-10301 

Whereas at its meeting of November 12, 2019 Council approved the 
recommendations of Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 
Report 2019-168, Subject: Land Sale on Lorraine Road; and 

Whereas By-Law No. 6706/70/19 passed on July 22, 2019 requires to be 
amended, as the purchaser Helen Lliodromitis has terminated the Agreement of 
Purchase and Sale with the City of Port Colborne. 

Now therefore the Council of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
enacts as follows: 

1. That By-law No. 6706/70/19, A By-law which Authorizes Entering Into an 
Agreement of Purchase and Sale with Helen Lliodromitis for the sale of Part 
2 on Plan 59R-10301 and with Paul and Kathleen Kuronen for the sale of 
Part 6 on Plan 59R-1 0301 (WIS Lorraine Road), be amended to remove the 
Agreement of Purchase and Sale with Helen Lliodromitis for the sale of Part 
2 on Plan 59R-10301. 

Enacted and passed this 12th day of November, 2019. 

Frank Danch 
Deputy Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

229



This page intentionally le~ blank. 

230



I 
I, 

I 
l 
I 

11 

The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law No. 6736/100/19 

Being a By-law to Authorize Entering Into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale 
with Robert and Tanya Kriter Respecting Part 2 on Plan 59R-10301 

Whereas at its meeting of November 12, 2019, Council approved the 
recommendations of Department of Planning & Development, Report No. 2019-
168, Subject: Land Sale on Lorraine Road; and 

Whereas Council is desirous of entering into an Agreement of Purchase and 
Sale with Robert and Tanya Kriter for the sale of Part 2 on Plan 59R-10301, for the 
purchase price of $230,000 (plus HST); 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne Enacts as 
follows: 

1. That The Corporation of the City of Port Colbome enter into an Agreement 
of Purchase and Sale with Robert and Tanya Kriterforthe sale of Part 2 on 
Plan 59R-1 0301 for the purchase price of $230,000 (plus HST), which 
agreement is attached hereto as Schedule "A". 

2. That the Mayor and the Clerk be and each of them is hereby authorized and 
directed to sign said agreement, together with any documents necessary to 
complete the conditions of said agreement, and the Clerk is hereby 
authorized to affix the Corporate Seal thereto. 

3. That the City Solicitor be and is hereby directed to prepare and register all 
such documents in the proper Land Registry Office as may be required to 
give full force and effect to this By-law. 

Enacted and passed this 12th day of November, 2019. 

Frank Danch 
Deputy Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

231



~CA Ontario Real Estate 
~Association 

Form 500 

Agreement of Purchase and Sale 
Commercial 

for use in the Province of Optorio 

This Agreement of Purchase and Sole doled this)./? ......................... day of .A..~~g~!~L ...... ................. ..... ,.; .. , .... ....... .-................. ., 20J~ ...... ......... . 

· . ROBERT KRITER AND TANYA KRITER BUYER .................... ..... .. ..... ... .......... .............. .......... ._ ............ , ............................ ......................... ........... .................... ., agrees to purchase from 
(full legal names of all Buyers) 

· · . CITY OF PORT COLBORNE . SELLER . ........... · ............................................. ............. , ....................................................................................... .................... ..... , the following 
(full legol names of all Sellers! 

REAL PROPERTY: 

Addre~s W./~J:Q~RA.It'.f~.R!?.~4 ................... , .. , ........... ................................ .................. .......... ... ._ ........ c .. ..... . _. ......................... ........ ........... . 

fronting 9n 'Ihe .W.,~.~-~ ....... ,, .. _. .......... .... : .. : ... :.-······ .. , .................. .. :········· ....... , .... , ..... side of .1,9J~J9.\lli§.@ ... ,.: ........................................ ... . 

in the .Grrx:,QF.., ................................ f.!?11.GRJ.~gm~ .. .............. .................................. , ....................... ............................................. .. ...... ...... . 

and havin~ a frontage oF ."~.9.P.!'.J: ............... ,. ... ................. .................. more or less by o depth of J~.4.1.f~ ........................................ more or l e~s 

and legally des_cribed a~ .:rMT..~l~~ .. ~.~~:J.9.~.Q.t ..... ... _.._. .. ._ .......................... :······ .. :·.-...... .. ·._. .. _. ...... _. ....... _. .............. , .. ................................. . 

.. . . . . . ' .. :-. ...... : ....... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · /l~g~i' ;i·~;~ripii~~· ~F ·1~~d · i~~-,~·di~9· ~-~;~~~~;; ·~~t d~;·~;;·i;~·d'~·,;~.;.;h~;~j · · · · · ·' ·· · · ·· · · · · · · ·' · · · ·' · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · (the "property") 

PURCHASE PRJCE: Dollars (CDN$) .~W. .. 9.QQ ... Q.Q ........................................ , ......... . 

.T.»;!?.Ji4IT~~4.Th.i.J1Y.,.T.~.9.'!.~.?.l}~L ............................................................................. , ....... ,, .......... ,, ................... : ...... : .......... ........... Dollars 

DEPOSIT: Buyer submits .Y.P.9.~~.~~~~P.~.~.l}~~········· · ······ · ················· ·········· · ·· ··················' ········ ················ ··············· ········· ·····' ········ · ····· ······ ········ · · • (Herewith/Upon ~cceplol')ce/os olhmyise described in this ~gr•'!l"•ntl 

.Ihf.~:~J.~9.~~!':~~·······.·················· · ··············· · · · ······ · ······································ Dollars (CON$) .~,9.9.Q:9.9 .... ;.: ..... , .... ....................................... : 

by negoflable chegue payable to .. . RQY.Ab .. ~g~A-_Q~.NRQlWA.b.IT ......................................... , ................................... "Deposit Holder" 
to .be h_eld in trust pendirig compl<Jtion or ot]ler termination of ihis Agreement ~.nd t? be credited toward th.e Pyq;:ha_se Pricf) o.n completion. fgr the purpo_se_s 
of this Agre_ement, "Upc;m Acceptance" shall mean that the Buyer Is re_quire9 t<;> deliver the deposit lo the Deposit H9lder within 24 hours of thF;! accep'tance 
of this Agreement. The parties to this Agreement hereby ackna...:iiedge that! unless otherwise provided For in this Agreement, the Deposit Holder shcill pl~ce 
the d_ep_osit in trust in the Deposil Holder's n.<;m-interest bepril'!g Real Est9te Trust Ac~ount and no interest shall pe earned, received or paid 9n the deposit. 

Buyer agrees to pay the balance as more particularly set out in Schedule A attached. 

SCHEDULE{S) A ........ .... .......... ........................ ............ ........... : .......... , ......... ..... .............. attached ~ei:eto form(s) part of this Agreement. 

1. IRREVOCABILITY: This offer shall be irrevocable by .;?..~Y.~L ................................................... ..................... until §;9.9. .......... P.:~~: ..... on 
· (Se!ler/Bvyerl (a.m./p.m.) 

the .~~ .... ..... .. ......... day of .Q~~.9.~~! ............................................................ , ........... , 20.J~ ............... , after which time, ii not accepted, this 
offer shall be null and void and the deposit shall be returned to ihe Buyer in 'full without interest. 

2. COMPLETION DATE: This Agreement shall be completed by no later than 6:00 p.m. on the .~~ ................ ..... day of .f..~E.~.~.i:Y. ................... . 

...................... .. ............. ..................... , 20.~R .......................... Upon completion, vacant possession of the property shall be given to the Buyer 
unless olherwise provided for In this Agreement. 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S): ~ 
ITT The ~ademark.s REALTOR®, REALTORS®, MLS®, Mulliple Listing Services® and associated l09os ore ownod or conlrolled by LJ3 The Canadian Real E>tote A5Soclotion (CREAi and identify the real eslale profe5'ionals who are members of CREA and the 
........ quality of services th_ey provide. u.ed under &cense. 
C 2019, Ontario Real Estele AlSociation t•oREA"}. All rig_h ts remved. This form was developed by OREA f9r tho u•e and reproduclion 
by its membe" and licensee> only. Any other use or reproduction Is prohibited except with prior wnHen consent of OREA. Do not alter 
when printing or reproducing the standard pre-•el portion. OREA bears no liability tor your U•o of this form. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS{S): ~ 

Form 500 Revised 20 19 Page 1 of 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

232



3. NOTICES: The Seller hereby appoints the Listing Brokerage os ogent for the Seller for the purpose of giving ond receiving notices pursuant to this 
Agreement. Where o Brokerage (Buyer's Brokerage) hos entered into a representation agreement with the Buyer, the Buyer hereby oppoinls the 
Buyer's Brokeroge os agent for the purpose of giving ond receiving notices pursuant to this Agreement. Where a Brokerage re presents both 
the Se lle r and the Buyer (multiple r epresentation), the Brokerage shall not be appointed or authori~ed to be agent for 
either the Buyer or the Selle r for the purpose of g iving and receiving notices. Any notice relating hereto or provided for herein shall 
be in writing. In addition to any provision contained herein a nd in ony Schedule hereto, this offer, ony counter-offer, notice of acceptance thereof 
or ony notice to be given or received pursuant to this Agreement or any Schedule hereto (any of them, "Document") shall be deemed given and 
received when delivered personally or hand delivered lo the Address for Service provided in the Acknowledgement below, or where a facsimile 
number or email address is provided herein, when transmitted electronically lo that facsimile number or emoil address, respectively, in which cose, 
the signolure(s) of the porly (parties) shall be deemed to be original. 

FAX No.: ............................. ............................................... .. . . FAX No.: .......... .... ... .... ..... ........................... .......... ............. .............. . 
(for delivery of Documents lo Seller) (For delivery of Documents lo Buyer) 

Email Address: .... ............................... ......... . , ......... ................... . 
(For delivery of D9cumenls lo Seller) 

Email Address: ................ ....................... , ........... ........ ........... ............ . 
(For delivery of Documents lo Buyer). 

4. CHATTELS INCLUDED: .................................................................................. .......... .. ...... : .......... :: ......... .......... ........ , ...... , ... ... ........ ....... .. . 

NONE 

Unless otherwise stated in this Agreement or any Schedule hereto, Seller agrees to convey all fixtures and chattels included in the Purchase Price free 
from all liens, encumbrances or claims ofleding the said fixtures and chattels. 

S. FIXTURES EXCLUDED: ............................................................ ..... ............................... ...................... .......... ...... .................................... . 

NONE 

6. RENTAL ITEMS (Including Lease, Lease to Own): The following equipment is rented and not included in the Purchase Price. The Buyer agrees 
to assume the rental conlroct(s). If assumable: 

NONE 

The Buyer agrees to co-operate and execute such documenlolion as may be required lo facilita te such assumption. 

7. HST: If the sale of the property (Real Property as described above) is subject to Harmonized Sales Tax (HST), then such 
tax shall be in addition to the Purchase Price. The Seller will not collect HST if the Buyer provides to the Seller a warranty that the Buyer is 
registered under the Excise Tox Act ("ETA"), together with a copy of the Buyer's ETA registration, a warranty that the Buyer shall self-ossess and remit 
the HST payable and file the prescribed fori:n and shall indemnify the Seller in respect of any HST payable. The foregoing warranties shall not merge 
but shall survive the completion of the transaction. If the sole of the properly is not subject lo HST, Seller ogree5 lo certify on or before closing, that the 
transaction is not subject to HST. Any HST on chattels, If opplicoble1 is not included in the Purchase Price. 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S): C=:> 
m Th• lrademarks REALTOR®AREALTORS@J. MlS®, Mubiple U•ting Service'® and auodoted Jogos ore owned or con~olled by LD The Canadian Real fatale noclolion (CREAi and identify lhe real e•lalo prole.sional• who ore members of CREA and the 
....... qvority of •e<Vic•• they provide. u •• d under ~ten>e. 
© 2019, Onlorio Real Eslale Anodalion !"OREA"). All rights reserved. This form was developed by OREA lor the use ond reproduction 
by fl• member> and licensees only. Any other use or r~pro<luclion Is prohibited except with pnor written consent of OREA. Do not ofter 
when printing or reproducing the slonaord pr .. sel porlfon. OREA boors no liability for your use of this form. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS(S): ~ 

Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 2 of 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

233



8. TITLE SEARCH: Buyer shall be allowed until 6:00 p.m. on the } .. ~~.Y.?... ...... doy of . .P.~~~U!?.~~<?.~.~i;!K .................................... , 20 ................ , 
(Requisition Dote) to examine the title lo the property ol his own expense and until the earlier of: (i) thirty doys from the later of the Requisition Dote or 
the dole on which the conditions in this Agreement ore fulfilled or otherwise waived or; (ii) five days prior lo completion, to satisfy himself that there 

t t d. k d d f· · t· ff t· th ty rh t · t (residential buildino Jot 1 b ore no ou son mg wor or ers or e octency no tees a ec mg e proper , a 1ls presen use .................................. 9. ............•.•.•......•. •.. may e 
lawfully continued and that the principal building may be insured against risk of fire. Seller hereby consents lo the municipality or olher governmental 
agencies releasing to Buyer details of all outstanding work orders and deficiency notices affecting the property, and Seller agrees to execute and 
deliver such further authorizations in this regard as Buyer may reasonably require. 

9. FUTURE USE: Seller and Buyer agree that there is no represenlotion or warranty of any kind that the future intended use of the property by Buyer is 
or will be lawful except as may be specifically provided for in this Agreement. 

10. TITLE: Provided that the title to the property is good and free from all registered restrictions, charges, liens, and encumbrances except as otherwise 
specifically provided in lhis Agreement and save and (!Xc.ept for (a) any registered r~strictions or cqvenonts ihot run with the land p~oviding that such 
are complied with; (b) any registere~ inynicipol ?greements and reglste_red agreements \'(ith.·publi~ly regulated utilities providing such have peen 
complied with, or security'has been posted to ensu're compliance and complelion, as evldericed'byo letter from the relevant municipality or regulated 
utility; (c) any minor ea~ements 'for the supply of domestic utility or Jelecommu_nkalion servic;es to. lhe prop_erty or adjacent properlie~; and (d) a_ny 
easements for drainage, slorm or sanitary sewers, public utility line_s, lelecommunicolion lines, ea_ble tele~ision lines 

0

or other services which.do not 
materially affect the use of the property. If wiihin the specified times referred lo in paragraph B any valid objection lo title or ta any outstanding work 
orCler or defidency notice, or lo the fact the sciid present use moy not lawfully be continued, or ih~! the princ;ipol building may not be insured against 
risk of fi re is made In writing to Seller and which Seller is unable or Ul)Willing lo remove, femedy or solisfy_t;ir obtain insurance save and except against 
risk of fire (Title Insurance) in favour of the Buyer and any mortgagee, (wilh all related costs at the expense of the Seller), and which Buyer will not 
waive, this Agreement nolwithstondi11g any intermediate ocls or negoliations in respect of such objections, shall be ol on end and all monies paid 
shall be returned wilhoul interest or deduction and Seller, Listing Brokerage and Co-operating Brokerage shall not be liable For any costs or damc;iges. 
Save as to any valid objection so made by such day and except For any objection going lo the root of the title, Buyer shall be conclusively deemed to 
hove accepted Seller's title to the property. 

11 . CLOSING ARRANGEMENTS: Where each of the Seller and Buyer relain o lawyer to complete the Agreement of Purchase and Sale of the property, 
and where the transaction wiJI be completed by electronic regislrolion pursuant to Port Ill of the land Registration Reform Ad, R.S.0. ! 990, Chopt!!r 
l4 and the Electronic Registration Act, S.O. 1991, Chapter 44, and any amendments thereto, the Seller and Buyer acknowledge and agree th_ot 
the exchange of closing funds, non-registrable documenls and other Items (the "Requisite Deliveries"I and the release ihereof to the Seller and Buyer 
will (a) nol occur at the some time as the registration of the transfer/deed (and any alh~r docume_nls intended lo be registered in cannectio,n with the 
completion of I.his tronsoclion) and (bl be subject to conditions whereby the lowyei{s) receivi.ng any of the Requisite Deliveries wiil be required lo hold 
some In trust and nol release same except in accordance with the terms of a document registration agreement between the said lawyers. The Seller 
and Buyer irrevocably instruct the said lawyers to be bound by the document registration agreement which ls recommended from lim_e to time !:>y the 
low Society of Ontario. Unless otherwis·e agreed lo by the lawyers, such exchange of Reql!isite Delive'ries shall occur by the delivery of the Requisite 
Deliveries of each party la the office of the lawyer For the other party or such other location agreeable to both lawyers. 

12. DOCUMENTS AND DISCHARGE: Buyer shall not coll far the production of any title ·deed, abslroct, survey or other evidence of title lo the property 
except such as ore in the possession or control of Seller. If requested by Buyer, Seller will !:!eliv.er any sketch or survey of the property within Seller's 
control to Buyer as soon as possible and prior to the Requisition Date. If o discharge of any ~h~rge/Martgoge held by a corporoticm incorp()rote;d 
pursuant to the Trust And loon Companies Act (Canada}, Chartered Bonk, Trust Company, Credit Union, Caisse Populaire or Insurance Company 
and which is not ta be assumed by Buyer on completion, is not available in registrable form on completion, Buyer agrees to accept Seller's lawyer's 
personal undertaking to obtain, ·out of the closing funds, a discharge In registrable form and lo register same, or cause some lo be registered, _an 
title within a reasonable period of time ofter completion, provided thal on or before completion Seller shail provide to Buyer !J mortgage statement 
prepared by the rnorlgagee selling out the balance required lo obtain the discharge, and, where a real-time electronic cleared funds transfer system is 
not being used, a direction E!Xecuted by Seller directing payment to the mortgagee of the amount required lo obtain lhe discharge out of the balance 
.due on completion. 

13. INSPECTION: Buyer acknowledges having had !he opportunity to inspect the property and underslonds that upon acceptance of this offer !here ~hall 
be a binding agreement of purchase and sale between Buyer and Seller. 

14. INSURANCE: All buildings on the property and all other things being purchased sha ll be and remain until completion at the risk of Seller. Pending 
completion, Seller shall hold all insurance policies, if any, and the proceeds thereof in trust for the parties as their interests may appear and in the 
event of substantial damage, Buyer may either terminate this Agreement and hove all monies poid returned without interest or deduction or else 
take the proceeds cf any insurance anCI complete the purchase. No insurance shall be transferred on completion. If Seller is taking back o Charge/ 
Mortgage, or Buyer is assuming o Charge/Mortgage, Buyer shall supply Seller with reasonable evidence of adequate insurance lo protect Seller's or 
olher mortgagee's interest on completion. 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S): ~ 
ITT Tho trademarks REAlTORl!I REAIJORS®, Ml.S®, Muhiple listing Service'® and anocioted logos are owned or controlled by 
1..£!1 The Canadian Real Ellotc ksocialfon (CREAi and idenlily the real estate professlonob who are memben of CREA and the 
'~'"' ' quality of mvtces they provide. Used under license. 
© 2019, Ontario Real Estate A.ssociotion l'OREA"). All rights reserved. This lonn wos developed by OREA lor the usa and rep_roduction 
br Its members ond licensees only. Anr other use or repro<luc!ion is prohibited except with prior Written consent of OREA. Do noJ olter 
when prlnlfng or raproducing tho standard pre-set porhon. OREA bears no liobllity for your uoo of this lorm. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS(S): C0 

Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 3 af 6 

WEBForms® Oec/2018 

234



15. PLANNING ACT: This Agreement shall be effective to create on interest in the properly only if Seller complies with the subdivision control provisions 
of the Planning Act by completion and Seller covenants to proceed diligently at his expense to obtain a ny necessary consent by completion. 

16. DOCUMENT PREPARATION: The Transfer/Deed shall, save for the Land Transfer Tax Affidavit, be prepared in registrable fo rm a l the expense of 
Seller, and any Charge/Mortgage to be given back by the Buyer to Seller di the expense of the Buyer. If requested by Buyer, Seller covenants that the 
Transfer/Deed to be delivered on completion shell contain the statements contemplated by Section 50(22) of the Planning Act, R.S.0.1990. 

17. RESIDENCY: (a) Subject to (bJ below, the Seller represents and warrants that the Seller is not a rid on completion will not be a non-resident under the 
non-residency provisions of the Income Tax Act which represe.nlalion and warranty shall survive and not merge upon the Completion of this transaction 
and the Seller shall deliver to the Buyer o statuiory' decloration that Seller is not lhen a non-resident of Canada; 
.fbJ provided that if the Seller is a non-resident under the non-residency provisions of the lriccime Tax Act, the Buyer shall be credited towards the 
Purchase Priee with the amount, if any, necessary for Buyer to pay fo the Minisier of Notional Revenue to satisfy Buyer's liability in respect of tax 
payable by Seller under the non-residency provisfons of the Income Tax Act by reason of this sole. Buyer shall not claim such creclit if S.eller delivers 
on conip\e!ion the prescribed certificate. 

18. ADJUSTMENTS: Any rents, mortgage in1e·rest, realty taxes including iocol improvement rates and unmetered public or priva te utility charges and 
unmelered cost of fuel, qs applicable, shall be apportioned and allowed to the day of completion, the day of C()mpletiop itself to be apportioned to 
Buyer. · . 

1 ·9. TIME LIMITS: Time. shall in all respects be of the essence hereof provided that ihe lime for doing or completing of any matter provided for herein may 
be extended or abridged by on 9greement in writing signed by Seller and Buyer or by their respective lawyers wh9 may be specifically a uthorized 
in thcit re,gord. · 

20. PROPERTY ASSESSMENT: The Buyer and Seller hereby acknowledge that the Province of Ontario hos implemented current value assessment 
and properiies may be re-ossimed on on apnuol basis. The Buyer one;! Seller agree that no claim will be made against .the Buyer or Seller, or :any 
Brokerage, Broker qr Salesperson, for any chcinges in property tax 9s o result of a re-0ssessment of the property, save arid exci;pt any property taxis 
that accrued prior to the completion .of this Irons-action. 

2 i. TENDE.R: Any tender of documenis.or money hereunder may be made upon Seller or B.uyer or their n~spe1=tiye loyvyer~ o_n the dqy set for completion. 
Mo~ey ~hall !:>e tendered with funds drown o~ 0 lawyer's trust account in the fqrm of 0 ban~ qroft, certified cheq-ue or wir~ lrai:i'sfer :using the Lorge 
Value Transfer ·system. 

22. FAMILY LAW ACT: Seller warrants that spousal consent Is not necessary to this transaction under the provisions of the Family Law A1=t, R.S.0 .. 1990 
unless the spouse of the Seller ha.s e.xecuted the consent hereinafter provide.cl. 

23. UFFl:-Seller r11presents cmd warrants to B'!yer that dyring the lime Seller has owned the property, Seller hos not caused a ny bu'ilding o~ ihe property 
lo be insulated wjth insulation t:onto.ining ureoformo_ldehyde, -and th.at lo the best cif ·Seller's knowledge no building on 'the property corilains or hos 
.eve.r c()nto.ined insulollon ihot contain~ urealarmaldehyde. This warra.niy ~hall survive and not merge on the complefi9n of,this tTansoction, and if the 
buiiding is port of a multiple unit building, ihis 'worro~ty shall only ~pply to that port 9f ihe building which is the subject of this transaction. 

24. LEGAL, ACCOUNTING AND ENVIRONMENTAL ADVICE: The parties acknowledge that any informat ion provided by the brokerage is not 
legal, tax or environmental advice, and that ii has been recommencled that the parties obtain independent professional advice prior io signing this 
document. 

25. CONSUMER REPORTS: The Bl!yer is hereby notified that a consumer report contgining credit and/or personal information 
may be referred to in connection with 'this transaction. 

26. AGREEMENT IN WRITING: If there is conflict or discrepancy between any provision added to this Agreement (including any Schedule !Jtlached 
hereto) and any provision in 'the standard pre-set portion hereof, the added provision shell supersede th~ standard pre-set provision to lhe extent of 
such Conflict or discrepancy. This Agreement including any Schedule attached hereto, shall constitute the entire Agreement between Buyer and Seller. 
There is no representation, warranty, collateral ogre_emenl or condition, which affects this Agreement other than as expressed herein. For the purposes 
of this Agreement, Seller means vendor and Buyer means purchaser. This Agreement shall be read with all changes of gender or number required by 
the context. 

27. TIME AND DATE: Any reference too time and dole in this Agreement shall mean the time and dole where the property is located. 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S): ~ 
ITT The trodemarlt.s REALTOR®, REALTORS®, MLSl!I, Muliiple 4•ting Service>® ond o"ociated logos ore owned or controlled by lJl The Canadian Real Estate Auociation (CREAi and idenHfy the real e1tole professionals who ore member> ol CREA and the 
auuu quality Of services lhey provide. Used undl!f Ucerue. 
~ 2019;0nlorio Real Estate Auociolion l"OREA1. All right• reserved. This form Y'DS developed br OREA for the use and reproduction 
bt ifl members and lice.,ees only. Any other use or reprocuclion b prohibited except with prior written con1ent ol OREA. Do not oiler 
when printing ar reproducing the standard pre-set porllon. OREA bears no liability IOr your u•e of this form. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS(S): ~ 

Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 4 of 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

235



28. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: The heirs, executors, administrot0rs, successors and assigns of the undersigned ore bound by the terms herein. 
SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED In the pr~sence of: IN WrfNESS whereof I have hereunto set my hand and seal: 

iwil~~~~f · · · · .. : ... ···· · · · ·· •· · · · ·· .-... · · ·· ····· ···· · ·· .. ·. · · · ····· · ··· · · · ·· · • (Seolj 
io~·,~f ..... .......................... . 

iwi·,~~~·;f···· · ··········· .............. ................................ .... . • (Seal! iti~-,~f········"··· · ········· · ········ 

I, the Undersigned Seller, agree to the above offer. I hereby irrevocably instruct my lawyer to pay directly lo the brokerage:[s) with whom I hove ag·reed 
lo pay commission, the unpaid balance of the commission together with applicable HormonizeCJ Sole;s Tax (and any other taxes as may he;reafier be 
applicable), from the proceeds of the .sole prior lo any payment lo the undersigned on campleliqn, as a_dvjsed by the .l?rokeroge(s) lo my lawyer. 

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED in the presence of: IN WITNESS '!'lhereof J have hereunto set my hand and seal: 

...... ... ........ · ......... : .............................................. ...... . 
!Witness) • (Se9I) 

x . . 
io~·,~i· .............. ................. . 

iwit~~~~i' ... , ...... . ,~ ................... ,_ ............ , ............. , ...... . • (Seal! 
io~·,~, ........... , ........ _.,_., ........ , 

SPOUSAL CONS~-NT: The undersigned spouse of the Seller h.ereby consents t0 the disposition evi~ens:ed herein pursuant lo fbe provisions. of the Family 
Low Act, R.S9, 1_990, gna hereby:cigrees io execute oil necessary or incidental docuniepls to give full For.ce and effect to ihe 5ale evidenced hereiQ. · 

............................................................... -......... ............... ................... : ...... . 
jWitnes~) (Spouse) (Seoll (Dole) 

CONflRMAJ'ION OF ACCEPTANCE.: Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the corilr0ry, I confirr(l thi~ Agreell)enl with oli changes bo.th typed 

and written was finally accepted by all parties al ............. , ................ this ............. . day of ........... ........ ........... .. ... ........... , ..................... , 20 ..... , ... ,. 
· (o.m./p.m.) 

.~ . . ...... ............... ....... :.!.· ... ....... .. ... .. ................. .-. .. .... .................. . 
(Sig'niirure of Seller.or Buyer) 

INFORMATION ON BROKERAGE(S) 

listing Brokerage .RQY.A..~.P~P.AG.~ .. NR~.@bJ...T..Y. .... · ...................................... :...... ....... .(9,Q.~).§}1.:-~.9.QR ................ .. ............. . 
- ~~ 

BILL BECSKEREKI . . . . . ... , .. , ........ .............. , ........... ................................... is~i~·;P~;i~-~/li~~k~;iii;~k~;·~·fR~~~;d·N~.;;~i· · · ·· ··· ·.····· · ····· · ······· · · · · ··· · · · · ················· · · ·· ···· ·· · · ·· ··· · · 

CQ-Op/B9yer .Brokerage .... : .... .. _ .... ........ , ...... , ......... ········ ············ ·· ··:· · ····· ·········· ······· ··· :··· .•. , ... : ·· .::. ' (t~i:N~.:f · ........ ········· ·· ....... , .. , .•.... · ······ ··· ·· 

............ ··~· ........................................................... (s~i~·;~;;~·~/li~~k~;jii;~k~;··~( R~~~;d ·N~·.;;~j .......... ...... ~·. ······ .................................. ..... ' .......... . 

·ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
l acknowle_dg~ r.e,ceipt of rriy signe.d copy 9f this accepted Agreement of 
Purchase dnd Sale and I authorize the Brokerage lo forward a copy to my lawyer. 

I ackn9wledge receipt of rny signeo_c0py .of !hi~ P\:C~pled Agreernenl of 
Purchase and Sole <;in_d I qulhorlze the Brokerage lo forward o copy to my la~er. 

is~i1~;f···········......... . ... .. .... . . ..... ..... ...... . . . .............. io~i~i .................... . (s·~r~;f ...... , ....................... , ..... , ........ ,. ........ ......... . io~·,~f ................ ..... . 

. .• . • • • * ................ ~ •••••• : ••• 
js~il~;f· ·· '. .. ..... . , .. ,, .............................. ··.··:········· · (Dote) · iil~;.~;i · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · ·· .. · · ·. · · ·· · · · .. ": · · · · ··· ·· · · · · .. , · · · · ... · ·.-' · ·io;:;i~i · · · · · · ·· · ·•·· · · · '·' · ·· · 
Address For ·Sel'Vice , ...•. _ .............. ,. .............. ,:······· ... ........ ...... ..... , ... ...... . :Aqdress for Service .. ... ................. ; ... ..... , ....... _. .... :, ......... _. ....... _. .. 7 .......... . 

iT~CN~r········· ············ ·· ··· ····· ff~i:"N~f··· · · · ·· ... .................... . 
Seller's Lawyer ..... ,................ ..................................... ........................ ~uyer's lawyer .. .. ., ..... ...... . _ ........ ... ............ ...... .. ...... ... ..... , ....... ..... , ..... . 

Address ..... : .. r............... ......................................................... ........... Address ....... ............ ...... .. ................ .............. · .. ..... ................. ........... . 

Email ...... ............ ......... ....... .. .................................... ........ ...... ........... Email ............. .......................................... .... ... ....... , ....... , ................. . 

it~i:·N~.y · ··· · ··................................ .. .. ii=~.·r;;~:i··· · ··· ··· ···· ·· ·· · ····... . .... . . it~i:·N~·.y..... . ............. . ....................... if'~."N"~:f ................................ . 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY COMMISSION TRUST AGREEMENT 

To: C0-0per0Hng Brokerage shown on the loregofng Agreement of Purchase and Sole: 
In consj_derotiorifor the C0-0peroling BrokE!r0ge procuring the foregoing Agre.ement of Purchase end Sole, I hereby declare that 911 moneys received or receivable by me in 
connection with the Tronsocilon as coniemp,loted in the MlS" Rules and Regulations of my Real Estate Board ~hall be receivable end held in trust. This ogreemenl shall conslilute 
a Commission Trust Agreement OS cleflned in !he MlS" Rules ond shall be subiecl to and governed by the MLS0 Rules pertaining to Commission Trust. 
DATED cs of ihe dote ond lime of the acceptance of the foregoing Agreement of Purchase and Sole. Acknowledged by: 

m The trodemcrlts REALTOR® REALTORS®, MLS®, Multiple listing Services® ond os.rocioted logos ore owned or controlled by 
1..13 The Canadian Real Estele Anociallcn (CREAi and identify !he reel e1tole prole.uionols 'who ore memberi of CREA and !he 
,..,,.,. quality of semces they provide. Used under ficense. · 
() 20 t 9, Ontario Reel Estate A.soclotion !'OREA 'I. All rights reserved. lhis farm was developed br. OREA for th.e vie end reproduc~on 
by Its members and licemees only. Any other uie or reproduction i1 prohibiled except wilh 'pnor wroHen con1enl of OREA. Do not oiler 
wnen printing o'r reproducing the dondcrd pre.,et porlron .. OREA boors no liability for your u;e of this form. Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 5 of 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

236



~~A Ontario Real Estate 
~Association 

Schedule A 

Form 500 
Agreement of Purchase and Sale - Commercial 

for use in the Provine" of Ontario 

This Schedule is attached lo and lorms port of the Agreement of Purchase and Sole between: 

BUYER: .~9.?.P.~J..:~g~rr~~.A.@ .I~AJ.9.~.rr.gR ................................................................................................................. , and 

SELLER: .Gif.Y..Q.f..?..QRT .. G.9.~.?..9.~ ............ · ............................................................................ · ......................................................... . 

for ihe purchase and sole of .W.f§ .. ~.9.~ .. Jl<?.?.~ ................................................... ....................... ~.9.~.G.9.!R.<?X~.~-- - ······························· 

,.PJ9.Y},., ................................................... doted the . A~ .................. day of .A~.1m!~.~ ........................................................ , 20J.9. .............. . 
Buyer.agrees )o pay the b~lonce as follows: 

purphas~rs agree to pay the balance Qf the pui·clwse price , by cash or certified cheque J on closing , subject to 
adjustments. 

In the event the purchaser fails to commence the construction of a residential dwelling within twenty-four (24) 
months from the closing of this transaction, the seller shall be at liberty to demand the repurchase of the property at 
seventy-five percent (75%) of the purchase price and the purchaser shall sell to the seller the property contained 
herein for $187,500.00 free and clear and clear of all encumbrances. This term shall survive the completion of this 
transaction. 

This form must be inilioled by all parties to the Agreement of Purchase and Sale. 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S): ~ 
m lhe ~odemorlu REALTOR® REAlTORS41J, MLSl!!I, Multiple listing Service•® and ossodoted logos ore owned or controlled by 
IJ::!ll The Conodion Real E.ior. :.\;1ociotion !CREA) and identify the real e>tole profeulonob who ore members of CREA and the 
ouu•· quality of 1orvlce• they p<ovlde. Used under ficense. 
© 2019, Ontario Real utoto Association !"OREA'). All righb mernd. This form was devaloped bY. OREA for the use and repioduction 
by its membet> and licensaes only. AnY. other use or reproC!uction Is prohibited except with prior wn~en consent of OREA. Do nofaher 
wnen printing or reproducing the stonaord pre-set porhon. OREA bears no liability for your uso of this lonm. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS(S): ~ 

Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 6 of 6 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

237



~~A Ontario Real Estate 
~Association 

Confirmation of Co·operation 
and Representation 

Form 320 
lor use in lhe Province of Onlorio 

BUYER: .RQ~~RT.KRffgR.A@ .. TANY.A. .~U~~ ......................... ................................................................. ................... .. .......... . 

SELLER: . qJY,.Qf.fQRJ.~Q);.J~Q~)~L .... ... ............................... ............ .......... .......... ...... ................... ............ ............. ..................... .. . 

For the transaction on the property known as: .W.~~ .. ~Q.gBA~ .. ~.<?.~~ ............. · ........................... ~~.~~.G~A~~~~ .................... ~?..~?.Y.?. ....... . 
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS: For the purpos~s of this Confirmation of Go-0peration and RepresenJati9n: 
"Seller" includes o vendor, a landlord, lessor, or a pro~peclive, seller, vendor, landlord or lessor and "Buyer" ·includets a purchaser, a tenant, lessee or 
a prospeciive, buyer, purchoser1 tenant or lessee and "sole" includes a lease, and "Agreement of Purchase a n.d Sole" includes on Agreement.lo Lease. 
Commission shall be de.E1med to \nc;lusle other remun_eratio_n. 

'the following jnformalion is confirmed by the undersigned salesperson/broker representatives of the B_r9kerage(s). If a Co-operating Brokerage is involved 
in the transaction, the brokerages agree to co·operate, in consideration of, and on the terms one! conditions os set out below. 

DECIARATION OF INSURANCE: The undersigned salesperson/broker representative(s) of the Brokerage(s) hereby declare that he/she is insured as 
required by the Real Es!ale .and Business Brokers Act, 2002, (REBBA) . 

1. LISTING BROKERAGE 

a) . 0 The _Listing Brokerage r~presenls the interests of the Seller in this transaction. It is Further unders'toad and agreed that: 

1) 0 The Listing Brokerage is nql representing or proyiding Customer Service to the Buyer. 
(If the Buyer ls working with a C0-0perating Brokerage, Section 3 is to be completed by C0-0peroting Brokerage) 

b) 
21 0 The Listing Brokerage is providing Customer Service fa' the Buyer. 

0 MULTIPLE REPRESENTATION: The Listing Brokerage has e ntered into o Buyer Representation Agreeriien' with the B~yer and 
repniserrts lhe interests of the S~ller and the Buyer, with their consent, for this transaction. The listing Brokerog ~ must be impartial and 
equajly protect ihe. interests of the Seller and the Buyer in lhis transaction. The Listing Brokerage hqs a duty of full tlisclosu re io both 
the Seller and the Buyer, including o requirement to disclose all factual information about the property known lo the Listing Brokerage. 
However, the Listing Brokerage shall not disclose: 

• That ihe .Seller may or will accept less than the li~ted price, unless oiherwise instructed in writ!rg by the Seller; 
J~ot the Buye( may or will pay m0re than the offered_ price, unless otherwise instructed in writing by the Buyer; 

• The motivation of or personal information about the Seller or Buyer, unless otherwise instructed in writing by the party to which the 
information applies, 'pr unless failure to disclose would constitute fraudulent, unlawful or unethical prodic~; 

• The price the B~yer .should offer or the price the Sel!er should accept; 
• And; th_e Listing Broke.rage ~hall not disclose to the Buyer-the terms of any other offer. 

However, it Is understood that factual market informat!on about comparable properties and information known to the Listing Brokerage 
concerning potenliql uses (gr the property· will be disclosed to both Seller and Buyer to assist them to c6(lle ·10 their own cortclusions. 

Additional comments and/or disclosures by Listing Brokerage: (e.g. The Listing Brokerage represents more ihon one Buyer offerin_g on this property.) 

2. PROPERTY SOLD BY BUYER BROKERAGE - PROPERTY NOT LISTED 

D The Brokerage ............ , ..... , ......... represeni ihe Buyer and the property is noi listed with any real estate brokerage. The Brokerage will be paid 
(does/ does not) " 

D 
or: D 

by the Seller in occordanc.e with a Seller Customer Servi~e.Agreement 

by the Buyer directly 

Additional comments and/or disclosures by Buyer Brokerage: (e.g. The Buyer Brokerage represents more than one Buyer offering on this property.) 

INITIALS OF BUYER(S)/SELLER(S)/BROKERAGE REPRESENTATlVE(S) (Where applicable) 

BUYER CO-OPERATING/BUYER BROKERAGE SELLER 

m The ~odemork• REACTOR®, REALTORS®, MlS®. Mulijple U•ting Service'® and o"ocioted logos ore owned or conlrolled by 
LD The Canadian Real E•lole Auocialion (CREAi and idenlify the real eslale profeuianou who ore members al CREA and the 
w uo .. · quality of .services 1hey proYide. Used under &cense. 
© 2019, Onlario Real Eslale As•ociotion !"OREA"). All righl• reserved. This form YfC• dovolopod br OREA for the usa and reproduclion 
by ils membon and licensee• only. Any other u50 or reproduclion I• prohibiled excepl with prior written i:on•ent of OREA. Do not aher 
when prinling 01 reproducing rho •londard pr .. •el porllon. OREA bean no liabilily fo r your use of lhf• lorm. 

C) 
LISTING BROKERAGE 

Form 320 Revised 2019 Page 1 of 2 

WEB Forms® Oec/201 B 

238



3. Co-operating Brokerage completes Section 3 and Listing Brokerage completes Section 1. 

CO-OPERATING BROKERAGE- REPRESENTATION: 

a) D The Co-operating Brokerage represents the interests of the Buyer in this transaction. 

b) D The Co-operating Brokerage is providing Customer Service to the Buyer in this tronsoclion. 

c) D The Co-operating Brokerage is not representing the Buyer and hos not entered into on agreement to provide customer service(s) to the Buyer. 

CO-OPERATING BROKERAGE- COMMISSION: 

a) D The Listing Brokerage will pay the Co-operating Brokerage the commission as indicated in the MlS® information for the property 

..... ............................................... ... .................... ........... to be paid from the amount po id by the Seller to the listing Brokerage. 
(Commission As tndicoled In MlS" Information) 

b) D The Co-operating Brokerage will be paid os follows: 

Additional comments and/or disclosures by Co-operating Brokerage: (e.g., The Co-operating Brokerage represents more than one Buyer offeri ng on this 
property.) 

Commission will be payable as described above, plus applicable taxes. 

COMMISSION TRUST AGREEMENT: If the above CO:Operoting Brokerage Is receiving payment of commission from the Listing Brokerage, then the 
agreement between listing Brokerqge and Co-operating Brokerage further includes o Commission Trust Agreement, the consideration for which is ihe 
Co-operating Brokerage procuring ~n offer for a trade of the property, acceptable to the Seller. This Com_missio_n T rusi Agreeme.nt shcill be subject to (]rid 
gqverne~ by the MLS® rules and regulations pertaining to commission trusts of the listing j:lrokerage's local real estate board, ii the local board's MLSe 
rules and regulations so provide. Otherwise, the provisions of the OREA recommended MLS® rules and regulations shal! apply to this Commission Trust 
Agreement. For the purpose of this Commission Trust Agreement, the Commission Trust Amount shall be ihe ·amount noted iri ~action 3 above. The Usiipg 
Brokerage hereby declares that all monies _received iri connection With the trade shall constitute o Comr'n is.sion "Trust and shall be held, in trust, for the 
Co-operating Brokerage under the terms bf the applicable MLS® rules and regulations. 

SIGNED BY THE BROK£R/SAL~SPERSON JtEP~S.ENTATIVE(S) OF THE BROKERAGE(S) (Where applicable) 

ROY AL LEPAGE NRG REALTY 
(N~;.;~· ~i ·c:~;,;;;,~i;"~9is~y~~-ii;~k"~;~s~i ................................................... . (N~;,;;; ~i ·ff;ti~9 . 0;~k"~;~·9~) .................................................................... . 

}.t?.?..Kj..Q_g .~~: ...................................... J'.~~ .~~t~.<?.q?..C? ..... .......... . 

Tel: .......................................... Fax: ........................................ , ...... . Tel: . .(~9.?.) .. ~~4::?.9.9.9. ............ Fox: .<?..9.n.~?.~}P~ ................... . 

CONSENT FOR MULTIPLE REPRESENTATION (To be completed only if the Brokerage represents more than one client for the transaction} 

The Buyer/Seller consent with their initials lo their Brokerage 
representing more than one client for this transaction. 

I hove received, read, and understand the above information. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

BUYER'S INITIALS SELLER'S INITIALS 

(siii~~i~;~ ~r0;;y~·,r · · · · · · · · · · · ·· ·· ·· · · · ... ·· · ····· · lo~·,~1 ..... ·· · · · · ··· ··· · ··· · .. · .... · · ··· · · · ·· · is·;9~~i~;~ ~i ·~1i~~i" · · · · ·· · · ·· · ·· · · ·· ·· ··· · · · · io~i~l · · ..... · · · · .. ··· ·· · .... · ..... ··· 

1si9~~i~;~· ~rs;;y;;;i .. · · · · · .. · · · · · · · · · · · ...... · .. · · · lo~·t~i .. · · · .. · · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · ·· · · · · · · (s·19~~i~;~· ~rs~1i~·ri .. · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · .. · io.~i~j" · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .... · ..... · · · 

m The trodemorks REALTOR~. REACTORS®. MlS®, Mu~iple U•ting Service'® ond associated logos ore owned or controlled by 
The Canadian Real E•tote Alsociotion ICREAt and identify the real ... tote professional. wlio ore members of CREA ond the 

~"" quality of services they provide. Used unde< Gcense. 
© 2019, Ontario Real Eslolo Association 1·0REA1. All right• re•erved. This fc;>rm was developed by OREA for tho use and reproduction 
by"its members and licensees only. Any other V•e or reproauctlon is prohibited except with prior wntton consent of OREA. Do not oiler 
when printing or reproducing the standard pr .. sel porlron. OREA boars no liability lor your use of this farm. Form 320 Revised 2019 Page 2 of 2 

WEBForms® Dec/2018 

239



~r! A Ontnrio Real Estate 
~Association 

Schedule A 

Form 500 
Agreement of Purchase and Sale - Commercial 

fer use In Iha Province of Ontario 

This Schedule Is attoched lo and forms part of the Agreement of Purchase ond Sole between: 

BUYER: . ~Q.?.§~I.¥.;R~J.J;;R.A.NR.IA"NY..~ .K!~JI~~ ................ ................................................................................................. , and 

SELLER: .GJIY.Q.f .P.Q~T.G.91-:-.~.Q~N!?. .................... ................................... .............................................................................. ........... .. 

for the purchase and sole of .W.(~ .. ~.QMAlli.§.~.C?.~~ .................. ........................................................ r.9.!1 .g,9.~R.9.ITI.~ .......................... .... : .. . 

J}~~.';{} ..................................................... dated the ..!.§ ..... ... ; ......... day of . A~IE!-!~J ....... · ............................ ............ ......... , 20 .. \9. .............. . 
Buyer agr11es to pay the balance as follows: . · 

purchasers agree to pay the balance of the purchase price , by cash or certified cheque , on closing, subject to 
~~m~~ . 

ln the event the purchaser fails to commence the construction of a residential dwelling within twenty-four (24) 
months from the closing of this transaction,, the seller shall be at liberty to demand the repurchase of the property at 
seventy-five percent (75%) of the purchase price and the purchaser shall sell to the seller the property coritained 
herein for $187,500.00 free and clear and clear of all encumbrances. This term shall survive the completion of this 
transaction. 

This form must be initialed by all parties to the Agreement of Purchase and Sale. 

n!IJIALS OF ~UYIR(! [t{l@f 
m The ~odomoAi REAlTOW, REAlJORW. MlS®, Mulflplo u.~ng s ... 1clll0 ond onocfofad logoi .... CWl\Od or COnlroUod by LD Tho COl\od't0n Rool Utole 1\uec!a6on (CREAi ond ldonlily tho reol c1lulo p<ofeuioncb who ou rnornb6n ol CREA and Iha 
,. .. _ 'l"o~iy of w vlcel rhoy pro•ildo. U11d undar Lcoruo. 
4) 2019, Ont<>rlo Roal E>tolo Amxlollon 1·0REA"I· All rlghu rascrvoJ. Thh fo rm WO• devalopod by OREA for lh• u10 ond roproduclion 
by as mombar> and r.coruao1 only. /lnr olhor u10 or ropro<!ucflon I• prohibited o"apt Wilh prior ""'""" coNenl ol OREA. Do nol oltor 
when prlnflng or reproducing lho ~ondord proiel pOl~on. OREA boor s no lo billy lor Y°"' uso ol lhl> form. 

INITIALS OF SELLERS(S): ~ 

Form 500 Revised 2019 Page 6 of 6 

WEBForms® OecJ2018 

240



.I 

I' 
j1 

11 
I 

The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law No. 6737/101/19 

Being a By-law to Authorize Entering Into an Engineering Agreement with Spriet 
Associates Engineers & Architects for the Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain 

Whereas at its meeting of November 12, 2019 Council approved the 
1 recommendations of Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering 

Division Report 2019-172, Subject: Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain -Appointment of 
Engineer; and 

Whereas Council approved the appointment of Brandon Widner, P. Eng. of 
Spriet Associates Engineers & Architects to proceed forward with the preparation 
of a new report to address the watershed limit of the drain and to revise the 
assessment schedules of this report. 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne under 
the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990, enacts as follows: 

1. That the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne enter into an Engineering 
Agreement with Spriet Associates Engineers & Architects regarding the 
Eagle Marsh Municipal Drain. 

2. That the Mayor and Clerk be and they are hereby authorized and directed 
to sign an Engineering Agreement, and the Clerk is hereby authorized to 
affix the Corporate Seal thereto. 

Enacted and passed this 12th day of November, 2019. 

Frank Danch 
Deputy Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

241



242



I 
I 

I 
J, 

Ii 

The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law No. 6738/102/19 

Being a by-law to temporarily close sections of 
various streets to vehicular traffic for the purpose of the 

Annual Lighted Santa Claus Parade 

Whereas at its meeting of November 12, 2019, the Council of The Corporation 
of the City of Port Colborne ("Council") approved the recommendation of Community 
and Economic Development Department, Parks and Recreation Division, Report 
2019-158, Subject: Annual Lighted Santa Claus Parade - Road Closures: and 

Whereas Council has jurisdiction, as defined in Section 28 of the Municipal 
Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, over municipal highways; and 

Whereas the municipality is granted the power under Sections 11 (3) and 27(1) 
of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, to pass by-laws with 
respect to highways within its jurisdiction and to close a highway temporarily for any 
purpose specified in the by-law: and 

Whereas Council is desirous of closing temporarily sections of specified 
streets to vehicular traffic for purposes of the Annual Lighted Santa Claus Parade; 
and 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
enacts as follows: 

1. That in this by-law "Vehicle" includes a motor vehicle, trailer, traction engine, 
farm tractor (not including those participating in festival), road-building 
machine and any vehicle drawn, propelled or driven by any kind of power 
including muscular power. 

2. No person shall park a vehicle to situate on the highways or portions thereof 
as set out in Schedule "A" attached hereto and made part of this By-law at any 
time during the hours of 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. on December 7, 2019. 

3. The highways or portions thereof as set out on Schedule "A" attached hereto 
and made part of this by-law shall be closed to vehicular traffic during the 
hours of 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. on December 7, 2019. 

4. No person shall permit or cause to permit any vehicle to be driven on the 
streets or portions of streets as set out in Schedule "A" attached hereto and 
made part of this by-law during the hours 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. on December 
7, 2019. 

5. No person shall park a vehicle to situate on the highways or portions thereof 
as set out in Schedule "B" attached hereto and made part of this by-law at any 
time during the hours of 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. on December 7, 2019. 

6. The highways or portions thereof as set out on Schedule "B" attached hereto 
and made part of this by-law shall be closed to vehicular traffic during the 
hours of 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. on December 7, 2019. 

7. No person shall permit or cause to permit any vehicle to be driven on the 
streets or portions of streets as set out in Schedule "B" attached hereto and 
made part of this by-law during the hours 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. on December 
7, 2019. 

8. That there will be temporary barricade road closures at the intersections to 
restrict through traffic onto the parade route as set out in Schedule "C" 
attached hereto and made part of this by-law during the hours of 6:30 p.m. to 
9:00 p.m. on December 7, 2019. That each temporary barricade road closure 
be removed as the parade passes each of the intersections as set out in 
Schedule "C". 

243



9. The provisions of this by-law shall not apply to ambulances, police or fire 
services vehicles or public utility emergency vehicles, authorized event 
vehicles or any other vehicles required in the case of emergency. 

10. Any person violating the provisions this By-law shall be guilty of an offence 
and subject to the penalty of not more than $5,000.00 exclusive of costs to be 
collected pursuant to the provisions of the Provincial Offences Act. 

11. This By-law shall take effect on the date and times prescribed and on the 
placing of proper barricades and signs. 

Enacted and passed this 12th day of November, 2019. 

Frank Danch 
Deputy Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

244



·i 
1, 

11 

11 

I' 
11 ,I 

11 

11 

ll 

I 
I 
I 

Schedule "A" to By-law No. 6738/102/19 

Highway From To 

Fielden Avenue Southern limit of Southern limit of 
Killaly Street Elgin Street 

Elgin Street Western limit of Elm Eastern limit of 
Street Steele Street 

Fielden Avenue Western limit of Delhi Western limit of Delhi 
Street Street 

245



Schedule "B" to By-law No. 6738/102/19 

Highway From To 

Clarence Street Western limit of Steele Eastern limit of West 
Street Street 

West Street Northern limit of Southern limit of Charlotte 
Clarence Street Street 

Charlotte Street Western limit of Elm Eastern limit of West 
Street Street 

246



Schedule "C" to By-law No. 6738/102/19 

• North and west intersections of Steele Street and Elgin Street; 

• East intersection of Steele Street at Carter Street; 

• East intersection of Steele Street at Park Street; 

• East intersection of Steele Street at Tugboat Lane; 

• West and south intersections of Steel Street and Clarence Street; 

• North and south intersections of Fielden Avenue at Clarence Street ; 

• North and south intersections of Elm Street at Clarence Street; 

• North and south intersections of Catharine Street at Clarence 

Street; 

• North and south intersections of King Street at Clarence Street; 

• North and east intersections of West Street at Clarence Street; 

• South intersection of West Street at Charlotte Street; 

• North and south intersections of King Street at Charlotte Street; and 

• East and north intersections of Charlotte Street and Catharine 

Street. 

247



frus page intentionally left blank. . 

248



The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne 

By-Law no. 6739/103/19 

Being a by-law to adopt, ratify and confirm 
the proceedings of the Council of The 

Corporation of the City of Port Col borne at 
its Regular Meeting of November 12, 2019 

Whereas Section 5(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, provides that the powers of 
a municipality shall be exercised by its council; and 

Whereas Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, provides that a municipal 
power, including a municipality's capacity rights, powers and privileges under section 
9, shall be exercised by by-law unless the municipality is specifically authorized to do 
otherwise; and 

Whereas it is deemed expedient that the proceedings of the Council of The 
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne be confirmed and adopted by by-law; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
enacts as follows: 

1. Every action of the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne 
taken at its Regular Meeting of November 12, 2019 upon which a vote was 
taken and passed whether a resolution, recommendations, adoption by 
reference, or other means, is hereby enacted as a by-law of the City to take 
effect upon the passing hereof; and further 

2. That the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to execute any documents required 
on behalf of the City and affix the corporate seal of the City and the Mayor and 
Clerk, and such other persons as the action directs, are authorized and 
directed to take the necessary steps to implement the action. 

Enacted and passed this 12th day of November, 2019. 

Frank Danch 
Deputy Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

249



This page intentionally le~ blank. 

250



City of Port Colborne 
Regular Meeting of Council 31-19 

Minutes 

Date: October 28, 2019 

Time: 7:45 p.m. 

Place: Council Chambers, Municipal Offices, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne 

Members Present: M. Bagu, Councillor 
E. Beauregard, Councillor 
R. Bodner, Councillor 
G. Bruno, Councillor 
F. Danch, Councillor 
A. Desmarais, Councillor 
D. Kalailieff, Councillor 
W. Steele, Mayor (presiding officer) 
H. Wells, Councillor 

Staff Present: D. Aquilina, Director of Planning and Development 
B. Garrett, Director of Corporate Services 
A. LaPointe, Manager of Legislative Services/City Clerk 
C. Lee, Acting Chief Administrative Officer 
L. Nelson, EAA to the Director of Corporate Services (minutes) 

Also in attendance were interested citizens, members of the news media and WeeStreem. 

1. Call to Order: 

Mayor Steele called the meeting to order. 

2. Introduction of Addendum Items: 

Nil. 

3. Confirmation of Agenda: 

No.181 Moved by Councillor M. Bagu 
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells 

That the agenda dated October 28, 2019 be confirmed, as 
circulated or as amended. 

CARRIED. 

4. Disclosures of Interest: 

Councillor Wells declared a pecuniary interest regarding item 5. Councillor Wells 
refrained from discussing or voting on item 5. 

251



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 32-1 9 Page 2 of 8 

5. Adoption of Minutes: 

No. 182 Moved by Councillor R. Bodner 
Seconded by Councillor D. Kalailieff 

(a) That the minutes of the regular meeting of Council 30-19, 
held October 15, 2019, be approved as presented. 

CARRIED. 

6. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

The following items were identified for separate discussion: 

Item 5. 

7. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion: 

No. 183 Moved by Councillor E. Beauregard 
Seconded by Councillor R. Bodner 

Items: 

That items 1 to 9 on the agenda be approved, with the exception of 
items that have been deferred, deleted or listed for separate 
discussion, and the recommendation contained therein adopted. 

1. Chief Administrative Officer Department, Report 2019-160, Subject: 
Memorandum of Understanding - Procurement of Goods and Services 

Council Resolved: 

That Council ratify the Memorandum of Understanding attached as 
Appendix "A" to Chief Administrative Officer's Department Report 2019-
160. 

2. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report 
2019-142, Subject: Oil Mill Creek Municipal Drain -Appointment of 
Engineer 

Council Resolved: 

That the Council of the City of Port Colborne receives Report 2019-142 
with respect to the Oil Mill Creek Drain Engineer Appointment as 
information; and 

That Paul Marsh P. Eng. Of EWA Engineering Ltd. be appointed under 
Section 8 of the Drainage Act, Chapter D.17 R.S.O. 1990 for the 
preparation of a new engineer's report under Section 78 of the Drainage 
Act, Chapter D.1 7 R.S.O. 1990, related to the Oil Mill Creek Drain. 

252



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 32-1 9 Page 3 of 8 

3. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report 
2019-143, Subject: Point Abino Municipal Drain -Appointment of Engineer 

Council Resolved: 

That the Council of the City of Port Colborne receives Report 2019-143 
with respect to Point Abino Drain Engineer Appointment as information; 
and 

That Paul Marsh P. Eng. Of EWA Engineering Ltd. be appointed under 
Section 8 of the Drainage Act, Chapter D.17 R.S.O. 1990 for the 
preparation of a new engineer's report under Section 78 of the Drainage 
Act, Chapter D.17 R.S.O. 1990, related to the Point Abino Municipal 
Drain. 

4. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report 
2019-156, Subject: Biederman Municipal Drain -Appointment of Engineer 

Council Resolved: 

That the Council of the City of Port Colborne receives Report 2019-156 
with respect to Biederman Drain Engineer Appointment as information; 
and 

That Brandon Widner P. Eng. Of Spriet Associates Engineers and 
Architects. be appointed under Section 8 of the Drainage Act, Chapter 
D.17 R.S.O. 1990 for the preparation of a new engineer's report under 
Section 78 of the Drainage Act, Chapter D.17 R.S.O. 1990, related to the 
Biederman Municipal Drain. 

6. Planning and Development Department, Report 2019-146, Subject: 
Background Study and Development Charges By-law Update 

Council Resolved: 

That Council receives Planning and Development Department Report 
2019-146, Background Study and Development Charges By-law Update 
for information; 

That Council approves the Development Charges implementations as 
follows: 

1. Infill housing - deferral of all development charges for 5 years. 
2. Multiple unit residential (including condominiums)- no development 

charges for the first 3 years; year 4 50%; year 5 100%. 
3. Sub-division/new development - 20% of development charges in first 

year; 40% year 2; 60% year 3; 80% year 4; 100% year 5. 
4. Commercial, Industrial, and institutional - no development charges for 

the first 3 years; year 4 50%; year 5 100%. 
5. Brownfield Development - deferral of all development charges for 5 

years; 

253



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 32-19 Page 4 of 8 

That the updated Development Charges By-law be brought forward for 
approval at Council; and 

That staff be directed to prepare the Notice of passing in accordance with 
the Development Charges Act. 

7. Memorandum from the Economic Development Advisory Committee Re: 
Development Charges 

Council Resolved: 

That the memorandum received from the Economic Development 
Advisory Committee Re: Development Charges be received for 
information; and 

That the following motion be considered by Council when reviewing the 
Development Charges Bylaw: 

That the Economic Development Advisory Committee recommends to the 
Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne that Development 
Charges be implemented as follows: 

1. Infill housing - deferral of all development charges for 5 years. 
2. Multiple unit residential (including condominiums) - no development 

charges for the first 3 years; year 4 50%; year 5 100%. 
3. Sub-division/new development - 20% of development charges in first 

year; 40% year 2; 60% year 3; 80% year 4; 100% year 5. 
4. Commercial and Industrial- no development charges for the first 3 

years; year 4 50%; year 5 100%. 
5. Brownfield Development - deferral of all development charges for 5 

years. 

That the City impose a vacancy tax on land that is approved for 
development which remains undeveloped for a period as recommended 
by city staff. 

8. Pierre Ranger, Chair of the Let's Remember Adam - STOP FOR THE 
SCHOOL BUS Committee Re: National School Bus Safety Week and Stop 
Arm Cameras 

Council Resolved : 

That the correspondence received from Pierre Ranger, Chair of the Let's 
Remember Adam - STOP FOR THE SCHOOL BUS Committee Re: 
National School Bus Safety Week and Stop Arm Cameras, be received 
for information. 

9. City of St. Catharines Re: Menstrual Products in City Facilities 

Council Resolved : 

254



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 32-1 9 Page 5 of 8 

The the resolution received from the City of St. Catharines Re: Menstrual 
Products in City Facilities, be received for information. 

CARRIED. 

8. Consideration of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

5. Planning and Development Department, Report 2019-155, Subject: 
Planning Budget Tasks 

Moved by Councillor A. Desmarais 
Seconded by Councillor G. Bruno 

That Council authorize $75,000 to be allocated to the Planning and 
Development Department for Consulting Services and be taken from 2019 
reserve funds; and 

That the main motion be amended to include the following as a second 
paragraph: That the Director of Planning and Development hold an open 
house for the removal of topsoil and placement of fill by-law. 

CARRIED. 

9. Proclamations: 

Nil. 

10. Minutes of Boards, Commissions & Committees: 

No. 184 Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells 

(a) That the minutes of the Port Colborne Public Library Board 
meeting of August 13, 2019, be received. 

(b) That the minutes of the Port Colborne Historical & Marine 
Museum Board of Management meeting of September 24, 2019, 
be received. 

CARRIED. 

11. Consideration of By-laws: 

No. 185 Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor D. Kalailieff 

That the following by-laws be enacted and passed: 

6727/91/19 Being a By-law to Authorize the Execution of a 
Transfer Payment Agreement with Her Majesty the 
Queen in Right of Ontario as Represented by the 
Minister of Tourism, Culture and Sport respecting the 
Celebrate Ontario 2019 Grant 

255



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 32-19 

6728/92/19 

Page 6 of 8 

Being a By-law to Authorize Entering Into an 
Engineering Agreement with EWA Engineering Inc. 
for the Oil Mill Creek Municipal Drain 

6729/94/19 

6730/95/19 

CARRIED. 

Being a By-law to Authorize Entering Into an 
Engineering Agreement with EWA Engineering Inc. 
for the Point Abina Municipal Drain 
Being a By-law to Authorize Entering Into an 
Engineering Agreement with Spriet Associates 
Engineers & Architects for the Biederman Municipal 
Drain 

12. Council in Closed Session: 

Motion to go into Closed Session - 7:55 p.m. 

No.186 Moved by Councillor H. Wells 
Seconded by Councillor G. Bruno 

That Council do now proceed into closed session in order to 
address the following matter(s): 

(a) Minutes of the Closed Session portion of the following Council 
meeting: September 23, 2019. 

(b) Verbal report from Italia Reeves, Human Resources 
Coordinator on behalf of Scott Luey, Chief Administrative 
Officer, concerning a human re.sources matter pursuant to the 
Municipal Act, 2001 , Subsection 239(2)(b) personal matters 
about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local 
board employees. 

(c) Verbal report from Italia Reeves, Human Resources 
Coordinator, concerning a human resources matter pursuant 
to the Municipal Act, 2001, Subsection 239(2)(b) personal 
matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or 
local board employees. 

(d) Memorandum from Italia Reeves, Human Resources 
Coordinator, dated October 28, 2019, concerning the 
performance appraisal of the Chief Administrative Officer, 
pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001, Subsection 239(2)(b) 
personal matters about an identifiable individual, including 
municipal or local board employees. 

CARRIED. 

256



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 32-19 

Motion to rise with report: 
Page 7 of 8 

No. 187 Moved by Council lor H. Wells 
Seconded by Councillor R. Bodner 

That Council do now rise from closed session with report at 
approximately 9:12 p.m. 

CARRIED. 

13. Disclosures of Interest Arising from Closed Session: 

Nil. 

14. Reports/Motions Arising from Closed Session: 

(c) Verbal report from Italia Reeves, Human Resources Coordinator, 
concerning a human resources matter pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001, 
Subsection 239(2)(b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, 
including municipal or local board employees. 

No. 188 Moved by Councillor H. Wells 
Seconded by Councillor M. Bagu 

That Peter Senese be appointed Interim Chief Administrative 
Officer for the City of Port Colborne; and 

That the City Clerk be directed to bring forward a by-law for the 
appointment of Interim Chief Administrative Officer at the 
November 12, 2019 meeting of Council. 

CARRIED. 

12. Consideration of By-laws: 

No. 189 Moved by Councillor H. Wells 
Seconded by Councillor D. Kalailieff 

That the following by-law be enacted and passed: 

6731 /96/19 Being a By-law to Adopt, Ratify and Confirm the 
Proceedings of the Council of The Corporation of the 
City of Port Colborne at its Regular Meeting of 
October 28, 2019. 

CARRIED. 

13. Adjournment: 

No. 190 Moved by Councillor F. Danch 
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard 

That the Council meeting be adjourned at approximately 9:14 p.m. 
CARRIED. 

257



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 32-19 

William W. Steele 
Mayor 

AL/In 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

Page 8 of 8 

258


	Committee of the Whole Agenda
	Committee Items
	Item 1
	Item 2
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Regular Committee of the Whole 26-19 Minutes
	Regular Council Meeting Agenda
	Council Items
	By-Laws Council Agenda
	Regular Council Meeting 31-19 Minutes



